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Chairman’s Statement

EEHE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Superland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
the 2021 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

LISTING STATUS

On 17 July 2020 (the “Listing Date"), the shares (the “Shares”) of
the Company were successfully listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing"), marking an important milestone of the Group.

RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 was approximately HK$798,108,000 and approximately
HK$680,212,000 respectively, representing an increase of
approximately 17.3%. The net profit of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 was approximately HK$12,597,000 and
approximately HK$18,049,000 respectively, representing a decrease
of approximately 30.2%.

Excluding the one off and non-recurring items for the year ended 31
December 2020, i.e., the subsidy granted under the Employment
Support Scheme of approximately HK$15,717,000, listing expenses of
approximately HK$6,888,000 and donation arising from the Listing of
HK$1,000,000, the profit and total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 would be adjusted to approximately HK$10,220,000.

Excluding the one off and non-recurring items for the year ended 31
December 2021, i.e., the subsidy granted under the Employment
Support Scheme of approximately HK$564,000, the profit and total
comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 would be adjusted
to approximately HK$12,033,000, representing an increase of
approximately 17.7% as compared to the adjusted one for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Details of the Group's results and prospects will be discussed under
the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this 2021
annual report of the Group.
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Business diversification

The Group's existing and future technologies and technical solutions,
including but not limited to, virtual reality technology, digital design
services and three-dimensional laser scanning, enjoyed first-mover
advantage in the fitting-out, interior design and construction and
property market industry. The realisation and commercialisation of
these technologies and technical solutions will add value to the
Group by creating new opportunities for the Group and attaining
business growth of the Group through business diversification.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my sincere appreciation to our Shareholders, customers, suppliers,
sub-contractors, bankers and professional parties for their
continuous support, as well as our management team and staff for
their hard work and contributions during the year.

Ng Chi Chiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBWRR S

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 was approximately HK$798,108,000 and approximately
HK$680,212,000, respectively, representing an increase of
approximately 17.3%.

The increase in revenue was mainly driven by the revenue
contribution by on-going projects as the outbreak of the coronavirus
pandemic (“COVID-19") was gradually under control before the fifth
wave of COVID-19 starting in late December 2021.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 was approximately HK$102,298,000 and approximately
HK$93,197,000, respectively, while the gross profit margin of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 was
approximately 12.8% and approximately 13.7%, respectively.

The increase in gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2021
was primarily due to the increase in revenue as mentioned above
while the gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2021
remained relatively stable.

Other income

The other income of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 was approximately HK$628,000 and approximately
HK$15,797,000, respectively, representing a decrease of
approximately 96.0%.

The decrease in other income was mainly due to the decrease in
subsidy granted under the Employment Support Scheme launched
by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("Hong Kong" or "HKSAR") of the People’s Republic of China in
2020 which was non-recurring in nature for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Other (Iosses)/gains, het

The net other (losses)/gains of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 mainly represented the changes in value of the
investments in insurance contracts.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 was approximately HK$76,547,000 and
approximately HK$68,792,000, respectively, representing an increase
of approximately 11.3%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The increase in administrative expenses was mainly attributable to
the increase in employee benefit expenses and general
administrative expenses incurred for the year ended 31 December
2021 after the Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date.

Listing expenses

The listing expenses of the Group represented the non-occurring
expenses incurred for the Initial public offering (the “IPO") before the
Listing.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 was approximately HK$10,638,000 and approximately
HK$14,647,000, respectively, representing a decrease of
approximately 27.4%.

The decrease in finance costs was primarily due to the decrease in
overall usage of the bank borrowings and other banking facilities
after the Listing.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the abovementioned, the profit and total
comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 was
approximately HK$12,597,000 and approximately HK$18,049,000,
respectively, representing a decrease of approximately 30.2%.

Excluding the one off and non-recurring items for the year ended 31
December 2020, i.e., the subsidy granted under the Employment
Support Scheme of approximately HK$15,717,000, listing expenses of
approximately HK$6,888,000 and donation arising from the Listing of
HK$1,000,000, the profit and total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 would be adjusted to approximately HK$10,220,000.

Excluding the one off and non-recurring items for the year ended 31
December 2021, i.e., the subsidy granted under the Employment
Support Scheme of approximately HK$564,000, the profit and total
comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 would be adjusted
to approximately HK$12,033,000, representing an increase of
approximately 17.7% as compared to the adjusted one for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBWRR S

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Businesses

The Group is an established contractor based in Hong Kong with over
18 years of operating history providing fitting-out services and repair
and maintenance services with the qualifications as a registered
electrical contractor, registered subcontractor and registered minor
works contractor in Hong Kong.

On 17 July 2020, the Shares were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, marking an important milestone of the
Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group is principally
engaged in the provision of fitting-out services and repair and
maintenance services for residential and commercial properties in
Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 43 fitting-out
projects on hand, which included fitting-out projects that have
commenced but not yet completed and fitting-out projects that have
been awarded to the Group but not yet commenced, with an
aggregate total contract sum of approximately HK$3,221 million.
Among these projects on hand, 25 projects were with total contract
sum of approximately HK$50 million or above. As at 31 December
2021, the aggregate total contract sum of these 25 projects
amounted to approximately HK$2,865 million (31 December 2020: 23
projects : approximately HK$2,597 million).

Future prospects and strategies

The onslaught of the fifth wave of COVID-19 has dealt a blow to Hong
Kong. It is unavoidable that the overall economy of Hong Kong in the
short term will be greatly affected by the fifth wave of COVID-19
starting in late December 2021. As such, the Group's business will
continue to encounter challenges for a while.

However, as supported by the 2021 policy address of Hong Kong, the
Government of the HKSAR will develop land resources in a persistent
manner to satisfy the housing demand. Therefore, the Group expects
that the business of the Group will remain stable in the fitting-out
industry in Hong Kong in the long term. The Group will devote
necessary resources to further increase its market share if
appropriate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Having launched certain of the Group’s technologies and technical
solutions in the market successfully, it is the intention of the Board
that the Group would be determined and committed to
commercialise the Group's existing technologies and technical
solutions. The Group intends to solidify and realise the development
of its technologies and technical solutions for serving both the
industry participants and the end users in the market once the total
solution development is mature. Given the Group’s great and
developed network in the value chains of the industries and the
market, the realisation and commercialisation of the Group’s
technologies and technical solutions will create new opportunities
for the Group to work more closely with its strategic partners and
enhance the overall cost savings effect.

Looking ahead, the Board remains prudent and optimistic about the
prospects of the Group’s business in the long term. The Group will
continue to adopt a very cautious approach to ensure corporate
sustainability in 2022. The Group will consider monitoring its working
capital management closely. The Group will also closely and carefully
monitor the latest development in its core business and the potential
realisation and commercialisation of its technologies and technical
solutions; and the latest development of the epidemic effect and
adjust its business strategies from time to time if required.

DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, total debt of the Group, including bank
borrowings and lease liabilities, was approximately HK$272,185,000
(31 December 2020: approximately HK$235,276,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured/guaranteed by:

() Personal guarantee provided by a Director, Mr. Ng Chi Chiu
(“Mr. Ng");

(i) Corporate guarantee provided by the Company;,

(i) Properties held by two Directors, Mr. Ng and Ms. Zhao Haiyan
Chloe ("“Ms. Zhao"), and related companies;

(iv) Investments in insurance contracts of approximately
HK$18,180,000 (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$15,261,000); and

(v) Pledged time deposits of approximately HK$6,611,000 (31
December 2020: approximately HK$3,127,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBWRR S

In addition, as at 31 December 2021, the Group provided corporate
guarantee to surety bonds and a personal guarantee was provided
by a Director, Ms. Zhao, in relation to a lease agreement.

The bank borrowings of the Group bear interest at floating rates that
are market dependent. The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy while the Group pays vigilant attention to
and monitors interest rate risks continuously and cautiously.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date and there has been no change in
capital structure of the Group since then.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s issued capital was
HK$8,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
800,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

The principal liquidity and working capital requirements of the Group
primarily related to the Group's operating expenses. Historically, the
Group had met its working capital and other liquidity requirements
principally through a combination of cash generated from the
Group's operations and bank borrowings. After the Listing, the Group
expects to fund its working capital and other liquidity requirements
with a combination of various sources, including but not limited to
cash generated from the Group's operations, bank borrowings, the
net proceeds from the IPO as well as other external equity and debt
financings as and when appropriate.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged time deposits of
approximately HK$6,611,000 (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$3,127,000). Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged time deposits. Total capital is calculated as “total equity” as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, plus net
debt. As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 57.4% (31 December 2020: approximately 56.4%). As
at 31 December 2021, the current ratio of the Group was
approximately 1.2 (31 December 2020: approximately 1.2).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the income, expenditures, assets and liabilities of the Group
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, being the functional currency
of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group, and hence, the Group
does not have any material foreign exchange risk exposure. With the
insignificant portion of monetary transactions, assets and liabilities of
the Group being denominated in foreign currencies, for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not employ any financial
instruments for hedging purpose. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider adopting hedging policy
should the need arises.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 264 (31
December 2020: 254) employees. The remuneration package the
Group offered to its employees includes salary, discretionary year-
end bonus and other cash subsidies. The Group provides a defined
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund as required under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) for all eligible employees. The Group determines
the salary of its employees mainly based on their qualifications,
experiences and performance. The Group carries out regular review
on the performance of employees to determine any salary
adjustments, bonuses and promotions.

The Group participates in a defined contribution retirement scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme participated by the
Group in Hong Kong is registered under and complies with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
laws of Hong Kong). The assets of the MPF Scheme are held in
separate trustee-administered funds. The Group and its employees
are each required to make contributions pursuant to the MPF
Scheme at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant income and
capped at HK$1,500 per month. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
are vested immediately.

Contributions to the defined contribution retirement scheme charged
to the Group's consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the year ended 31 December 2021 were approximately
HK$3,558,000 (2020: approximately HK$3,467,000). There was no
contribution forfeited by the Group on behalf of its employees who
left the MPF Scheme prior to vesting fully in such contribution, which
may be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions during the two years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020. As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, there was no
forfeited contribution available to reduce the level of contributions in
future years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWE S

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the employee benefit
expenses (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to
approximately HK$109,865,000 (2020: approximately HK$99,302,000).

USE OF PROCEEDS

Upon the Listing, the net proceeds raised from the IPO was
approximately HK$79.4 million, after deducing the underwriting fees
and commissions and other relevant listing expenses. The net IPO
proceeds will be used according to the manner as set out in the
section headed “Future plans and use of proceeds” in the prospectus
(the “Prospectus”) of the Company dated 30 June 2020.

An analysis of the utilisation of the net IPO proceeds up to 31
December 2021 is set out below:

REE-_TE-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE - ET
A (BIEEEMNS) 54109,8650008 (- =
ZZF 1 4999,302,000787T) °

FRrEREAR

REME  MEREHEERMAS REMARELETH
Tk BERALAHAREEENBRIEFEAY
VAEEBT - B AHBEENBRIEFRGR
ARAFRBHA-ZZE-_ZEFNA=THHNBRER
([BRER]D [RRTERFTERIBRE | —&AT
;O HAER -

BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—H80 HHEBEIXAHE
BEMEBRIEFENDTHIWDT

Utilised Expected
amounts timeline of
since full utilisation
the Listing Unutilised of unutilised
Date to amounts asat amounts as at
NetIPO 31 December 31 December 31 December
proceeds 2021 2021 2021
BLmEHZ R=B=—
BRDMH “B--% R-B--f£ +ZA=+-H
BEME t-—A=1t—-H +t=A=t-H #RBELEEE
MERE EEREE ABASE BDANEHRER
HKS million HKS million HKS$ million
BEAT BEAT BEAT
Payment of upfront costs for new projects SRTETIE B MATEIAR 29.2 29.2 -
Obtaining surety bonds BERAORE 42.3 (22.7) 19.6  Fourth quarter of 2022
ZEICEENE
General working capital —REEES 79 (7.9 -
79.4 (59.8) 19.6

The Directors regularly evaluate the Group’s business objectives and
may change or modify plans against the changing market condition
to ascertain the business growth of the Group. As at the date of this
annual report, the Directors do not anticipate any change to the plan
as to the use of proceeds and the unutilised net IPO proceeds will be
applied in the manner consistent with the proposed allocations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals.

There was no formal plan authorised by the Board for any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals as at 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have other future plans for material investments
or capital assets for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, as at 31 December
2021, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no other material events occurring after the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

To create a long term value for the interests of the Shareholders is
the Board’s main objective. As such, the Board is highly committed
to achieving a high standard of corporate governance and striving to
maintain the management practices in a transparent and responsible
way. The Board reviews and improves the Group’s corporate
governance practices and business ethics on an ongoing basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
report, the Company complied with all the code provisions, where
applicable, as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) and Corporate Governance Report in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange except for the deviation mentioned in the section of
“Meetings and Attendance” and “Chairman and Chief Executive”.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. All
the Directors confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
their compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2021.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy
formulation, business strategic planning, business development, risk
management, material acquisitions and disposals and capital
transactions, and other significant operational and financial matters.
Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to the management, such as the preparation of annual and interim
accounts for the Board's final approval before its publication,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the
Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and
risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations. The Board has also
delegated to the relevant senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of the
Group.

The Board also has established Board committees and has delegated
to these Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

14 Superland Group Holdings Limited e {4 £ EiEKR AR A7)

ERERER

AR EAXAGEREEAESemTBAE -
ﬁ%’%%@ﬁﬂ?ﬁ%*ymﬁ%%%,ﬁ%
NERFBERARAENEETFR EFERERF
K EREENEEEARARARRT -

HE T F+-_A=+—HIEEREENRN
HEBH BRIGEMHEBR] RIEFRITE
BE| —HFTz EFTRBESIBEIN - KRR EST
B FTE A EMARR (T EmBRR D140 EE
AR ([EERTR D REEERARESAEN
FT A SFRIMESC (3@ AR ) »

ESETHESRRS
ADTEHRM TR I0FH EDRITAE
FETEHRHORETA(REFAD - R
EFBELARABHNTATA - AATAE
BH% 2REFHR BE-T-—F1+-7
St AR BEEETEETAMROR
TEAER o

=g

BE

EEeREAKEMNDEBORFIET - FHRER
2 EBuER EARER BAKRBREERE
ARG WRHMEXRLENMMBEE -EFE
FRIERKEEEREQFNTIZEE  IREF
ERFHEEARAHAHREETSFRAEL
HITEFSRMNEBRRR RIERE  #ITEEA
EREZ IR K B B IR P A NGB ST HERDAE 2
Ko RAURES - EFENEBAREZERE
BREENENREEER THERRERE -

EXeNMNVEELZBS UEBRAZXFEEEE
SERFENESAREREANCSHRE



Corporate Governance Report

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties of the Group and will assign relevant functions to other board
committees, namely the remuneration committee (the
“"Remuneration Committee”), the nomination commit tee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) collectively, the “Board Committees”) as and when
appropriate.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials, and the advice and services provided by the company
secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the Company, and has the
liberty to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense if so reasonably required. The Directors will be continuously
provided by the updates on the major development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Composition

The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. Details of the composition of
the Board and biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 2 to
3 of this annual report in the section of “Corporate Information” and
on pages 75 to 81 of this annual report in the section of “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management”, respectively. An updated list of
the Directors with their respective roles and functions is available on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.superland-group.com. Independent non-executive Directors
are identified in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of the Directors.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of two or three years (as the case may
be) commencing from the Listing Date or from the date of
appointment subject to termination as provided therein.

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent non-
executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date subject to termination as provided therein.

The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise either in
the same industry or relevant to the management of the business of
the Group which brings a good balance of relevant skills and
experience to the Company. The independent non-executive
Directors also provide their independent professional judgments on
the assessment of the development, performance and risk
management of the Group.
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ERERERE

Meetings and Attendance

The attendance of individual members of the Board at various
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2021, as well as the
number of such meetings held, are set out below:

2EREERR
HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—HILtEE ARE
FENENTREEZLEBARBHESE S
TTEEEINNT

Number of meetings attended/held

B/ BT eREA
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
A ENZESR REZEE HHEES BRBF
L = o = VN -
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu ™ REBLEN@ 5/5 N/ATER /1 N/AEH 7
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe HERTT 4/4 N/AN R N/A i N/ATE 111
Ms. Ho Nga Ling Lt 4/4 N/ATER N/ATEF N/ATNEF 7
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chan Ming Yim BREELE 4/4 N/A P N/ATEF N/ATE 1
Independent non-executive B k#HTES
Directors
Dr.Ho Chung Tai Raymond &% &+ 3/5 3/3 N/ANE A 111 111
Mr. Yip Chun On @ ERgiEe 5/5 3/3 1/1 11 0/1
Prof. Chau Kwong Wing ® PEEHFO 5/5 3/3 1/1 11 0/1
1. Chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company. 1. RAREESERRITIEBE -
2. Chairman of the Audit Committee. 2. BIRZEEEEE -
3. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. 3. FWEEEEE -
4. Chairman of the Nomination Committee. 4. REZEGEE -

In respect of code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive Directors and other non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of the Shareholders while the
chairman of the Board should also invite the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as
appropriate) to attend the annual general meeting. Due to prior or
unexpected business engagements, Mr. Yip Chun On, the chairman
of the Audit Committee, and Prof. Chau Kwong Wing, chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, were unable to attend the annual
general meeting (the 2020 AGM") of the Company held on 17 June
2021. All the remaining Directors were present at the 2020 AGM to
maintain an ongoing dialogue and communicate with the
Shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the chairman of the Board
and the independent non-executive Directors met at least once
without the presence of other executive Directors and non-executive
Director.
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Corporate Governance Report

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times annually and
additional Board meetings are held when the Board considers
appropriate. Schedules for regular Board meetings are normally
agreed with the Directors in advance in order to facilitate them to
attend. Draft agenda of each Board meeting is sent to the Directors
in order to give them an opportunity to include any other matters in
the agenda for discussion in the meeting, and the chairman of the
Board approves the final agenda before each Board meeting. Notice
of regular Board meetings is served to all the Directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board meetings and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

In respect of regular Board meetings or committee meetings and so
far as practicable in all other cases, meeting papers are sent to the
Directors or respective committee members in a timely manner and
at least 3 days before the intended date of the respective meetings
to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Group and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management where necessary.

Relevant senior management would attend regular Board meetings
and where necessary, other Board meetings and committee
meetings, to advise on business developments, financial and
accounting matters, statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Group.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of
all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
circulated to the Directors for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

Relationship

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management — Directors”, none of the members of the
Board has any relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships) between each other.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
The Company complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors confirming his independence from the Company,
and considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by the Shareholders at the first annual general
meeting after appointment. Any further appointment of an
independent non-executive Director, who has served the Board for
more than nine years, shall be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the Shareholders.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of the Directors are laid down in the Articles. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board's
composition, structure and size, developing and formulating the
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of the
Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession planning of
the Directors and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.
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Directors’ Induction and Development

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company arranged a
seminar provided by an independent third party for its Directors as
continuing professional trainings for corporate governance and
compliance purposes. Some Directors also participated in other
seminars according to their own preferences to develop and refresh
their knowledge, skills and understanding of the Group and its
business or to update their skills and knowledge on the latest
development or changes in the relevant regulations, the Listing Rules
and corporate governance practices.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars/in-
house briefing/reading materials to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.
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Type of continuous professional development

Name of Director

FESEERER
Attending seminars,
conferences, workshops Reading materials and
and in-house briefings updates
HEHRNS %
TESH & A3 i 3R FEMEREFER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu REBLEAE 4 4
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe izNEE 4 4
Ms. Ho Nga Ling fAIEZ 22+ v v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Chan Ming Yim FeR 8% B o A 4 4
Independent non-executive BIFHITES
Directors
Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond SR E + 4 4
Mr. Yip Chun On BeRit v 4
Prof. Chau Kwong Wing B EEHIR 4 4

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 ® 2021444 19



Corporate Governance Report
ERERERE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, in respect of code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. However, having considered the nature and extent
of the Group's operations, and Mr. Ng Chi Chiu’s in-depth knowledge
and experience in the industry and familiarity with the operations of
the Group, that all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board and relevant Board Committees, and that
there are three independent non-executive Directors on the Board
offering independent perspectives, the Board is therefore of the view
that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient
balance of powers and authorities between the Board and the
management of the Group and that it is in the best interest of the
Group to have Mr. Ng Chi Chiu taking up both roles. As such, the
roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of the Group are
not being separated pursuant to the requirement under the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
of the Board. The Company is committed to having a Board with
appropriate balance of expertise, skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives.

The Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
industry experience.

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Board
Diversity Policy and reviews such objectives from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidate will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy by conducting review of the Board's
composition at least once annually taking into account the benefits
of all relevant diversity aspects, and adhering to the Board Diversity
Policy when making recommendation on any Board appointments.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the diversity
of the Board is sufficient.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Board Committees to oversee specific
aspects of the Company's affairs and help it in the execution of its
responsibilities. Specific written terms of reference of these
committees clearly outline each committee’s authority and duty.

Each committee is required to report back on its decisions or
recommendations to the Board on a timely basis, unless there are
any legal or regulatory restrictions imposed on it.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (a) maintaining the
relationship with the Company’s auditor; (b) reviewing the
Company'’s financial information; (c) reviewing the Company’s
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems; and (d) reviewing the relationships with the employees of
the Group. The full version of the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the Stock Exchange's website and the
Company’s website at www.superland-group.com. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee was adopted on 16 June 2020.

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee is
made up of three independent non-executive Directors, including
Mr. Yip Chun On (chairman of the Audit Committee), Dr. Ho Chung
Tai Raymond and Prof. Chau Kwong Wing. Mr. Yip Chun On
(chairman of the Audit Committee) possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required.

The Audit Committee held three committee meetings for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Summary of work of the Audit Committee for the year
ended 31 December 2021

The Audit Committee held three committee meetings with the
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, to (a) discuss and review the
Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval; (b) review and
consider the existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee; (c)
discuss and review the Group’s results for the six months ended 30
June 2021 and recommended the same to the Board for approval,
and (d) discuss and review the audit plan of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

EREINRE

EEXRET

EEECKUEFRES  BEEAQAFEHNE
EHE  YHHEBETRE -ZFREE8 AR
BAREANBERE ETEWMAEZZREEN
BAONBE -

BELBEBAMBRAESGERLRRIES  H
B R EMERKEERBIRIBRI

BEREE®
ERZECTZBRQBBEANFIZEMNE
FOBEHARANTFEER ORI AQF
MG ERERF RREERAIPELSIE K&
(A)RFTEAEEE THREE BHEEHESR
] 1) 52 B R A A] BA B <2 BT 48 e AN R B A8k
www.superland-group.com#& § - B EZ E € H)
BiEHERN T _EF AT B EEM -

R EMRREI2NG BREZEER =B
FRTERAN  BREEALALE(BREZES:
B)  MERBLRBERIE - BEERELE(F
ZEZEETR) ABMBHNAEERERA ST
MM ERER M -

ZESZIHBE

BERZE S EZHBMELR BT EBH
BITZRZREEEH NaTwmhEHAKER
ECRTFET A=+ -BULEFENESE X
AEFSRZFL  OFHREEEZZEEH
RERERE: OFmREBHASEEE_Z
TFRAZTALERNEANESE  YAEFEE
rEEL ROamkBEHASERE-_F -~
Ft-A=t+—RLFENEZE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 ® 20214F4F 21



Corporate Governance Report

ERELIRE

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (a) reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience required) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become the Directors and selecting
or making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; (c) implementing and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, making any recommendations
on it to the Board and monitoring its achievements annually; (d)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors, and succession planning for Directors
in particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive of the
Company; and (e) assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and any proposed independent non-
executive Directors. The full version of the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee is available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website at www.superland-group.com. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee was adopted on 16
June 2020.

The Nomination Committee is made up of three members including
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu (chairman of the Nomination Committee), Prof. Chau
Kwong Wing and Mr. Yip Chun On.

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Director Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Director nomination policy (the
“Director Nomination Policy”) for the Nomination Committee to
identify and evaluate a suitable candidate for nomination to (i) the
Board for appointment; or (ii) the Shareholders for election, as
Directors, at general meetings.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out a number of factors in
making nomination, including but not limited to the following:

o Skills, experience and professional expertise which are relevant
to the operations of the Group;

o Diversity in all aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
o commitment in respect of sufficient time and participation to

discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s),
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o Character, experience and integrity, and is able to demonstrate
a standard of competence commensurate with the relevant
position as a Director; and

o Requirements of independence of the proposed independent
non-executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Ssummary of work of the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2021

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting to review
and consider the composition of the Board, the Director Nomination
Policy, the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, the re-appointment of retiring Directors and the existing
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and the
structure for all the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy; (b) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives; (c) considering salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and any of its
subsidiaries; (d) determining, making recommendations to the Board,
considering and approving the remuneration package of all the
Directors and senior management of the Group and the compensation
arrangements relating to loss or termination of office and dismissal or
removal of the Directors; (e) deciding the remunerations of the
Directors with independence; (f) advising the Shareholders on how to
vote with respect to any service contracts of Directors that require
Shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules; (g)
consulting the chairman of the Board and/or the chief executive officer
of the Company about their proposals relating to the remuneration of
other executive Directors; (h) evaluating and making recommendations
on any share option schemes that may be adopted by the Company
from time to time and ensuring its compliance with the Listing Rules; (i)
ensuring proper disclosure of the Director’'s remuneration in the
annual report of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles and the Listing Rules; and () reviewing its own performance,
constitution and terms of reference to ensure its effectiveness and
making recommendations on any necessary changes for the Board’s
approval at least annually. The full version of the terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee is available on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company’s website at www.superland-group.com.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee was adopted
on 16 June 2020.
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The Remuneration Committee reviews and determines the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors with
reference to their responsibilities, workload, the time devoted to the
Group and the performance of the Group.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of three members
including Prof. Chau Kwong Wing (chairman of the Remuneration
Ccommittee), Mr. Yip Chun On and Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond.

The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Summary of work of the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2021

The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting to
review and approve the remuneration package and structure of all
the Directors and senior management independently and the existing
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee.

Details of the five highest paid individuals in the Group and the
Directors’ emoluments are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Senior management’s remuneration

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
paid to the members of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)
FNsE &)
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O S ] T B
B -

FHEZEem =Rk EAENK  BRFERHE (F
MEREEXRF) EERZEERMERBL -

T+ -A=+—HLFE  FHE
—REREEgH -

S
g

BE-E -+ -A=1+—HLEEEHFM
ZESCITEHME
SNEBeRRIT—REELYE  UB IR
EitErREERNEREEEB 2 HFNEBRERE
WEHFMWEESRA BESE -

AEBRIUREHALREEMEABERES
FATEIRRIFES ]9 ©

BREE R
RIECEEATAZFAEXEB IS BE
T FT- A=t AL FENBRERER
BN HIEAESH T -

Number of
person(s)

0-1,000,000
1,000,001 - 1,500,000

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board, with the assistance of other Board Committees, is
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions, and
it accordingly reviews and monitors the training and continuing
professional development of Directors and the senior management,
and ensures its policies and practices in compliance with relevant
laws and regulatory requirements. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the Board reviewed the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance. The Board is responsible for performing the
functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, received HK$1,300,000 for provision of
audit service. No non-audit services was provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for the year ended 31 December 2021.

There were no disagreements between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the re-appointment of the auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, for the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparation of
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of the
Group's results and cash flows for the year ended 31 December
2021. In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, and
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

There are no material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the management has
provided the Board with monthly updates so as to give the Directors
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company's
performance, position and prospects.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditor
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 95 to 102 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Group’s risk management and internal control procedures
include a management structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and limits of authority. It primarily aims to provide a
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are properly
safeguarded against misappropriations, transactions are executed in
accordance with the management’s authorisation, and accounting
records are reliable and proper for preparing financial information
and are not materially misstated. The procedure is designed to
identify, evaluate and manage risks effectively rather than to
eliminate all risks of failure.

Policies and procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure
compliance with applicable law, rules and regulations. The policies
and procedures provide a reasonable assurance that material
misstatements or losses are prevented, potential interruption of the
Group’s management system is detected, and risks existing in the
course of arriving at the Group's objectives are properly managed.

Same as last year, the Company conducted a review and assessment
of risk management and has engaged an independent internal
control consulting firm to perform an overall assessment on the
Group’s internal control system including the areas of financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
with the aims of, among other matters, improving the Group’s
corporate governance and ensuring compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. Based on its internal control review, the
independent internal control consulting firm recommended certain
internal control improvement measures to the Group and the Group
has adopted them.

The Board, with the assistance of other Board committees, is
responsible for maintaining adequate procedures of risk
management and internal control for the Group and the Board had
conducted an annual review of its effectiveness for the year ended
31 December 2021. The Company engaged an independent internal
control consulting firm to conduct a review and perform an overall
assessment of the Group’s internal control system. The review
covered material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The findings from the review have been
communicated to and addressed by the Board. It has not been
revealed to the Board that the Group requires significant
improvement in its risk management and internal control
procedures. The Board considers that the nature and extent of
management risks remains the same since the last annual review.
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As such, the Board is satisfied that the Group's internal control
procedures including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions as appropriate to the Group have
been put in place and considers that the Group’s internal control
procedures and risk management functions are both effective and
adequate. The Board and other Board Committees reviews the
Group's risk management and internal control procedures annually.

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group's relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department, the
Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules and is
required, as soon as reasonably practicable after any inside
information has come to its knowledge, to disclose the
information to the public;

o has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group'’s affairs.

Senior management is identified and authorised to act as the
Company'’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated
areas of issues.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and
reports to the chairman of the Board and the chief executive. The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary are subject to
the approval of the Board. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Company Secretary undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
His biography is set out on page 81 of this annual report in the
section of “Profile of Directors and Senior Management”.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business, performance and
strategies, the Company endeavors to maintain an ongoing dialogue
with the Shareholders and in particular, through annual general
meeting and extraordinary general meeting. In respect of each
matter to be considered at the annual general meetings and
extraordinary general meetings, including the re-election of
Directors, a separate resolution will be proposed by the chairman of
the Board. The chairman of the Board and the chairmen of the Board
Committees will be available at the annual general meeting and
extraordinary general meeting to meet with the Shareholders and
answer their enquiries. The Company will also invite representatives
of the auditor to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
to answer Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor’s independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains the
website of www.superland-group.com; where up-to-date information
on the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access. Latest information of the Group
including annual and interim reports, announcements and other
corporate communications which will be sent to the Shareholders
and/or published are updated on the Stock Exchange's website and
the Company’s website in a timely fashion.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “2021 AGM") for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is scheduled to be held on 30
June 2022. The notice of the 2021 AGM, setting out details of each
proposed resolutions and other relevant information, will be sent to
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the 2021 AGM.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no changes in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

28 Superland Group Holdings Limited e {24 £ @GR A7

REEBE

ARARBF/ERROBRBBUEAREERBRE
REBAKENER RKERKENTHREEH
ER - ARABNRFEBRRZENER  LH
EEBRRBFEAGRBRREINAE - RHRBRE
BERGREREIASHERNZTHEE (B
ERER) ESIFEARTRERER ES
EXIRLBESZRENTIESRERRBFAS
EBRERFIAS LERBRYEEEEH - AR
A BB RBERREEARRBRAFAS
B ERRAEBZETIENRT  ZBERED
RELNAT - SRR LR BENE ST HR

AR ©

BEREBERER ARQXAKEBHAEUM
www.superland-group.com : sZAUh IR A BEA R
AIXEBEERERE MBER CEERTHAR
HERNEHER  HAREHN - AEENR
HER (BREBFEFRERLTIEHFRLF
BiRs  AEREMDERN) BT
Uh M AN B HE UL T o

ARRBE_ZT-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFEN
ERBFAG([Z2=—FRRBFAEDEN
“E-_FRAZTHET - HISEERRZE
ENABREMEEENN T - —FRRAEF
ARERERNR T —FRREFRKENEL20
ETBREXRTETRER

BE-Z-—F+-A=+—BLEFE £27F
MERX I RELE -



Corporate Governance Report

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
in recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to participate
in the Company's profits and for the Company to retain adequate
reserves for future growth.

The Dividend Policy would be in the best interests of the Group and
the Shareholders. The Board endeavours to maintain a balance
between meeting the Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital
management with a sustainable Dividend Policy.

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the
Group when considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
inter alia:

(@ the actual and expected financial performance and the
financial results;

(b)  the actual and available surplus and working capital;

(c) the expected working capital requirements and cash flow
required for the future expansion plans;

(d)  the debt to equity ratios and the debt level,

(e) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the lenders;

(f)  the general economic conditions, business cycle and other
internal and external factors that may have an impact on the
business conditions or financial performance, the strategies
and the financial position of the Company;

(® the future operations and earnings; and
(h)  any other conditions or factors that the Board deems relevant.

Any final or special dividends must be approved by the Shareholders
at a general meeting and must not exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. The Board may from time to time pay
to the Shareholders any interim dividends as appear to the Directors
to be justified by the profits of the Group.

EREINRE

IR S BUR

ARFARRRBEERSRARSHE (REK
%)) URFREDEAR VM RAR AR
IR ER -

BREBRENEAEEMERORENS - B
EUAREREBER  ENEGRRMEEERE
REE 2 WB DR T -

EReREREMMRNEES - MBRZEEAR
AEENATEE - HREHE

@ ERFEHRMBERIALMEEE

4
SN AN

HREEED

g
ol
B
bs

Bl

Rl
© FMEBESERRARBERT BHAELR

=
neay/1n

Sy
(1

d) BERELERREBKE

) EEFRARRERINAE B IREER F

) —REEIRR - FHBEHREMAEFER
RAEBARR K FERER - REE R FIRR
MAREMIMERE

® REZEREN K

() ZBEFSRFEENTAEMEEREE -

EARE SR RIS L ARG R N BCR A S 4t

- BB TEERESTeMEs EEFEN

REBFBEATER  EFS0 U TERERRERMS
ERPHIRE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 » 20214 &R, 29



Corporate Governance Report
ERERERE

The form, frequency and amount of dividend payment by the
Company are subject to any restrictions under the Companies Laws,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman
Islands, Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Listing Rules, the Articles, any other applicable laws and
regulations and any other financial covenants imposed by financial
institutions. The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution
record in the past may not be used as a reference or basis to
determine the level of dividends that may be declared or paid by the
Company in the future.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserve the
rights in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy shall in
no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company in
respect of future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1. The way in which the Shareholders can convene

an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM")

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, EGMs shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and lodged to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong with the address at Flat A&B, 3/F, Yin
Da Commercial Building, 181 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, and may consist of several documents in
like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.
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If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the requirements under the Articles to all the
registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is
invalid, the members concerned will be advised of this
outcome, and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as
requested.

The notice period to be given to all Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an EGM varies, according to the nature of the
proposal, as follows:

. at least 14 days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company in an
EGM.

. at least 21 days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes a special resolution of the Company in an
EGM.

2. The procedures the Shareholders can use to

propose a person for election as a Director

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected including that person’s biographical
details, shall have been lodged to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong with
the address at Flat A&B, 3/F, Yin Da Commercial Building, 181
Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, at least 7
days before the date of the general meeting. The lodgement of
notice should also be in compliance with the other
requirements of the Listing Rules.

3. The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Any Shareholder(s) who wish to raise his/their enquiries
concerning the Company to the Board may deliver his/their
written enquiry(ies) to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at the address at Flat A&B, 3/F, Yin Da
Commercial Building, 181 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, or at any address notified by the Company from
time to time and for the attention of the chairman of the Board
and the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the enquiries, the
Company would reply as soon as possible.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, voting by poll is mandatory on all
resolutions put forward at general meetings, and the poll voting
results will be published on the Stock Exchange's website and the
Company’s website at www.superland-group.com. after the relevant
general meeting.
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BE HBERELIRS

BOARD STATEMENT

Superland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with its
subsidiaries, hereinafter referred to as the “Group”, “Superland”,
“We" or “Us") is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report for the year end 31 December 2021. The Group
puts the sustainable development of its business as the top priority
of its long-term development goals, and incorporate climate-related
issues and environmental, social and governance elements into its
long-term business strategic planning. As the most important leading
role of the Group, the Board has the sole responsibility to oversee,
manage and monitor the Group’s environmental, social and
governance issues and progress directly.

The Group has set clear short-term and long-term sustainable
development vision and goals to achieve ongoing emission reduction
according to governmental requirements of different countries and
regions progressively. Relevant emission reduction targets and
corresponding strategies are established, and sustainable
development factors have been incorporated into the Group's
strategic planning, business model and other decision-making
processes. The Board regularly monitors and reviews the
effectiveness of management approach, including reviewing the
Group's environmental, social and governance performance and
adjusting corresponding action plans. Effective implementation of
environmental, social and governance policies relies on the
collaboration of different departments. Following the
recommendations given by the Stock Exchange, in order to endeavor
to achieve the objective of sustainability development, the Group has
established an inter-departmental Environmental, Social and
Governance Working Group to coordinate different departments and
enhance their mutual co-operation, for ensuring consistent work
performance which could be aligned with the stakeholders’
expectations.

The Group strives to ensure the establishment of appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for work
safety, and supervision of the identification and assessment of
environmental, social and governance and climate-related risks and
opportunities, and to response to the challenges and impacts of
different times.

Looking ahead, the Board will continue to review and monitor the
environmental, social and corporate governance performance of the
Group and provide material, reliable, consistent and comparable
environmental, social and corporate governance information to its
stakeholders for making contributions to create a better
environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is delighted to publish the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) to summarise the Group's
policies, measures and performance on the key environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") issues. The Group’s ESG Working
Group members are responsible for communicating and
collaborating with external consultants (RSM Consulting (Hong Kong)
Limited) to compile this Report.

Reporting Period

The Report illustrates the overall performance of the Group regarding
the environmental and social aspects from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 (“2021", the “reporting period”).

Reporting Scope

The Report discloses related policies and initiatives for the core and
material businesses namely provision of (i) fitting-out services; and (ii)
repair and maintenance services with the qualifications as a
registered electrical contractor, registered subcontractor and
registered minor works contractor in Hong Kong.

The Report discloses key performance indicators (“KPIs") of the
corporate office (“office”) and the representative project(s)
("project(s)”) in Hong Kong, where the relevant disclosed
environmental data primarily include the emission data of the office.
The Group’s awareness on issues such as greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emissions and climate change is ever increasing, we focus on
improving our data collection system and expanding our disclosure
scope. Office areas covered by the Report has increased compared
to 2020. The scope of the Report covers all the Group’s operations in
the reporting period.

Reporting Basis and Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and based on the four reporting principles —
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency:

o “Materiality” Principle:
The Group determines material ESG issues by stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment. Details are explained
in the section headed “Materiality Assessment”.

o "Quantitative” Principle:
Information is presented with quantitative measure, whenever
feasible, including information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions used and provision of
comparative data.
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BE HBERELIRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Reporting Basis and Principles (continued)

o “Balance” Principle:
The Report identifies the achievements and challenges faced
by the Group.

o “Consistency” Principle:
The Report uses consistent methodologies as the previous
reports for meaningful comparisons, descriptions are provided
if they are affected by any changes.

The Report has complied with all “comply or explain” provisions
outlined in the ESG Reporting Guide.

The information contained herein is sourced from internal documents
and statistics of the Group, as well as the combined control,
management and operations information provided by the subsidiaries
in accordance with the Group's internal management systems. A
complete content index is appended to the last section hereof for
quick reference. The Report is prepared and published in both Chinese
and English at the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company’s website (https://www.superland-group.com). In the
event of contradiction or inconsistency between the Chinese version
and the English version, the English version shall prevail.

Review and Approval

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) acknowledges
its responsibility for ensuring the integrity of the Report and to the
best of their knowledge, this Report addresses all relevant material
issues and fairly presents the ESG performance of the Company. The
Board confirms that it has reviewed and approved the Report. The
Report was reviewed and approved by the Board of the Company on
30 March 2022.

Feedback

The Group respects your view on the Report. Should you have any
opinions or suggestions, you are welcome to share with the Group at
info@superland-group.com.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board supports the Group’s commitment to fulfilling its
environmental and social responsibility and has overall responsibility
for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting.

Board of Directors

e Qversees the ESG strategies, policies, objectives and
targets

e Managing and implementing our core value on our
business

Senior Management

BE HBERELIRS
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e Advise and supports the Board on ESG matters, strategies,
policies

¢ Overall management and monitoring of ESG performance
and targets
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Environment, Social and Governance Working Group

B AeREAIFNM

e Compose of department heads, including Report project
department, human resources department, safety
department, finance department, marketing department,
etc.

e Provide supports to ESG action plans and formulate
relevant internal ESG policies

o Discuss and provide feedbacks regarding ESG related risks
and opportunities within departments

e Meet at least once every half year, and report to the Board
and top management regarding relevant KPIs Report and
target progress
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Department Heads and other employees
MPEERXMER

¢ Implement ESG policies and related initiatives

¢ Collecting environmental performance data on the
projects we build and manage

o Refining our data collection methodology and system

¢ |Improving the communication of KPIs and targets to
better track and monitor the sustainability

The Board regularly reviews the Group's ESG performance and
examines and approves the Group’s annual ESG report. We strike for
the balance between the company growth, community interest and
environmental protection, and committed on treating sustainability
both strategically and operationally.
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BE HBERELIRS

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (continued)

Board of Directors

The Board recognize that corporate social responsibility is essential
for making the right decisions that shape our present and future. We
aim at creating a lasting, positive impact and align with four guiding
principles, including (i) Trust and Integrity; (i) Conscientiousness; (iii)
Shared Value Creation; and (iv) Togetherness. Throughout the year,
we strive to go beyond compliance and the Company was not

EREE(E)

EEg

EZgRACEHEEEHNUERRREER
EERAKEHER - ZRAXSEHERELAZE
RAETAOEZERA  BREOUAERE: (e
FERE : () BEHERIEE  R(v) FEEHER - # M
EFHNBHARZIKREEZR  BWARFR_-F
“ UV RAREREMERERMBPEAEAN

subject to any significant fines or non-monetary sanctions for non- £}k sk 3 & HI1%; -

compliance with laws and regulations in 2021.

Our core value
e Manage to balance good corporate governance
and accountability to stakeholders by relevant
business blueprint
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Stakeholder
communication
e Synchronizing and
developing strong
partnerships to improve

>

Product
sustainability Report
e Combining technology and
environmentally-considerate
design for a better

business and sustainability performance
performance ey U
BOERE Board of . AR RERES
o RIS 8 AR S 1E i PABS B iF By R 3R
BT - LB SRR Directors
AIRHERREN Egg
Prosperous Staff wellbeing

Communities
e Providing both investment and
Supports to our community in
a lasting and meaningful way
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e Creating exciting and long-term
opportunities for all employees, including
family values and innovative thinking to
drive excellence across the team
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholders’ opinions are the solid foundation for the Group’s
sustainable development and success. The stakeholder engagement
helps the Group to develop a business strategy that meets the needs
and expectations of stakeholders, enhances the ability to identify risk

BE HBERELIRS
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and strengthens important relationships. The Group communicates

BB o

with its stakeholders through various channels as shown below.

Stakeholder Communication Channel
EHhE BERE

Government and regulatory agency
B REEHE

Annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and other public information
Supervision and inspection
FH - PHIRE  RIE - a2 RERABREREAMARER

EERRE

Shareholder and investor e Annual general meetings and other general meetings of shareholders
BRERREE e Company website
e Press releases/announcements
e Annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and other public information
s RRAFAEREMBRREAE
o AR)AUL
o WHERR/AE
o FI - FHRE BE HIREARRSNEMARER
Employee e Training e Meetings
== e Performance evaluation e Survey
Staff engagement and voluntary activities e Internal portal
o IEF s BH
o RIFE e ERAE
e BTZHKETES o ALY
Customer Fax, email and telephone
LS Meetings
o BE . FHNEFE
. B
Supplier/Subcontractor/ Meetings e Site visit
Business Partner Survey e Training
HEs 2aE, o i o B
EBEEBH o ERAE o IEF

Community and Non-governmental
Organisations (NGOs)

HERFBFAS GEBFER)

Media
=30

Corporate social responsibility programmes and voluntary activities
Sponsorship and Donation

ESG reports

Social media platforms e.g. Facebook page and LinkedIn page

TCEMSEEFTERET)ES

BB B
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Enquiry mailbox
BHEE
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BE HBERELIRS

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEEMTMME

In preparing our ESG report, we directly engaged with the RAERIRE HEREARERE (EAEEMT
stakeholder groups as part of the materiality assessment process to {28 —I18 - R FIEEHEFHEHLER - I
identify and prioritise the issues to be covered in this Report that #EEAREP HFREEERISNEBEATERN
have a significant impact to the business and stakeholders. B IABER -

Stage 1 Identification
PEEX1 &5

A selection of ESG issues that may reasonably be considered ’@%E;ﬁf ( pjéi miRBFEE - (TEBE L
important for the Group and its stakeholders from various BN AR E R IER
sources, including listing rules requirement, industry trends =37 éxa’ﬁaia *&g,ﬁ‘*é o FME
and internal policies. 27 issues were identified and grouped BH =+ 1 IRIBE B
into 4 categories: Environment, Employment and Labour BN T ER -

Practices, Operating Practices, and Community.

Stage 2 Prioritisation
PEER2 BERF

Conducted online surveys to rate the importance of each TR EERAT  HEMHENAEENAE
issue from the perspective of a stakeholder and the Group HEEZENEEMETTY o EE A1
using a scale of 1to 5. E55 °

Developed the materiality matrix based on the scores of the BREEAFAENSHBETEZHERE  RTE
surveys, set the threshold for materiality (i.e. at a score of ZHEMRE (BIFED) - UHARHERES
average) and prioritised a list of sustainability issues. BT o

Stage 3 Validation
PEER3 588
Management reviewed the materiality matrix and the EEERNEZUHPREREZMRE - 0
threshold for materiality. ESG issues, with a score of average ERAREENAELE DB AT A E
or above from the perspective of a stakeholder and the HIIRIE - e RERHRBANS AAEE TR R
Group, were prioritised as the most important sustainability Bt {ERERNZREEN RSB ESRE -

issues for the Group to address and report on.
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B HEREIHRSE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued) BEEMFTME®)

Result

=R

Based on the materiality assessment, we believe the most pertinent EREZZUT{E > BPIRASHEBEN R FHEERE
sustainability issues include the following: ZEAENTRAE

Occupational
health and safety

7 2 A B 1 S

Impact on the Stakeholder

Anti-corruption Prohibition of
child labour and
forced labour
[y 11 FA & T A& il 458

Safety and
quality of p
THH 3

training for Customer L
R Anti-discrimination
management and satisfaction )
employees B J -
BEEMB THREIE

Compliance with

regulations on marketing, Emplovment : : Development
product and Pioy Business ethics and training

service labelling ! [SESEE of employees
g8 B3I

Materiality Matrix
EEMERE

Impact on the Group

B R
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BRE HMgEREILGS

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued)

Result (continued)

1

a b B W wWN

a1

40

Air Emissions

RRT R
Greenhouse gas Emissions

B SRS HE IR
Effluents management
JIKER

Waste management
REEYETR

Energy efficiency

BER S =
Water efficiency

KRz

Use of raw materials and
packaging materials

R K R B WRHE A
Environmental compliance

EFIRIRER

Land use, pollution and
restoration
THIRIEE R - VB RAIRIE

Superland Group Holdings Limited e

10

10

11

11
12
12
13
13
14

14
15

15
16

16
17

17
18

18

BEEMIMA @
®ERE)
Climate change 19 Compliance with regulations on

Employment practices

BT

Diversity and equal opportunities
BTt R FEHKS
Anti-discrimination

AR

Occupational health and safety of
employees
BETIMBEREREZS
Development and training of
employees

BT #REEET

Prohibition of child labour and
forced labour
FriEEAZE T Mas4 8
Responsible supply chain
management
BEFMHEERERE
Environmental friendliness on
products or service purchased
PRER B oo AN AR T B3R 35 R AT 1
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19

20

20
21

22

22

23

24

24
25

25
26

26
27

27

marketing, product and service
labelling
BRFISHE R N E m A RS IRE
HYEAR

Customers’ privacy and
confidentiality

BEEFLRE RERMRE
Customer satisfaction
BEEmERE

Intellectual property

B ERE

Safety and quality of projects

BELZENEER
Business ethics

[EES LS

Anti-corruption training for
management and employees
FEEMEINRES
Contributions to the society

Zan ==Y

Communication and connection
with local community
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

our Environment

The Group recognizes the construction industry generates significant
environmental impacts and uses a huge amount of resources. We
aim to reduce the environmental pressures we put on the already
stressed natural systems, as well as play our part in reducing
contributions to global warming. We must also adapt and be resilient
to climate change and the impacts of inevitable increases in extreme
weather events.

We, therefore, do our utmost to engage our stakeholders and the
communities together with our colleagues via many different
approaches, through education, training and green volunteer
services. Through holding classes on environment, participating
actively in local community events, conducting environmental-
related emergency drills, visiting advanced green technology,
installing new environmental devices, etc., green concept of our
colleagues are strengthened and know-how in regulations
compliance, energy savings both in workplace and at home, waste
reduction and separation, green shopping, enhancing awareness in
caring the community or public and helping in sustainable
development are acquired.

In addition, the Group advocates energy saving and carbon
reduction, and is committed to achieving sustainable operations.
Therefore, we set clear emission reduction targets, aiming to reduce
all our emissions (including air pollutants, GHG, hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes, and sewage), energy consumption (including
electricity), consumption of resources (including water and paper) by
3% in terms of intensity, compared to corresponding intensities of
the reporting period, before 2026. Moreover, we are investing more
resources in recycling to help the development of circular economy.

Policies

o Environmental Policy
Our Environmental Policy sets out our commitment to
controlling and maintaining a high standard of environmental
protection. We make sure that our projects are in compliance
with all relevant environmental regulations and other
environmental requirements stated on the contract, and will
seek rooms for improvement by introducing advanced
technology or new production method.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

our Environment (continued)
Policies (continued)

42

Waste Management Policy

Our Waste Management Policy sets out our commitment to
control both hazardous and non-hazardous waste production.
We provide clear guideline for our workers to follow and
ensure the compliance of the laws and regulations concerning
waste disposal.

GHG Management Policy

Our GHG Management Policy outlines our management
approaches to reducing carbon dioxides and other GHG
emissions in our daily operations. We will estimate and review
our carbon emission every year and set related targets if
appropriate.

Energy Management Policy

Our Energy Management Policy outlines our dedication to
improving the performance on reducing electricity
consumption. We adopt an array of energy saving measures in
our offices and educate our employee with the eco-friendly
tips and ideas.

Climate Change Risk Management Policy

Our Climate Change Risk Management Policy sets out our
commitment to identify and manage climate change-related
risks and impacts, and to formulate relevant climate strategies
based on business needs. The policy is updated annually based
on the actual situation.

Environmental management systems

Our environmental management system is stated on our
internal guideline. We make sure that the management system
is understood by each employee, relevant subcontractors and
their workers in order to continuously reducing the negative
impact on the site surrounding environment by controlling and
mitigation measure.

Environmental Impact Management Policy

We are concerned about the impact of our business operations
on the environment and natural resources. The policy lists the
management strategies we have adopted to deal with the
impacts from different aspects, which are summarized as
follows:
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued) RIEEH#®)

Our Environment (continued) KRR E (&)

Policies (continued) WX (&)

e Environmental Impact Management Policy (continued) o IREFEEIHE(E)

Environmental Impact Management Policy

REFEEERR

Comply with relevant environmental e Implement practices and measures to ensure compliance with

laws and regulations environmental laws and regulations
BTN RRERER AR o WITHRERMNRRNERNERFABTEN KEE
Work on environmentally o Promote business that helps the development of circular economy
friendly projects o Promote other business that reduces environmental burden
MEHIRIFRIFHIEE o HREPAIREBRETENEL
o RAMBEIRTBIENED
Manage and reduce o Monitor and reduce energy consumption and waste production in all
environmental burden construction sites
o Monitor and reduce the burden and impact of business activities on the
environment
o Evaluate environmental impacts in supply chains and projects
EERRBEREAE o RETE e LG R IR B B R EEMESE

o ERURIEKEBDHRENAERTE
o  FHARERIARTHRETE

Promote environmental education o Promote efficient environmental management system
and communication o Expand the disclosure of non-financial information
BTREBEHERER o HITAEBERNIREEERR

o BAMBEHMEKERE

Environmental Compliance RIRE

Our projects are subject to certain environmental requirements BRIEFBEOI LA - RPIMEEEFEE TR
pursuant to the laws and regulations in Hong Kong, including but not ~ 3%#5E © BEETRR :

limited to:

e Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311); o (ERBLEEHGONEINE)
e Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400); o (REEHFUEBINEFEL00E) :
e Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Cap. 132); o (RFBEERTBUGHINEIRE)

e Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354); and CEEMRREBEGMNEIDLE) : &
e Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358). o OKBAREFUEHHE358E) ©
During the reporting period, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, R¥EEIME - BEFFTFAA - NEE L T HER

#
the Group was not aware of significant non-compliance issues in this ~ RREFTEFEERNEREH °
regard.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions

Environmental Impacts from Operations and Mitigation
Measures

We have held regular on-site meeting overseen by the project
environmental management team to check if there is significant
environmental impact, risk and non-compliance in order to manage
and control on-site environmental impacts. Besides, some of our
projects also follow the requirements of the Building Environmental
Assessment Method (BEAM Plus) for New Building, which is a green
building initiative introduced by the Hong Kong Green Building
Council.

Air Emissions

Dust is generated from construction activities and material
transportation. We introduce mitigation measures in our construction
process. For example, demolition works areas are sprayed with
water or dust suppression chemicals, open burning is prohibited,
regularly maintained for equipment and vehicles. We conduct regular
dust concentration monitoring during the construction period for
required projects. Besides, the use of mobile vehicle is another
source of air emission. During the reporting period, the Group's air
pollutant emissions are as follows:

Air Pollutant Emissions’

RIEEHR®)

BRI
EEELNREVERRBIER

BAZBEERTHESE  AEERREEBRNKE
1 RERSAERREFE REBRIER A
EETEMERER  NEERES THIRRR
& o s FFIEE D A B TRE MR AR IR Y (BEAM
Plus) i i SEMME - HRBARCRERS
TTERBRERER

ZRBEH

BEEZHRMERSELER - RPIEZEE
RRETREER - 20IME - ERKTREE
KRR - ZIFBARE - WEMEERE
FOEEE o FAIFE e T AR ¥ P 5 1R BT E A
EIRREER - UbS - AR ERE AR
WE—KR RBSHE ~AEBRELENZER
RPN

ZERITRUBER

Nitrogen oxide (NO,) kilograms
AEY) (NOY Fr
Sulphur dioxide (SOy) kilograms
&t (SO T
Particulate matter (PM) kilograms
FERLY) (PM) TR

Compared with data in 2020, some of the air pollutant emissions
increased. This was because some business operations was
recovering from the effect of COVID-19 pandemic, the travel distance
of the Group’s vehicles increased as a result.

! The data cover emissions from diesel consumption of the Group's vehicles. It is
estimated based on “How to prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)

GHG Emissions

Climate change and global warming topics have made increasing
concerns in recent years. We strive to reducing carbon dioxides and
other GHG emissions in our daily operations. During the reporting
period, the Group’'s GHG emissions are as follows:

GHG Emissions?

BE HBERELIRS

RIEEHR®)

BErk Y ()

B SRR HE Ak

MER - RIS CMERERMBERART T -
BMBNEREEER RS SR EEMAE
FEMPEN - RREHH - AEENRERES
¢ UNNE

mE RN

Scope 14 tonnes CO,-equivalent 98.16 118.86
#E— AE—ELREE

Scope 2° tonnes CO,-equivalent 133.55 55.21
HE—° AP RE=R

Total tonnes CO,-equivalent 231.71 174.07
st AM_FRES

Intensity tonnes CO,-equivalent per square meter¢ 0.066 0.15
BE BEFRAB_FREEC

Emission arising from indirect emission generated by electricity
consumptions (Scope 2) significantly increased compared to data in
2020, which contributed to around 58% of our total emissions during
the reporting period. This was because the total floor area of offices
included in the reporting scope has significantly increase this year,
as well. The following GHG management measures are implemented:

J Seek and explore operating measures that can efficiently
reduce GHG emissions;

o Adopt sustainable technologies to offset inevitable emissions;
and

o Encourage and educate employees to participate in
environmental protection activities and related eco-friendly
practices.

g The figures covered the direct and indirect GHG emissions from the Group’s
business in Hong Kong. The calculation method of the corresponding GHG
emission figures and the emission factors used in the calculation are based on
“How to Prepare an ESG Reports” issued by the Stock Exchange and its annex
“Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”, and the latest
sustainability report published by the CLP Power Hong Kong Limited.

S The figures were restated.

4 Scope 1: The direct emission from the business operations owned or controlled
by the Group, such as emissions from diesel combustion.

g Scope 2: The “indirect energy” emissions from the internal purchased electricity
consumption by the Group.

& The Group's total floor area of the reported boundaries were approximately

3,534.03 and 1,178 square meter in 2021 and 2020 respectively.
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BE HBERELIRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)

GHG Emissions (continued)

The Group will continue to assess, record and disclose our GHG
emissions annually, and hope to establish clear responsibilities
bearing system for fulfilling the emission policies and goals. We will
review goals and policies regularly, and refine the data collection
system and develop reduction strategy if appropriate based on
projection of data in the coming years.

Waste and Wastewater Management

The Group acknowledges possible environmental impacts of waste
generated during its operations such as site clearance, excavation
works, and construction and fitting out works. The Group is
committed to reducing its impact on the environment by managing
its waste in an efficient and sustainable manner as stated in the
Waste Management Policy. Each member of the Group, as well as
subcontractors, should take reasonable steps to avoid the generation
of waste by well planning of the works. The following hierarchy of
options should be considered on waste management:

Reduce — Avoid generation of waste to reduce total waste
production;

o Re-use — Encourage reusing the construction materials and
tools before disposal;

o Recycle — Segregate waste and mixed construction waste for
effective recycling;

o Disposal — Avoid unorganized random disposal of waste and
dispose of waste to comply with statutory and regulatory
regulations; and

o Goals — Set suitable goals and targets in the coming financial
years to ensure continuous improvement of waste
management.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Waste Management by Recycling

We use resources according to needs and try our best to practice
the three principles of “reduce”, “reuse” and “recycle”. We are
committed to encouraging enterprises and employees to come up
with more innovative solutions for waste recycling in order to make
good use of resources. With the support of customers and project
teams along the value chain, we believe this collaborative approach
is moving towards a greener future, benefiting the industry and
society, and showing results.

On our office work, we pay much attention on the Waste Electrical
and Electronic Equipment (WEEE). For instance, we donate WEEE
such as computer, printer, photocopiers, kettles or microwave ovens
to charitable organizations or send them to recyclers for processing.
Looking ahead, the Group will continue refining its wastes reduction
measures and disclose relevant results where appropriate. The
Group will seek continuous improvement in waste management
performance by setting appropriate goals and objectives throughout
the organization.

During the reporting period, wastes generated by the Group’s offices
are as follows:
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Types of Waste
EEZE Y3 5l
Non-hazardous wastes® tonnes
EEREREY) AE
Intensity tonnes per square meter?
GalE GF RN
U The figures were restated.
8 The figure covers the paper consumption in the Group's offices.
2 The Group's total floor area of the reported boundaries were approximately

3,534.03 and 1,178 square meter in 2021 and 2020 respectively.

8.64

0.0073
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BE HBERELIRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Waste Management by Recycling (continued)

Since all the wastes are treated and settled by fixed monthly
payment by our subcontractors for the projects, we do not engage in
the waste management process of the project and do not obtain
related data for the project site. To the best of our Directors’
knowledge, the Group was not aware of any significant amount of
hazardous wastes generated in our projects and offices, and during
the reporting period, there were 98 toner cartridges used in our
record, and were all collected by qualified suppliers for recycling. We
were also not aware of any significant amount of wastewater
generated since not much water was consumed given our business
nature. The water supply in our office is also managed by the
landlord. We have no related consumption data on freshwater.
Looking ahead, the Group will continue to monitor if any significant
hazardous waste and wastewater generated from our business, and
review our current wastage and wastewater management system
coverage when appropriate.

Use of Resources

Energy Efficiency

As stated in our Energy Management Policy, we aim to improve
energy efficiency as a continuous improvement process. We strive
for conserving energy through the following measures in our office:

o Maintain a reasonable indoor temperature between 24-26
Degree Celsius while turning on air-conditioners;

o Electrical appliances shall be turned off if not in use;

o Turn off lighting and air-conditioners in rooms that are not in
use or during non-office hours;

o Select energy-efficient electrical appliances with “Grade1”
energy label;

o Promote the use of energy-saving light source instead of using
incandescent lightbulb; and

J Computers are set to idle-mode automatically.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Energy Consumption and Intensity

During the reporting period, the Group’s energy consumption data
are as follows:

Energy Consumption

BE HBERELIRS

RIEEHR®)
EREH(8)
EEEERBE
RIBEHAR]  ANEMO RN ESENT -

HERHAE 1
Direct energy consumption MWh
BHEERER K LB
Diesel litres
S8 T
Indirect energy consumption Mwh
BRI H IK Fr B
Electricity MWh
B JKE B
Total MWh
At JKE B
Intensity MWh per square meter'?
=nE BRI KRIKE B2

The electricity consumption significantly increased compared to data
in 2020. This was because the total floor area of offices included in
the reporting scope has significantly increased this year.

Water Efficiency

Under the effect of global warming, we understand that water
resources are precious, and particularly concerned about the water
stress in different regions. Our Group's fresh water is supplied by the
Water Suppliers Department and managed by the landlord of our
office. Therefore, there is no issue in sourcing water and no related
consumption data. Looking ahead, the Group will continue refining
measures and evaluate the related results achieved.

0 The figures covered the direct and indirect energy consumption in the Group’s
offices in Hong Kong, the calculation of GHG emissions is made reference to the
Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in
Hong Kong published by the Environmental Protection Department, and the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department.

o The figures were restated.

- The Group's total floor area of the reported boundaries were approximately
3,534.03 and 1,178 square meter in 2021 and 2020 respectively.

2020"

—ECEEM

376 483
36,981 45,072
361 149
361 149
737 632
0.21 0.54
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BE HBERELIRS

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Material Consumption

In our office, one of the major materials consumed is paper. We aim
to maintain a paperless office unless it is necessary. To mitigate the
environmental impacts of material consumptions, we implement the
following practices in office:

o Set up recycling boxes near the photocopiers to collect single-
sided paper for reuse and both-sided used paper for recycling;

o Strictly control the use and order of material, such as concrete,
steel, solvent, paint to avoid surplus waste;

o Use of double-sided photocopying and email to reduce the
consumption of paper; and

o Encourage staff to reuse stationery and materials such as used
envelopes, document folders and binding material.

During the reporting period, the data of the Group’s paper
consumption and recycle amount in the offices are as follows:

RIEEHR®)

BEREM (#)

YIRH #E

ERMOPAE  HRNEIBYH 2 —RER-
FRBERARIN - I B RERFEA D
RREMHERERRENTZE  HHERQ
HeIA TG

=8
o HEEIMHIREDWA - AKRSEBEEAR
HEM - WRELEBERETEY ;

o ERMBIEHDERL - M RE - MRFWH
BERKETR - BRRBRIRE

s FERAYEFIHREFEMN  WRIHARHE
# K

. BBEIERXARDK - FIMEERNOE
5« PSRRI -

R|BEMRE - AEENRAZRARENDKEH
3NN

Paper Consumption tonnes
R#E N
Paper Recycled tonnes
HoRE Y= NI

Packaging materials
Given the Group's nature of business, our operations do not involve
in any significant consumption of packaging materials.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Climate Change

Climate change is one of the biggest global challenges faced by the
society nowadays, and we must act now for our climate and our
communities. In recent years, extreme weather, such as strong
winds and heavy rainfall, as well as tides and floods, have become
the focus of news. Logistics and supply chains are particularly
vulnerable. Heavy rainfall, rising tides, and floods can cause serious
damage to assets such as buildings, warehouses, and goods in
storage, resulting in financial losses. Although such incidents are
beyond everyone's control, the Group believes that all stakeholders
should work together to address climate change.

As part of the group-level measures, our preliminary study of climate
forecast planning has revised the extreme weather section of the
group’s emergency response plan to identify relevant physical risks
and areas for improvement, for example, upgrading the current
facility management model to more effectively prepared for extreme
wind and flood events. In the coming years, our ESG Working Group
will plan for further explore and conduct climate-related studies on
business operations.

In response to the Paris Agreement, the Hong Kong Government
issued the “"Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan”, and formulated
various plans and actions, setting out the vision of “Zero-carbon
Emissions, Liveable City, Sustainable Development”. The Government
has determined to set medium-term goal as halving Hong Kong's
total carbon emissions from 2005 levels before 2035. The Hong Kong
Governments have also announced that they will strive to achieve
carbon neutrality by 2050. In the context of the global transition to a
low-carbon economy, the Group has also identified potential risks
associated with regulatory, technological, market and reputational
aspects specific to the location in which we operate. We will
integrate these identified risks into our business strategy, integrate
assessment and its results into the business risk management
framework, and continuously and regularly update and identify,
assess and manage various risks.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Climate Change (continued)

We formulated the “Climate Change Risk Management Policy”, to
outline that the Group has understood climate-related risks and
opportunities relevant to our business operations. We are committed
to identifying and managing climate-related risks and impacts, and
formulate relevant climate strategies based on business needs. We
strive to work with stakeholders along the value chain and a practical
action plan includes:

Establish and continue to update carbon emission inventory,
as a benchmark to set up carbon reduction strategies and
emission reduction targets;

Provide professional construction services from the
perspective of environmental protection, and committed to
reducing its related pollutions;

Set GHG reduction target, achieved by measures such as
controlling paper consumption, office temperature, vehicles
emissions, etc.;

Ensure that all subcontractors abide by the “Climate Change
Risk Management Policy” during works, and implement
measures to ensure employees strictly follow the policy;,

Whenever feasible, encourage employees, suppliers and
contractors to reduce their carbon footprints in daily
operations; and

Ensure that at least 80% of the raw materials of wood products
used in our operations come from high-quality wood certified
by the Forest Stewardship Council.

The “Climate Change Risk Management Policy” sets a framework for
the Group’s climate change strategy, and we will update every year
based on the actual situation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)

Climate Change (continued)

Apart from the potential additional costs arising from the
requirements or expectations of relevant laws and regulations, Hong
Kong currently does not have a carbon tax or carbon emission cap,
while in mainland China, carbon tax and carbon emission limit only
cover the energy and industrial industries for the time being.
Currently, there are no direct impacts due to GHG emissions.
However, since the Hong Kong Monetary Authority has announced
that the Hong Kong Government is studying the possibility of Hong
Kong as a regional carbon trading centre, and the scope of carbon
tax and carbon emission restrictions in the mainland China will
continue to expand, it may eventually affect the upstream supply
chain (such as raw material suppliers) and indirectly affect other
costs. The table below summarizes the key transitional risks
identified based on the inherent risk assessment and the associated
responses. Risk assessments use a short to medium-term expected
time scope.

Identified major transitional risks
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Measures
FEd i

Policies . In response to the Paris Agreement, e
the Hong Kong Government issued
the "Hong Kong's Climate Action e
Plan”, and formulated various plans
and actions, setting out the vision of
"Zero-carbon Emissions, Liveable
City, Sustainable Development”. The
Government has determined to set
medium-term goal as halving Hong
Kong's total carbon emissions from
2005 levels before 2035. The Hong
Kong Governments have also
announced that they will strive to
achieve carbon neutrality by 2050.
EREBNAEECERBE)  BRT o
(BBERBRITHER)  FIHSIETE o
MITE) - 5] NHER [ TR 6
HEHEERINES EPEH
BHITEERNFBHEE £2F
—HFRIEEENRERNEER -
TREKEFY EBBRNEIREEM
BHRNFENR _ZERSFRIBHEF

Gl

KR .

Formulate the “Climate Change Risk Management
Policy”

Consider purchasing electric vehicles, and
gradually replace vehicles using fossil fuels
combustion (e.g. diesel)
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Climate Change (continued)

Construction .

54

Identified major transitional risks
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in the construction industry
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With the commitment of the Hong
Kong Government to adopt green
buildings in the public sector, we
need to prepare resources and
expertise in response to changing
customer expectations and market
demands, to respond to new trends

RIEEHR®)
Rz ()

Measures
FE i $ i

Use new methods and technology in construction
Strategically use new construction technology, to
fulfill customers’ expectation

The market continues to invent new technologies,
utilizing advanced construction technologies
where feasible to communicate more effectively
and make accurate decisions during construction,
thereby reducing redo, waste and dangers.

Some projects have passed the BEAM and/or
Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design
(LEED) or green projects that meet equivalent
standards.
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RIEEHR®)
RiEB L (2)

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (continued)
Climate Change (continued)

Measures
FE$ i

Identified major transitional risks

B W Bl B9 = IR R M LB

Insurance ° Regulatory disclosure requirements e The Group will closely monitor the prudent
for climate change are getting strict. financial management related to climate change
. Require financial management of and disclose relevant laws and regulations

climate change through stress tests development.

. Establish ESG Working Group to discuss and
identify various risks and promote various
measures

R e RAEEMHEERBERBBEE o FAEEERIERSARRGECNFEMBE
o LsRiFE RER B RARE L ETTR BREEERNER
BERE o VIRMR - @ REBRIENUTREHEANE
T B, f AN HE B - TR S BE
Head office . Regulatory disclosure requirements e Closely monitor the regulatory disclosure
for climate change are getting strict requirements and formulate plans for regularly
carry out relevant risk assessments
BIRER e SREFBHMETERBEREREE o SUEREEERRIRUHETSIATRHETS

Over the years, we have been expanding our business though
different opportunities, accelerating transformation and making the
Group smarter and greener, safer for employees and users (under
the COVID-19 pandemic, we are using more digital platforms such as
video conferencing instead of in-person meetings to reduce carbon
emissions from transportation). The transformation has made our
operation and facilities more sustainable, which demonstrate our
commitment on resources and environmental protection.

Gl e

ZER BA—BENMNBTRAKEBHRER - MR
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BE HBERELIRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS

Our People

Employment

The Group understand that employees are one of the most important
success factors and our key assets to hold a leading and reputable
position in the industry. Our success hinges on our employees’
provision of consistent, quality and reliable services, and this holds
true for both technical and support staff of all levels. We consider
human resource as the most important asset and we put staff
development on top of the list while fulfilling our Company’s
sustainability journey. To meet the needs of our sustainable growth
and business development, we regularly assess our colleague’s
developmental needs to ensure everyone, including the top
management, is receiving support to achieve their top potential and
self-actualisation. We strive to provide work-life balance with a
variety of different activities for our employees whom we regard as
family.

Policies

Our Employee Handbook sets out the details on remuneration,
dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working hours, rest periods,
diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination, and formulates
corresponding policies on the above aspects to standardise various
human resources management measures and practices.

Employment Management

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group generally recruits our employees from the open market
and by referrals. We are committed to attract and retain employees
to provide service for us. Based on sustainable benchmark,
department heads evaluate human resources and decide whether
recruitment is needed for our business development. The Group has
formulated specific evaluation benchmark, for making an objective
and fair selection of each applicant, in order to select talents who
are suitable for the needs of the job, so as to avoid any possible
employment disputes. In order to attract and retain employees, the
Group emphasise the importance of development and growth of
employees. The promotion of employee is based on their
performance and capability. Performance appraisal is conducted
regularly to evaluate employees’ performance regarding working
attitude, technical skills, interpersonal skills, etc. We also develop
incentive programs to reward staff for excellent performance and
attitude. For details, please refer to the section headed “Staff
development and training”.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employment Management (continued)

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal (continued)

The dismissal or voluntary termination of employee’s contracts shall
be enforced according to the employment laws and regulations in
Hong Kong. Relevant procedures of voluntary termination of
employment contract are clearly stated in the Employee Handbook.
If an employee has any serious misconduct, such as serious violation
of the content of the employment contract, occupational misconduct
or misbehaviour, frequent neglect of duty, etc., the Group will not
tolerate once it is verified, and the employee involved may face
immediate dismissal. Moreover, The Group will arrange exit interview
for exit employees, hoping to provide an opportunity to discuss the
employee’s past experience working with the company. Information
is thus collected for future reference in functional and welfare
benefit establishment and system improvements.

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group is committed to investing resources to create a safe and
harmonious, fair and equal working environment, ensuring that
employees are treated equally in every aspect of their jobs. We are
actively developing various skills of employees and granting different
forms of job opportunities to enable employees to accumulate
relevant work experience in the Group. We hold a respectful attitude
towards employees, customers and applicants and adopt an
employee diversity policy to create a work environment that is
capable and culturally diverse. Moreover, we are committed to
providing a discrimination-free working environment. We will never
tolerate any form of discrimination or harassment.

We will never tolerate any discrimination or harassment based on
gender, physical fitness, intelligence, race, age, sexual orientation,
nationality, religion, family status, etc. It applies to all aspects in
employment, including but not limited to recruitment, promaotion,
transfer, job assignment, rewards and welfare benefits, training and
development, suspension, etc. We provide channels to promote
open and transparent multi-directional communications within the
Company. We have established a whistle-blowing policy for
employee to report any unethical behaviour and other misconduct in
workplace.
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BE HEREIHGE

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued) HEREE®)
Employment Management (continued) EREE &)

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination FPEHRE  ZBRAERRER(E)
(continued)

Employment profile during the reporting period as follow: HEHENEEERNT
Employment Profile EEHR

Workforce distribution

As at 31 December™

By Gender =B

Male B 186 180
Female egi 78 74
By Age Group RER

Below 30 0BT 88 84
30-49 30-49 128 132
50 or over 50k A 48 38
By Employment Type ZEEER

Permanent 2% 260 254
Part-time FEE 4 0
By Geographical Region & it 35

Hong Kong B 264 254
Mainland China R g 0 0
Other Hih 0 0
Total “at 264 254
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employment Management (continued)

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination
(continued)

The Group strictly abides by related laws and regulations, including
but not limited to:

Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57),

J Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282);

o Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485);
o Construction Workers Registration Ordinance (Cap. 583);

o Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608),

. Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480);

. Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487),

o Family Status Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 527), and

o Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602).

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
significant non-compliance case on employment practices.

Employee Retention

Remuneration, Welfare and Compensation

We establish labour contracts with each of our employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws. The remuneration
package which we offer to employees includes salary, discretionary
year-end bonuses, discretionary incentive bonuses, and other cash
subsidies. Moreover, to attract and retain talents, the Group offers
competitive remuneration package with a variety of welfare benefits,
including performance-based bonus, Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes, medical insurance, overtime compensation, business
travel allowance for long business trips and night-shift allowance.

We determine the salary of our employees mainly based on their
qualifications, experiences and performance. The performance of
our employees is reviewed regularly for numerous purposes such as
salary adjustments, bonuses and promotions. We intend to maintain
our remuneration packages competitive to attract talented labour in
the construction industry and retain existing staff members for
consistent, quality and reliable services.

13 It includes the employees of the Group only. Workers of the subcontractors are
not included.
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BE HBERELIRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employee Retention (continued)

Rest Period and Working Hours

The Group provides reasonable working hours and rest periods to
employees. All employees are entitled to Public or Statutory Holidays
as announced in The Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Gazette each year. In addition to those
Holidays, employees are entitled to annual leave, sick leave,
compensation leave, paternity leave, maternity leave, marriage
leave, compassionate leave, birthday leave, etc.

Employee activities

To cultivate self-confidence and enhance the sense of belonging and
team spirit of the staff, the Company organise recreational activities
which are beneficial to the body and mind and encourage active
participation of all employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Group organised Chinese New Year Fai Chun making, team building
activities, Nine-Square Division competition, Mid-Autumn Festival
lantern making, Halloween and Christmas activities, etc.

Employee turnover rate during the Reporting Period as follow:

MK = 1

Turnover rate'

HEE@®

AT BEE)

RERHER IR
REBAREEREAENTIRRIKEER - g
BREHZEESBNTHREBRNERESEIMN
NBIETBE - RZEREIN BRESEZEF
B AR HR BER ER BR EEBK
4+ HBREE -

1ER 5%

REABRTIWAEEL  BRETHHREBRREK
Bl ARBEBERT DHRETE - W E
FIERERGSHE - NIEHE AREAKT
MERETRE BFEREY LERLE P
TNERE BESUE - BEF N EREAEHF -

HEHREERKLEWT

By Gender R B

Male B 3.82% 4.06%
Female egi 4.53% 4.07%
By Age Group REwR

Below 30 30BRA T 4.34% 5.16%
30-49 30-49 4.29% 3.18%
50 or above 50 R A 2.66% 5.99%
By Geographical Region % it 35

Hong Kong BB 4.01% 4.17%
Mainland China AR A 0.00% 0.00%
Other Efh 0.00% 0.00%
Overall #Et 4.01% 4.17%

1 Turnover rate = average number of monthly departures in the Reporting Period/ ™ MARR=ERRNAZFIRRIAG BEHRFRA

headcount at the end of the Reporting Period. The Group had a total of 127

employees turnover during the Reporting Period.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employee Retention (continued)

Health and Safety

Health and Safety policy is developed for safeguarding our
employees, and is one of the core values of the Company. We
uphold a strict practical standard and management system on health
and safety issues. Trainings and safety measures are promoted in all
levels of employees to ensure job site safety. The senior project
management staff shall have the responsibility on the
implementation of the safety measures and its operational
effectiveness.

Policies

We develop internal regulations and policies on Industrial Safety
Management, including chapters in Safety Control on Employees,
Safety Control on Workplace, Safety Risks and Responses, Corporate
Safety Plan, and Emergency Response Instructions.

1. Safety and Health Policy
We are committed to develop and achieve a safe working
environment. Safety and Health (S&H) at work is our first
priority over other matters. Our Safety and Health Policy sets
out our commitments and our safety performance goal with
the accident frequency rate not higher than 0.55 per 100,000
man-hours worked.

2. Employee Handbook
We have clearly stated the contingency measures that need to
be implemented in case of work accidents of different severity
in our Employee Handbook, and also require employees to
strictly abide by the rules of no smoking in the workplace to
reduce the risk of work safety hazards and maintain healthy
and comfortable work environment.

Occupational Health and Safety Measures

Owing to the wide variety of our Projects, each Project is required to
develop a Project-specific Safety Plan, overseen by the related
management team and the main contractors. The Corporate Safety
Plan outlines the approaches to coordinate, manage and control the
works in order to protect the safety, health and welfare of all
personnel and the public engaged on the Project or affected by the
operations. It is also established to ensure that all legislation and
contractual requirements are observed.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employee Retention (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)
Our Progress

e

62

Enhancing on-site inspections

In order to enhance the on-site inspections, we establish an
internal safety organisation specialising in managing the
occupational safety issues in Project sites. Our Safety
Supervisors and Officers are responsible for conducting regular
inspections on the Project Safety Plan and safety performance
of each Project site. Safety meetings are held regularly for
reporting any special findings and progresses on the safety
monitoring, and the process is monitored by the Project
Director and Senior Manager.

Emergency preparedness

Emergency Plans are prepared for adverse situation such as
extreme weather and fire event. We encourage the formation
of emergency response unit for projects by main contractors.
Emergency contacts shall be provided by the main contractors
to make sure an effective communication between the
emergency response unit and the workers. In addition, in order
to ensure the effectiveness of the Group’s Fire Emergency
Procedures, we have carried out fire emergency drills during
the reporting period to simulate whether employees can make
timely and appropriate response in accordance with the fire
emergency procedures in the event of a fire in the Group’s
offices. We have reviewed its effectiveness after the drill and
recorded the specific information in the “Corporate Fire Drill
Report”.

Safety training and education

We offered safety training and encouraged our employees to
participate various activities relating to health and safety in
pursuit of enhancing our employees’ safety awareness and
knowledge in accident prevention and handling process. We
ensure that all our employees shall hold a valid mandatory
safety training identification (Green Card) and receive site
safety induction training prior the commencement of works.
Moreover, we also encourage job specific training for workers
engaged in jobs which require necessary safety knowledge.

Health assurance

Health protection and control are necessary for the prevention
of the occupational diseases and accidents. We display the
physical properties, chemical properties, hazards, safe
handling and storage instructions, and precautionary measures
for all hazardous substances through Material Safety Data
Sheets. Protection and mitigation measures are implemented
for common occupational problems related to dust, vigorous
vibration and noise. Moreover, first aid facilities and welfare
facilities are maintained in a hygienic condition and are
applicable under the local legislation.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employee Retention (continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

Our Progress (continued)

5. Accident and incident investigation and reporting
We attach great importance to the safety and health of
frontline workers. After the occurrence of a site accident, a
detailed report shall be completed and submitted to the head
office not later than 2 working days. Senior management and
Safety Officers shall bear the responsibility to investigate all the
occurred accidents and provide corrective action plans and
recommendations as preventive measures to avoid
recurrence.

Safety Performance

Our Projects are subject to certain safety and health requirements
pursuant to the laws in Hong Kong, including but not limited to The
Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59) and The
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509). During the
Reporting Period, there were no confirmed cases of non-compliance
with the regulations. We will continue our efforts to raise safety
awareness amongst our stakeholders and to ensure that we learn
from these events to prevent any reoccurrence. As at the 31
December 2021, the data of the Group’s work-related injuries and
fatalities of the past three reporting years are listed as below:
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BHPREERIKIANTE MR - 4
R EWIR ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬂi&%ﬂﬁ&%l{’ﬁ
ARARZRBATE - aREEBRLEEMERE
BE ﬂ@%ﬁ%’“iﬁ’]?ﬁ& WA EITE
eI NGRS (ERTEDER - LR RBERE
RS -

3

BERBED  RFANBEAETETE2 RE
BRESR - BEBTRNC TR TEELED) (5
59F) MABELRE RIEFRIEH) (B509E) - 3
BN WERERABEROERER - HMIGE
BERNRSENENLZE2ES BRBRAKER
RORERZG  Ah BB REE HE T ——
F+-—A=Z+—8 AEEBE=-EAREFERA
THETHEERRNT

Number of reportable accidents AE2RELHE 6 1 6

Number of fatalities [ARPN 0 0 0
Fatalities rate per 1,000 employee BT EERIAMILT KRS

and workers' 0 0 0

Lost days due to injuries ETHBEIIEAH 589.5 145 No information

provided

mE RS

15 Fatality rate per 1,000 employees and workers =
employees and workers) x 1,000.

(Number of fatality/Daily average

E BTERERERIANTR=ATAS SHFHES
BRI AAZ)X 1,000 °
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BE HBERELIRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employee Retention (continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

Safety Performance (Continued)

Looking ahead, we strive to improve our safety management system.
The Group will continue updating and reviewing our Safety and
Health Policy and our safety targets to strengthen the safety
incentive of our frontline workers and enhance the awareness of
safety in work environment. Effective safety trainings and
communications will be upheld by providing more meetings and
discussions on the inspections and evaluation for improvements.

Staff Development and Training

The Group believes that employees are our most important assets to
our prosperity. The Group has formulated staff development and
training policies, and consolidate the variety of trainings provided to
staff into the following categories:

o Induction training for new employees

The new induction training provided by the Group aims to help
new employees understand the company, including general
human resources policies, salary payment procedures, welfare
benefits, office safety regulations, etc. Moreover, all new
employees will receive annual training on anti-harassment,
anti-discrimination, anti-corruption and data security on the
first day of work commencement.

o Internal trainings

In order to meet the training and business needs of employees,
the Group has organised various internal training programs
related to their work. The programs aim to promote the
personal development of employees in different positions in
the Group, and to help enhance and develop the skills and
potentials of employees.

o External trainings

The Group actively encourages employees to take external
courses that meet job requirements and service needs. Related
programs include functional enhancement training courses,
sub-professional development programs, various seminars and
conferences, etc.

Besides the above work-related trainings, sense of belongings and
cohesion are also highly valued. We strive to maintain a good
working relationship with our employees, and we provide a peaceful
and harmonic working environment for them. During the Reporting
Period, there were no strike, labour dispute, discrimination and
harassment cases occurred.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employee Retention (continued)

Staff Development and Training (continued)

Learning and Career Development

In order to be consistent with our sustainable development and
business needs, we highly valued training and employee
development. The Group has provided the following types of training
to employees of all levels and categories:

. induction training for new employees,

J technical training;

. occupational health and safety training;

. managerial and professional skills training;

o team building technigue and activities; and

During the Reporting Period, the Group had offered a total of 722.5
training hours. The details are as follows:

external trainings
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AUABRMIRERERERES  RAEESE
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)8 TIRMIA T REEE

o FESABEY
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o  BERERLTEY
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Percentage of Employee 2020"
Receiving Training' ZifEEF AL —ECEEV
By Gender gkl
Male B 37.63% 74.59%
Female 7 27.50% 76.71%
By Employment Categories REEER
Manager or above LIRS A E 26.98%  No information
provided
AR
Supervisor or above FEHALE 86.36%  No information
provided
ERHR
Operator/Support Level BEB 1B E YR 23.95%  No information
provided
AR
Overall = 34.67% 75.20%
it Percentage of trained employee = Total number of employees received training % RIEEE D =MEBMZIEELBBINER B -

during the Reporting Period/Total number of employees. Since the current data
are based on the number of attendance of people, the result will be higher than
the number of employees. Hence, some ratios are higher than 100%.

W The Percentage of trained employees in 2020 was restated.

BB AEBAARSE  BEeLEEARAZ - B
It - #BAD LE R ZH 100% ©

i R TEERIIEERAOLEKEER -
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BE HBERELIRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employee Retention (continued)
Staff Development and Training (continued)
Learning and Career Development (continued)

HEE@®

AT EEE)
BT RRRIEIN(E)
SEHB TR (F)

2021 2020"

Hours per Hours per

employee employee

—E_—fF —E_EFV

Average Training Hours™ F TG 8 HEES R ES

By Gender ZiER

Male B 3.08 3.61

Female pegca 1.56 3.50
By Employment Categories RERER

Manager or above IR A 2.13  No information

provided

mER RS

Supervisor or above FEHU E 8.95  No information

provided

A RHR R

Operator/Support Level BRIEB 158 E 1.17  No information

provided

O RHR R

Overall 2 2.64 3.58

During the Reporting Period, the Group has limited its staff training
programme under the COVID-19 pandemic situation to mitigate the
risks of employees from contracting the virus. The Group, however,
will adjust the arrangements of training programme depending on
the pandemic situation to ensure the rights and opportunities of staff
training and development.

7 The Percentage of trained employees in 2020 was restated.
1 Average training hours = Total training hours during the Reporting Period/Total
number of employees.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Employee Retention (continued)

Labour Standards

Prohibition of Child and Forced Labour

As a conscience employer, the Group prohibits any form of
discrimination and forced labour and has formulated relevant
policies to avoid hiring child labour and prevent forced labour. We
have taken all practicable steps to prevent having illegal immigrants
from being on site and prevent illegal workers who are not lawfully
employable from taking employment on site. Our Human Resources
Officers inspect, take record and check the original identification
document of workers and check if workers are registered
construction workers under the Construction Workers Registration
Ordinance. The Group firmly refuses to employ any child below the
legal age and will never tolerate any behaviour that exploits the
rights of children. We also require our subcontractors to hire
employees who are lawfully employable to work on sites. Moreover,
the Group will only establish an employment relationship under the
consent of both employers and employees, and will never allow any
coercion or violence to force employees to work. The Group will
regularly review relevant employment policies and regulations to
reduce the possibility of hiring child labour or forced labour. If child
labour or forced labour is found in the working area of the Group,
including our sites, we must take relevant measures to follow up
seriously.

The Group strictly abides, including but not limited to the
Employment Ordinance and the Immigration Ordinance (Cap. 115),
Convention Concerning Forced or Compulsory Labour. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any significant non-
compliance case relating to child labour and forced labour.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Operating Practices

Our Supply Chain

Responsible Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to building lasting and constructive
relationships with partners in its supply chain. The Group’s supply
management policies and internal guidelines specify our dedication
to a fair, transparent and competitive procurement process which
requires all employees to observe the highest standards of business
integrity and to comply with relevant laws and regulations.

Supplier and Subcontractor Engagement

68

Supplier

The suppliers of goods and services to the Group mainly
include (i) raw materials; (ii) furnitures; and (iii) tailor-made
accessories. The materials we purchased mainly included
wood, stone and metal. We will conduct supplier evaluation for
new suppliers when the customers nominate a particular
supplier for certain materials, and we also have internal list of
approved suppliers for the selection of suppliers when
purchasing materials. The list is reviewed and updated annually
according to the performance of the material suppliers. At
least three suppliers’ quotations are obtained if no exclusive
supplier is suggested by the customer. When selecting
suppliers, we will fully consider the relevant environmental and
social risks, and with reference to criteria including, (i) quality
of materials provided; (i) punctuality in delivery; (iii) price; and
(iv) service quality; the Group will also prioritise suppliers that
provide environmentally friendly materials or services.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Operating Practices (continued)
Our Supply Chain (continued)
Supplier and Subcontractor Engagement (continued)

Subcontractor

We may delegate part of our installation or other technical
works to our subcontractors; we are then responsible for the
site supervision, management of subcontractors and overall
project management. Regarding building construction works,
we engage subcontractors on a contract by contract basis and
depending on the types of work required, by trades of work in
the projects such that normally each subcontractor is only
responsible for one trade of work, can then decide if further
subcontracting is necessary. In order to effectively control and
monitor the environmental and social risk along our supply
chain, we clearly asked for strict compliance on safety and
environmental requirements on our contracts to ensure that
the Project is performed in accordance with the relevant
specifications with our customers. Our subcontractors need to
report regularly to our Group about the progress of works.

We approved and shortlisted the qualified subcontractors from
time to time with reference to factors such as (i) quotation; (ii)
expertise and performance; (iii) service quality; (iv) defects
liability period; and (v) availability.

We continue monitoring the performance of suppliers and
subcontractors on our internal approved list regularly through project
inspection and compliance of requirement, and update our approved
list according to the evaluation result.

As at the 31 December 2021, we have a total of 500 suppliers and
subcontractors. Amongst them, 490 are from Hong Kong; whilst 10
are from the PRC. During the Reporting Period, all of our suppliers
are managed in accordance with the above practices.
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BE HBERELIRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

Oour customers

Product Responsibility

Projects and Services Quality

o Quality Policy
Our Quality Policy sets out our commitment to provide high
quality services to all our customers on time and within budget
to ensure continual improvements on the road to meeting all
reasonable customer needs and expectations.

o Quality management system and safety
To maintain consistent quality and safety of services for
customers, the Group has established a formal quality
management system, which is certified to be in compliance
with the requirements of ISO 9001:2015. During the quality
assurance process, we perform sampling, quality verification,
surveying, data analysis and review for improvement on
production stage such as designing and developing, resource
purchasing, product realisation and customer communication.

Our Quality Assurance Managers bear the responsibility to
monitor and supervise the Project Quality Plans for assigned
projects in light of the contract, and actively promote approved
quality concepts and procedure in order to ensure the quality
management system are correctly adopted and implemented
in our business operations. We will conduct management
review with all key management staff on the continuing
suitability, adequacy and effectiveness of the quality policy and
objectives at least once every year.

Products Return and Recall Policy

As the Group is mainly engaged in decoration services, and repair
and maintenance services, our business does not involve any
product production and manufacturing, so there is no relevant policy
for product return and recall.

Complaints Handling

We established customer communication channels including mail,
e-mail, fax and telephone meetings to receive service and product
enquiries. Also, we have complaints handling procedures in place to
provide guidelines for our employees on handling customer feedback
including complaints. During the Reporting Period, there was no
complaint received.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

our customers (continued)

Product Responsibility (continued)

Intellectual Property, Marketing and Labelling

The Group's business does not involve research and development,
product packaging and labelling activities. Besides, the Group does
not rely heavily on marketing and advertising. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not aware of any significant impact relating to
intellectual property, advertising and labelling on its operations. We
will continue to closely monitor the business environment to identify
any significant risks in this area.

Customer Information Protection and Privacy

The Group strives to protect the privacy of its customers, business
partners and staff in the collection, processing and use of their
business or personal data. The Group has formulated personal data
privacy policy and confidentiality requirements for company
confidential information in the Employee Handbook, and ensures
company policies strictly follow Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486) of the Hong Kong SAR government.

Protection of confidential business information, trade secret and
customers’ privacy is of paramount importance to the Group's
interests and success. The Group requires all employees to maintain
the confidentiality of company information by signing the Non-
Disclosure Agreement. Our employees are required to keep
confidential on information consisting of but not necessarily limited
to (i) technical information; (i) business development plans; and (i)
investor and customer lists. For all documents and information
belonging to the Group, every employee undertakes to return to the
Group upon termination of the employment with the Group.

Failure to observe the privacy rules may lead to summary dismissal
without compensation by the Company. During the reporting period,
the Group was not aware of any significant non-compliance case in
this regard.
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BE HBERELIRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

our customers (continued)

Business Ethics

The Group is committed to conducting its business with honesty and
zero tolerance on any unethical acts. We will continue to disclose
information openly and transparently in comply with legal
requirements.

Policies and Preventive Measures

The Group has formulated anti-corruption and bribery policy, which
clearly stated the definition of corruption and bribery and sets out
certain preventive and monitoring measures. Our commitments and
values are guided by the Employee Handbook and supplemented by
different policies. These policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to ensure appropriate ethical business
practices and behaviour as well as compliance with corporate and
regulatory requirements.

o Employee Handbook
Our Employee Handbook sets out principles and code of
conduct for acting responsibly in a professional manner in daily
operations, including issues related to business ethics, conflicts
of interest, bribery, and confidentiality in the workplace.

. Conflict of Interest Procedure
The Conflict of Interest Procedure is established to prevent,
detect or deter inappropriate activity. On the commencement
of the employment, each employee is required to sign the
Company's statement of policy governing “Conflicts of
Interest”. We believe that it could safeguard the interests of the
company and customers, and maintain a good professional
image and professional ethics.

J Anti-Fraud Procedure
Our Anti-Fraud Procedure includes establishment of
communication channels and reporting system to encourage
employees to express their concerns on suspected case of
corruption. Our management team will investigate the case
fairly and seek help from Independent Commission Against
Corruption (ICAC) and the police if appropriate.

The Group strictly abides by the laws and regulations relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in Hong Kong,
including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201). During the
reporting period, the Group was not aware of any significant non-
compliance case or related corruption litigation case in this regard.
Despite the fact that we were not able to arrange anti-corruption
training for directors and staff of the Group during the Reporting
Period due to COVID-19 pandemic, we still stress the importance of
anti-corruption and the severity of consequences that any corruption
activities may lead to.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OUR SOCIETY

Community Investment

The Group is committed to active participation and support of
initiatives that benefit the communities. It has always been our
mission to contribute to our homeland to fostering harmonious
relationships with people and promote the development of our
society. Therefore, we invest in resources and hope to share our
success with our society. In terms of our office operations, we pay
much attention on the reuse and recycling of Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment (WEEE). For instance, we donate WEEE such as
computers, printers, photocopiers, kettles or microwave ovens to
charitable organisations or send them to recyclers for processing.

Our voluntary team

Our motto and spirit in volunteerism is — “Responsibility is Vital,
Achievement originates from Giving”. Our volunteer team
participates regularly in community service to serve and help those
who are in need. We provide incentives and facilitation measures to
encourage our employees and their family members, as well as
working partners, to participate in volunteering services, making
contribution to the local community.

Our volunteer team have participated in volunteering activities over
a wide variety of target groups, including schools, patients and
people suffering from poverty and we cooperate with organisations
such as, Food Angel, Hong Kong Red Cross etc. when delivering our
community services during the Reporting Period.

Corporate Giving and Social Responsibilities

We are committed to bear the social responsibilities and contribute
to the society by our strengths and resources, such as providing
cash or supplies donation to non-profit-making organisations. We
also propose community partnership projects and use our business
expertise to provide voluntary support to non-profit organisations.

Our Contribution

During the Reporting Period, the Group has contributed HKD17,870
in various areas, including community, education, public welfare, etc.
We have had a total of 100 volunteers contributed 360 hours in
participation of the community services as mentioned above.
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BE HBERELIRS

OUR SOCIETY (continued)
Awards and Recognitions

The Group’s efforts have been recognised by a number of awards

during the Reporting Period. The details are as follows:

Awards and Recognitions

RERZA

S ok -4 )

IR A

RIBERRE - AEEOS HEL S ABBHNS T -
ZEMT -

Given by
il

Hong Kong Green Organisation (2019-2022)
ERGEORBE(ZE-NEFET-_F)

Wastewi$e Certificate
REEEE

Energywise Certificate

EiREEE

BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards 2020

RIRE B EIRIRE L AR EE2020

Good MPF Employer Award 2020/21

2020/21 & iF R =

Industry Cares Recognition Scheme — 3+ Year Award
(Enterprise Group)

TERBOREGE — B OBEFES 3+

Award of Excellence 2020/2021

N w882 2020/2021
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Environmental Campaign Committee
RIREHELZEE

Environmental Protection Department
RIRREE

Environmental Campaign Committee
RREHLEE

Environmental Protection Department
RIRRESE

Environmental Campaign Committee
REEHEEE

Environmental Protection Department
RIGIRESE

Federation of Hong Kong Industries+Bank Of
China (Hong Kong)

BEETHEBE +PRHET(ES)

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
BHIM ARSI EEER

Federation of Hong Kong Industries

BEALERE
The Community Chest of Hong Kong
BE NS



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Chi Chiu (“"Mr. Ng"), aged 49, is the chairman of the Board,
the chief executive officer of the Company, an executive Director
and one of our controlling Shareholders. He was appointed as a
Director on 11 July 2019 and was re-designated as an executive
Director and appointed as the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of our Company on 17 December 2019. He is also
the chairman of the Nomination Committee. He acquired Success
Base Engineering in November 2004 and has been a director of
Success Base Engineering since then. Mr. Ng has been a director of
Team World since its establishment in July 2019. Mr. Ng is
responsible for formulating business plan, engaging in major decision
making and monitoring the overall operation of our Group. Mr. Ng is
the spouse of Ms. Zhao, an executive Director.

Mr. Ng has over 28 years of experience in the fitting-out industry and
project management. After finishing his secondary education, he
entered the fitting-out industry by working in B.S.C. Interior Contract
and Engineering Company Limited, a fitting-out contractor, from April
1991 to September 2001, and his last position held was assistant
project manager. Mr. Ng then worked in New Portfolio Design &
Engineering Company Limited, a fitting-out contractor, from June
2002 to December 2003 as a general manager responsible for
managing fitting-out projects.

Mr. Ng completed his secondary education at Maria College in June
1990.

Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe (“Ms. Zhao"), aged 42, was appointed as
a Director and was re-designated as an executive Director on 17
December 2019. She joined the Group in July 2012 as an
administration manager of Success Base Engineering and held such
position till September 2017. Ms. Zhao has been a director of
Success Base Engineering since January 2018. Ms. Zhao is
responsible for overseeing the financial, administrative and
operational matters of our Group. Ms. Zhao is the spouse of Mr. Ng,
an executive Director and one of our controlling Shareholders.

Ms. Zhao obtained an adult higher education certificate in art and
design from the Shenzhen University in July 2005. She is a licensed
individual insurance agent in Hong Kong.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREREEERBE

Ms. Ho Nga Ling (“Ms. Ho"), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director on 1 September 2020. Ms. Ho has substantial
experience in providing financial and commercial real estate advisory
services. She has been a director of ELN Ventures Limited since May
2020, China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce Hong Kong and
International Chapter Limited since December 2013, and Prosperfect
Finance Advisor (Hong Kong) Company Limited since January 2013.

Ms. Ho obtained her Bachelor of Science from Purdue University of
United States in December 2002.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chan Ming Yim (“Mr. Chan”), aged 54, was appointed as a
Director and was re-designated as a non-executive Director on 17
December 2019. Mr. Chan is responsible for providing professional
opinion and judgment to our Board.

Mr. Chan is experienced in tax matters. Mr. Chan has been the
managing director of Anssen, a tax advisory, since June 2009.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor of business in accountancy from RMIT
University in Melbourne, Australia in September 1993. He is a
committee member of the Australian Chinese Association of Hong
Kong from July 2018 to June 2020, was a member of the taxation
committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce from
January 2019 to December 2019, was the deputy president, the
chairperson of small and medium enterprises committee and a
member of taxation committee and continuing professional
development committee of CPA Australia, from January 2019 to
December 2019. Mr. Chan is currently a member of the CPA
Australia and was the divisional president of Greater China of CPA
Australia in 2021. Mr. Chan is currently a member of the independent
committee for continuous professional training of Hong Kong
Productivity Council.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond (“Dr. Ho"), aged 83, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 16 June 2020. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Dr. Ho is responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to the Board.

Dr. Ho has over 50 years of experience in civil, structural,
environmental and geotechnical engineering industries and has
directly managed a number of mega-sized engineering projects. Dr.
Ho obtained a bachelor of science in engineering from the University
of Hong Kong in November 1963 and a diploma for advanced studies
in engineering and soil mechanics from the Victoria University of
Manchester (currently known as the University of Manchester),
United Kingdom, in July 1964. Dr. Ho received a degree of doctor of
philosophy in civil engineering from the City University of London,
United Kingdom, in June 1971, an honorary degree of doctor of
business administration from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 1999 and an honorary doctor of laws from the University
of Manchester, United Kingdom, in September 2001.

Dr. Ho has been an independent non-executive director of Deson
Development International Holdings Limited (stock code: 262) since
December 1994, GCL-Poly Energy Holdings (stock code: 3800) since
September 2007, Chinlink International Holdings Limited (stock code:
997) since December 2013, AP Rentals Holdings Limited (stock code:
1496) since March 2016, and was an independent non-executive
director of China State Construction International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3311) from June 2005 to June 2019 and an independent
non-executive director of Fu Shek Financial Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2263) from January 2020 to October 2021. Dr. Ho was a non-
executive director and the chairman of the SCUD Group Limited
(currently known as Veson Holdings Limited) (stock code: 1399) from
September 2018 to June 2020. The shares of all the above companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Ho also served as a professional advisor to the Office of the
Ombudsman of Hong Kong from October 2015 to September 2021, a
position in which he previously served from July 1995 to March 2013,
and as the honorary chairman of the Safety advisory committee of
the Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Plant. Dr. Ho was a board member
of the Airport Authority Hong Kong from 2008 to 2014, the Hong
Kong Deputy to the 10th and 11th National People’s Congress of the
PRC, a member of the HKSAR Commission on Strategic Development
from 2007 to 2012, a member of the 1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Legislative
Council (Engineering Functional Constituency) and the council
chairman of the City University of Hong Kong from 1992 to 1994.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFEREREEERBE

Mr. Yip Chun On (“Mr. Yip"), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 June 2020. He is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Yip is responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board.

Mr. Yip has over 20 years of experience in accounting and auditing.
He worked as an auditor for Chan Chee Cheng & Co., a firm of
certified public accountants, from August 1997 to March 2000. He
then worked in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from March 2000 to
November 2003 and his last position held was senior accountant Il.
From April 2004 to January 2005, Mr. Yip worked in CSC Securities
(HK) Limited as an assistant manager in the investment banking
department. From February 2005 to May 2005, Mr. Yip was employed
by the Grant Thornton and worked as a supervisor in the assurance
division. He was the group financial controller and deputy company
secretary at Amco United Holding Limited (stock code: 630) (formerly
known as Guojin Resources Holdings Limited and Jackin International
Holdings Limited), from May 2005 to May 2010. From June 2010 to
October 2015, he worked as an assistant financial controller in
Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 420). Shares of both
Amco United Holding Limited and Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yip has been the
managing director of AdviseOnAir to provide internal control, risk
management review and consulting services since April 2016. Mr.
Yip was assigned to facilitate Qualification Programme of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“QP’") workshop classes
from 2005 to 2019, to perform marking for QP examinations from
2005 to 2019 and to prepare script review reports for QP
examinations from 2008 to 2018. He was a part-time lecturer in the
School of Continuing and Professional Education, City University of
Hong Kong from October 2008 to August 2019.

Mr. Yip was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
China Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 1597),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, on 4
September 2020.

Mr. Yip Chun On was appointed as a chief financial officer of
SinoCloud Group Limited (stock code: SGX: 5EK), a company listed on
the Singapore Exchange Limited, on 1 November 2021.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yip obtained a bachelor of arts in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 1997. He was admitted as
a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
November 2000, and has been an associate of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountant (currently known as the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants) since April 2001. He also completed the
Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures Intermediaries held
by Hong Kong Securities Institute for fundamentals of securities and
futures regulation, financial markets and securities in April 2004.

Prof. Chau Kwong Wing (“Prof. Chau”), aged 61, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 16 June 2020. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. Prof. Chau is
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board.

Prof. Chau has over 35 years of experience in real estate research
and consultancy. He was employed by the University of Hong Kong
as demonstrator in Department of Building from August 1984 to
December 1986, assistant lecturer in the Department of Surveying
from January 1987 to December 1988, lecturer in the Department of
Surveying from January 1989 to October 1994, associate dean in the
Faculty of Architecture from March 1991 to June 1996, senior lecturer
in the Department of Real Estate and Construction from November
1994 t0 June 1998, associate dean in the Faculty of Architecture from
November 1996 to December 1998, professor in the Department of
Real Estate and Construction from July 1998 to October 2000,
associate dean in the Faculty of Architecture from February 1999 to
February 2002, Dean of Faculty of Architecture from February 2002
to February 2006 and Head of Department of Real Estate and
Construction from October 2013 to October 2019. He has been a
chair professor in the Department of Real Estate and Construction
since November 2000. Prof. Chau has also served as guest professor
of Tianjin University, guest professor of Tsinghua University,
consulting professor of South China University of Technology and
visiting professor of Chongging University.

Prof. Chau was appointed by the Hong Kong government to serve as
a member for the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings) from December
2000 to November 2006, the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning)
from October 2006 to September 2012, the Geotechnical Engineers
Registration Committee Panel from January 2008 to January 2012,
the Home Purchase Allowance Appeals Committee Panel from July
2011 to July 2017, the Estate Agent Authority from November 2012 to
October 2018, the Appeal Board Panel under the Urban Renewal
Authority Ordinance from July 2013 to June 2019, the Land and
Development Advisory Committee from July 2015 to June 2021, and
the Task Force on Land Supply from September 2017 to February
2019.
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EFEREREEERBE

Prof. Chau obtained a bachelor of science in building studies in
November 1983, bachelor of building in November 1984 and doctor
of philosophy in November 1991, all from the University of Hong
Kong. He was elected a fellow of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors in November
2001 and August 2002, respectively, and was admitted a fellow of
the Chartered Institute of Building in October 2003. Prof. Chau was
elected president of the Asian Real Estate Society, the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and the Chinese Research Institute of
Construction Management from 1996 to 1997, from 2009 to 2010 and
from 2014 to 2016, respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Man Chun (“Mr. Leung"), aged 45, is the contract
manager of our Group. He joined the Group in June 2008 and is
mainly responsible for monitoring the contract department of the
Group.

Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in the construction
industry and project management. Prior to joining our Group, he
worked as an assistant quantity surveyor for C.S. Toh & Sons &
Associates, a construction cost consultant, from July 1998 to May
1999. He then worked in Pat Davie Limited, a fitting-out contractor,
as an assistant quantity surveyor from May 1999 to June 2000. From
August 2001 to October 2006, he worked in Decca Limited as a
quantity surveyor.

Mr. Leung obtained a higher diploma in building technology and
management in November 1998 and a bachelor of science in
construction economics and management in December 2007, both
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Leung was elected
as a professional member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors in October 2016, and was admitted as a member of the
Australian Institute of Building from July 2017 to March 2018.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Choi Yuk Ming (“Mr. Choi”), aged 50, is the financial
controller of our Group. He joined the Group in December 2007 and
is mainly responsible for accounting and finance management of the
Group.

Mr. Choi has over 20 years of experience in accounting. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked as a senior accounts clerk in BB
Telecom Limited from August 1996 to July 1997. He was an
accounting officer in C.A. Pacific Forex Limited from August 1997 to
April 1998. From May 1998 to October 2004, Mr. Choi worked in
Philips Electronics Hong Kong Limited and his last position held was
assistant accountant. From October 2005 to November 2007, he
worked in Union Technology International (MCO) Company Limited
and his last position held was accounting manager. He was a director
of Hong Kong Decoration & Engineering Association Limited, a
company limited by guarantee that engages in promoting the fitting-
out industry in Hong Kong, from March 2019 to August 2019.

Mr. Choi obtained a bachelor of science in finance from the City
University of Hong Kong in December 1996. He was admitted as a
member and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in May 2003 and May 2008, respectively, and has been
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since January 2005.

Mr. Shum Hoi Luen (“Mr. Shum®), aged 46, was appointed as the
Company Secretary on 17 December 2019 and is responsible for the
secretarial affairs of the Group.

Mr. Shum has over 20 years of experience in accounting and auditing
and over 10 years of experience in company secretarial affairs. Mr.
Shum is currently the financial controller and company secretary of
Infinity Development Holdings Company Limited (previously known
as Infinity Chemical Holdings Company Limited) (stock code: 640), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
responsible for overseeing its company secretarial affairs, corporate
governance and corporate finance matters.
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHRE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is a Hong Kong-based investment holding company.
The principal activities and other particulars of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 30(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, can be found in the section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 6 to 13 of
this annual report. These discussions form part of the Report of the
Directors. In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk
management are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH
EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to environmental protection.

Environmental policies have been adopted by the Group for
implementation of environmentally friendly measures and practices
in the operation of the Group's businesses. The Group has also
reviewed its environmental policies and performance from time to
time in order to minimise the environmental impacts from our
business operations.

The Group is committed to providing an equal opportunities, a
harmonious and diversified working environment to our employees.

The Group maintains active relationship with our customers in the
industry to explore potential business opportunities and is highly
committed to delivering premium and quality services to our
customers.

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers (based on their
prices, quality, past performance and capacity).

During the year, there was no material dispute or argument between
the Group and its employees, suppliers and customers.
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Further discussion and review on the environmental policies and
performance and relationship with employees, suppliers and
customers of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report set out on pages 32 to
74 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of
the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to commit to complying with the relevant laws
and regulations, such as the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the SFO, the Listing
Rules and other relevant laws and regulations. So far as the Board is
concerned, there were no material breaches of or non-compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations by our Group that have
significant impacts on the business and operations of our Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 14 to 31.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2021 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 191.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend to
the Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2021.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
Prospectus and the published audited consolidated financial
Statements, is set out on page 192 of this annual report. This financial
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

Report of the Directors

EFERE

R DR (FBEDE 6228 ) MR 5 TELHA
SERERRLERANULEAEES  HEBLEP
ERERFTERV R AT i MBI - BN AF RS
RNEEFVIEWRER  HENREBRE - ZER
WARBEFTEREN D -

BFEERBD
B-EHORETHEBERIER - BN
RAVEERE(—NAN—FERE=ZFH (K
E5T)) ~ REMEDI (BAEDIFE6225) -
EFRBEGH - LR REMREAZ KA
B BESTEMAE  AREYEERERKT
BTHAKREXRB R EEBNEATZENERR
AR R -

]
Nl

ERER

AARRBZ EBLEEAR
NEZLEEREE -
RERKE

AEEBE-_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFEN
RERAEER _TE-_—F+_A=+T—HKHH
BRRENFE10BEEFE N B 2R M BEREK -

HEREUEESE

EEeTEREARRRNEE T -_—F+_A
—t+—HIFEHRERE -

MR

AEEBEREMRFENDT A EEAREE
RABERE (FixaHERERRE NBREEZYH
WR) BN ARNFHRE 1928 - AP BEHEL FEK
REZGEPBRRN—ED -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 ® 2021444 83



Report of the Directors
EFEEHRE

DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: HK$1,000,000).

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s authorised or issued share
capital for the year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was conditionally adopted on 16 June 2020 and shall be valid until 15
June 2030. The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants have had or
may have made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide
the eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in
the Company with the view to achieving the following objectives: (i)
motivating the eligible participants to optimise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (i) attracting and retaining
or otherwise maintaining on-going business relationships with the
eligible participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the long-term growth of the Group. The terms of the Share Option
Scheme are in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. Further details of the Share Option Scheme were set
forth in the section headed “Statutory and general information — D.
Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

The Company granted 4,000,000 share options at an exercise price
HK$0.712 per Share on 1 April 2021 (the “Date of Grant”) to a
consultant (the “Grantee”) of the Company under the Share Option
Scheme.
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Movements in the outstanding share options under the Share Option
Scheme during the reporting period were as follows:

Name or category
of participant

SRERATER

Consultant -
Bl

*%

Number of share options
EREHA

Lapsed/

Exercised
during the
period

At Granted
1January  during the
2021 period
R=B=-%
-A-H

period 2021

BhRH BAME  AN/EE tZA=t-H

4,000,000 - -

The exercise price of the share options per Share is subject to adjustment in the
case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share
capital.

The price of the Share disclosed as at the Date of Grant of the share options is
the Stock Exchange closing price of the Share on the trading day immediately
prior to the Date of Grant of the share options.

The price of the Share disclosed as at the date of exercise of the share options is
the weighted average closing price of the Shares on trading day immediately
prior to the date of exercise of the share options.

None of these 4,000,000 share options was exercised, expired or
lapsed for the year ended 31 December 2021. All these 4,000,000
share options remained outstanding as at 31 December 2021.

All 4,000,000 share options are valid for a period of ten years
commencing from the Date of Grant and subject to the following
vesting periods:

(i)

up to a maximum of 25% of the total share options granted to
the Grantee will be vested on the first anniversary date of the
Date of Grant (i.e. 1 April 2022) provided that the Grantee has
completed his/her services up to 28 February 2022;

up to a maximum of 18.75% of the total share options granted
to the Grantee will be vested on the second anniversary date
of the Date of Grant (i.e. 1 April 2023) provided that the Grantee
has completed his/her services up to 28 February 2022,

cancelled At
during the 31 December

Tt

4,000,000
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(i) up to a maximum of 18.75% of the total share options granted
to the Grantee will be vested on the second anniversary date
of the Date of Grant (i.e. 1 April 2023) provided that the Grantee
has completed his/her services up to 28 February 2023; and

(iv)  the remaining balance of the share options granted will be
vested upon the third anniversary date of the Date of Grant (i.e.
1 April 2024) provided that the Grantee has completed his/her
services up to 28 February 2023.

As at the Date of Grant and 31 December 2021, share options
exercisable into a total of 4,000,000 Shares granted under the Share
Option Scheme remained outstanding, representing 0.5% of the total
number of issued Shares.

For grantees who fail to meet the applicable vesting conditions, the
unvested share options are forfeited, either in whole or in part.
Forfeited share options are cancelled.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fair values of the share
options granted were approximately HK$1,261,000, of which the
Group recognised share option expenses of approximately
HK$530,000.

The fair values of share options granted by the Company during the
period under review were determined by using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model (the “Model”) as at the Date of Grant. The
Model is one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair value
of a share option. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the management'’s
best estimate. The value of a share option varies with different
variables of a number of subjective assumptions. Any change in the
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair
value of a share option.

The inputs into the Model were as follows:
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Dividend vield (%) (Note (a)) i B S 2 (%) (BT 5E (@) 0.00
Expected volatility (%) (Note (b)) TEHRR 12 (%) (K 7E (b)) 46.2
Risk-free interest rate (%) (Note (c)) 47 [BL % ) 2 (%) (P 5E () 1.36
Expected life of the share options (year) (Note (d)) TEHRRE A A R (4F) (B9 RE(d) 10
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(a) Expected dividend per annum: the approximate average annual cash dividend
since the Listing Date.

(b) Expected volatility: the approximate historical volatility of the closing prices of the
Shares during the period from the Listing Date to the day immediately before the
Date of Grant.

(© Risk-free interest rate: the approximate yields of Hong Kong Sovereign Curve
traded on the Date of Grant, matching the expected life of each share option.

(d) Expected life of the share options: the period of ten years commencing on the
Date of Grant, based on management’s best estimates for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restriction and behavioural consideration.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not grant any share
options under the Share Option Scheme to any other persons during
the year under review that is required to be disclosed under rule
17.07 of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised), of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any other listed
securities of the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2021,
calculated under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$57,838,000 (2020: approximately HK$65,472,000).
The share premium account of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to the Shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Articles and provided that immediately following
the distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to
pay its debts immediately as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue from the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 89.1% of the Group’s total revenue and
revenue from the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 37.4% of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended
31 December 2021. The aggregate purchases from the five largest
suppliers and aggregate subcontracting fees paid to the
subcontractors of the Group accounted for approximately 81.1% of
the Group's total purchases and approximately 37.4% of the Group's
total subcontracting fees respectively. The purchases from the
largest supplier and subcontracting fees paid to the largest
subcontractor of the Group accounted for approximately 44.8% of
the Group's total purchases and approximately 12.6% subcontracting
fees for the year ended 31 December 2021 respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
shares of the Company) had any interests in the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Chi Chiu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe

Ms. Ho Nga Ling

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Ming Yim

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond

Mr. Yip Chun On

Prof. Chau Kwong wWing

In accordance with Article 84, Mr. Ng Chi Chiu, being an executive
Director, Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond and Mr. Yip Chun On, both
being independent non-executive Directors, will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Being eligible,
each of them will offer himself for re-election as an executive
Director or an independent non-executive Director (as the case may
be) at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The Company received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of its
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines as set out under the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the disclosure requirement under Rule 13.51B of the
Listing Rules, the changes in information of the Directors are as
follows:

1. Mr. Chan Ming Yim, the non-executive Director, was the
divisional president of Greater China of CPA Australia in 2021;

2. Dr. Ho Chung Tai served as a professional advisor to the Office
of the Ombudsman of Hong Kong from October 2015 to
September 2021, a position in which he previously served from
July 1995 to March 2013;

3. Dr. Ho Chung Tai was an independent non-executive director
of Fu Shek Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 2263) from
January 2020 to October 2021; and

4. Mr. Yip Chun On was appointed as a chief financial officer of
SinoCloud Group Limited (stock code: SGX: 5EK), a company
listed on the Singapore Exchange Limited, on 1 November
2021.

Save as disclosed above, there is no change to any information
required to be disclosed in relation to any Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section of “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 75 to 81 of the annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to Shareholders’ approval at
the general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) in force for the benefit of the
Directors throughout the year and as at the date of approval of this
Report of the Directors, pursuant to which the Company shall
indemnify any Director against any liability, loss suffered and
expenses incurred by the Director in connection with any legal
proceedings in which he is involved by reason of being a Director,
and in which the judgement is given in his favour or in which he is
acquitted. The Company has maintained insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section of “Related Party Transactions” in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, no Director nor a
connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the holding
company of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party for the year ended 31 December
2021.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the controlling Shareholders or the Directors and their
respective associates is interested in a business apart from the
Group's business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December
2021.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were
as follows:

(i) Long position in the Shares

Name of Director
EEERE

Capacity
54

Mr. Ng Chi Chiu (“Mr. Ng") Interest in controlled

(Note 1) corporation
REBEE(TREE] ZEGLEE R
(BFsE1)
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe Interest of spouse
(“Ms. Zhao") (Note 2)
Rt ([ELt]) Ao B s
(fF5E2)
Notes:
1. Mr. Ng is interested in the entire issued share capital of Fate Investment

Company Limited (“Fate Investment”) and he is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Fate Investment by virtue of the SFO.

2. Ms. Zhao is the spouse of Mr. Ng and she is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Ng by virtue of the SFO.

Report of the Directors
EFEERE

BREE
EERADAATHARNERRAA

R-ZE-—F+-A=+—H ' EFRAQAT
BRAHERAQE REAEEZE (TR REFLEE
EBIEXVER) MR - RO REREFT#EES
BIEBEHF R EEMNEXVEE7 RSO R @A
AR B MBS sA B (B IR SRR ES
MEEEOEBGE R ARRIEEE 2 Em X
KB - HIREE H KBRS & F 58 352 (R B RL B A
ZAERFTIL M B M SRR ETRIE ST AE R
AR M RATHERIOAR T -

iy RERHHNFE

Number of Percentage of
Shares held Position shareholding
FERGHE =B BERESL
600,000,000 Long 75%
Fa
600,000,000 Long 75%
S=)
BitaE -

1. R4 AFate Investment Company Limited([ Fate
Investment ) #) 2 B8 E 1T R AR A 4 -
bt BHESFRBEGRIME  REEBRAR
Fate Investment #5/8 Bk (o R B A 14 o

2. WRERREEZER  EHit REEHFRHE
B FRRARR LA AR o
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EFERE

(i)

Long position in the shares of associated corporation of
the Company

Name of
Director

Name of associated

corporation

Capacity

HBEAE A B %)

Beneficial owner
BEnEAA

Fate Investment Mr. Ng

Rxe4t

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, other than those disclosed above in
respect of the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the
following interests and short positions of 5% or more of the Shares
and underlying Shares were disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

(i)

Position

RAQXBEBEZENRONTR

Number of Percentage of
shares in the shareholding in
associated the associated
corporation corporation
RAEESEEN RAEESEEN
gl =4 REBDL
1 100%

B PSRRI RZEZ—F+_A=+—

A BEEERARAIETRABRAR
A EREAE (ERREH RMEEPIE
XVER) BB ~ ARRAR () R B P AR
BESRPEERAIEXVHBE7REDHMER
MARBEBRAMERSAR (BRERE
RIBE 77 XS R PIAERE RS R R AR 1F
BREzZREIAR)  IRBEFLHAERK
15155 352 R 7R RE BRI R& MR P AL ) B RC i 3R
BRESTRIZAMEG ANR R R PR

NN
KB o

FERRRAQANER

R EXEZTRARBITRARABEIN N
Z-—F+-A=1+—B REZHFIHEEH
FXVEBREE 2 % 377 BRI XX B [A AN A ) B B <2 Bl
WE - SRIRE T M S 1510 58 336 1R B R 80
ARRFENERC 2B KRR &9 5% 2k 2A
FRESEORRWT

Number of Percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares held Position shareholding

IRERE 514 RO A B REBDL

Fate Investment Beneficial owner 600,000,000 Long 75%
Em#AA e
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RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF DIRECTORS

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2021 were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, and none of them constitutes a
connected transaction or a continuing connected transaction as
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company
as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required
to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (if
applicable) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed for the year ended 31 December 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no other material events occurring after the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.

Report of the Directors
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R T A REBEARRBIRD S EFMERS 2 #
Ao REITEEAZEEN AQE - REERA
BEEA0INENCIEAEEN 1 PNCIDIE: T RVA=S
MZhE BEEFAIRSEMEMEEZZFE
7 o

BRBLIXS BEXS

AEERBE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
I T RS FBENGRE M wmR M T
28 MAMERKARE LTRUATHRENH

HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HLEFE H#HEX
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHRE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2021 AGM is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 30 June 2022. A
notice convening the 2021 AGM will be issued and disseminated to
the Shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
Monday, 27 June 2022 to Thursday, 30 June 2022, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares shall be effected.
In order to qualify for the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2021
AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 24 June 2022.

References to time and dates in this annual report are to Hong Kong
time and dates.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

As notified by the Company’s compliance adviser, Lego Corporate
Finance Limited (“Lego”), as at 31 December 2021, except for the
compliance adviser agreement entered into between the Company
and Lego dated 3 January 2020, neither Lego nor its directors,
employees or close associates had any interests in relation to the
Company, which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire at the 2021 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2021 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Ng Chi Chiu
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Superland Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Superland Group Holdings
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 103 to 191, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021,

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B XBENER S

BYRBMREHESEEMERERATDRR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
o RYR 2 ETE S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the revenue
recognition on fitting-out contracts.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

Independent Auditor’s Report
WA BENERE

BRREETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMREITER

Revenue recognition on fitting-out contracts
HEENWREER

Refer to Note 4(a) and Note 5 of the consolidated
financial statements.
B2HRE VSRR MI T 4@) MEES -

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from
fitting-out contracts was approximately HK$795 million
(2020: HK$676 million).
HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—B8LLFE  #Eshks
NBISEBEBT(ZT_TF 676 AEBTT) °

Revenue from fitting-out contracts is recognised over
the period of the contract according to the total contract
price and the stage of completion which is measured by
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation on the basis of the actual costs
incurred by the Group up to the year-end date as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.
HEEOREREGVBENTIHERS LN
R MELRERRRE BESBEEFABMEEANE
B S A AR A BENE L - RBEXELD
BEEMEERE -

B ETOMEERERETSE

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition on fitting-
out contracts included:
BMBREREE OB RERNIET B

— Obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment processes, assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors, such as subjectivity
of assumptions and susceptibility to management bias
or fraud;

— TREBEOHNABESLTERESF  BBERMAFH
THEE M R HoMh BB L A R R IR R (N RER Y E &R M
REBENRRIEGFOAIselE) - ST EE AR
H[E B R

— Understood, evaluated and validated key controls over
revenue recognition on fitting-out contracts,
— T TEERBEEHRESOKEERE ARG

— Selected projects in progress on a sample basis to
review contracts and correspondence with customers
for contract terms and variations requested by
customers and to understand the respective work
nature and contractual relationship with the customers;

— WMEBHETHEE UBEREGOERREENERARE
PERMEEMEETPELOERRMY - T HEE
ITEMEREPHEHERER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BERETSEH®

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMET A EERARETSE

BMREITER

The management’s estimation on the variations
requested by customers and budgeted cost is primarily
based on historical recovery rate on variations, fitting-
out contract budget and actual cost report prepared by
internal quantity surveyors.

EREBHEPEXNEEREENEANMGE - TEER
ﬂ“‘“ﬁﬁﬁ’]a@&@ﬂ&@ KEEHBE LA RIS

We focused on auditing revenue recognition on fitting-
out contracts because the estimation of total budget
cost and contract price from variations is subject to high
degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in
relation to this area is considered significant due to
subjectivity of significant assumptions used such as
estimation on the variations requested by customers
and budgeted cost primarily based on historical recovery
rate on variations, and significant judgements involved
in the estimation.

HRTEER AL A QERNEETS RS R AT T
EAZ  MBEMBIRETREEONREER - BR
FrEAMNEEZRRAETEE(MEEFERNEERN
HErREZERBEEEBARBEMRROTBERR)
AREME RS RERAE - BHIRABEFTENEER
BIRAK ©
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Discussed with the Group’s management, quantity
surveyors and project managers the status of the
projects and enquired about and assessed
management’s assumptions on estimated costs to
complete including future subcontracting and material
costs, and reviewed the quotations from subcontractors
and suppliers;

B OEEETERE - INASARIERKLESNRER
AR - AE KR EEBE A T IRA(BRERRS
B RMEAR)BRE - WERH D 2R R HEENRE

Performed site visit on a sample basis, checked to
subsequent events and financial information available
to us, and obtained explanations for fluctuations in
margins to determine whether there could be other
factors affecting the calculation of stage of completion;
EITRISHME - HRBSHRBMAISOMEERE
THzE - AREUSFDE X &Ebﬁ’]%-ﬁ# NEERER
EmAEFETTRENTE

Checked the historical recovery rate of the completed
projects by comparing the estimated cost and variations
against actual outcome to assess the reliability and
accuracy of the management’s assumptions;

BB RAEFARARBCHERLER  wE2TKIE
BR@ARYE - U EEREREAT I KR
M

Tested the total costs incurred as at the end of the
reporting period and performed cut-off testing, on a
sample basis, by checking to the underlying documents
supporting these costs (including invoices of material
costs and subcontracting fees and time cost calculation
of the project staff), and
HREHARREENABRETAR - WHEHET
BIDAIE - AERREZEERMNIEREER MG (81
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WA BENERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRETSEH®

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
H AN E AR EREREETEE

MRETER

— Tested mathematical accuracy of the calculations of
contract revenue and costs.
— AR E O EMRARGE R BB RN

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found that the
judgement and estimates adopted by management in the
revenue recognition of fitting-out contracts based on stage of
completion were supported by the available evidence.
BERMETHETET  BMNEREEBNBERETIRE
BEREES DGR ED R FIE RAEFSRIBER IR -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Group are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in
the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

HtfER
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Group are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Chun Yee Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FeEZXEBREE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
E B A= —HILFEE

2021
—gE=-—F
Notes HK$'000
B =E FET
Revenue Uz 5 798,108 680,212
Cost of services PR 3% A AN 7 (695,810) (587,015)
Gross profit EF 102,298 93,197
Other income EmugA 6 628 15,797
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (F518), W= F 5 6 (57) 460
Administrative expenses THEA 7 (76,547) (68,792)
Listing expenses rmER - (6,888)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade B EWNFIBERAENEE
receivables and contract assets, net BB R EF R 3.1(a)ii) 676 142
Profit before finance income and MR BEBARBEEAR
costs and income tax expense FriSBiEZANEF 26,998 33,916
Finance income B A 10 - 1,130
Finance costs B AER AN 10 (10,638) (14,647)
Profit before income tax expense K FTEHiBE A %R 16,360 20,399
Income tax expense st 1 (3,763) (2,350)
Profit and total comprehensive ERAREEANEEFREFR
income for the year attributable 2EKNEHEEE
to owners of the Company 12,597 18,049
Earnings per share attributable ARATEEAEEEREF
to the owners of the Company
Basic and diluted EAR R EE
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AERETES) 12 1.57 2.61
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ReRBKAE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
e g ]

2021
—gE=-—F
Notes HK$000
B 5T FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment AR B 5% 14 4,472 6,596
Right-of-use assets FRAREE 15 6,817 2,278
Investments in insurance contracts R E HIEE 16 18,180 15,261
Other receivables, deposits and EmERFIE - me &k
prepayments AT FRIE 19 22,906 29,480
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTS R & EE 17 938 808
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 33,313 54423
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables B 5 W GR 19 92,059 70,619
Other receivables, deposits and HEMEWHIE  Ze &
prepayments JEFUE 19 17,334 22,001
Contract assets SREE 20 417,180 309,702
Pledged time deposits BB T B 21 6,611 3,127
Cash and cash equivalents He RIBLSEEY 21 62,317 54,128
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 595,501 459577
Total assets HWEE 648,814 514,000
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERaE
Equity attributable to owners AABREE AELERS
of the Company
Share capital R A 22 8,000 8,000
Reserves E 23 89,036 88,506
Retained earnings REBEF 53,883 41,286
Total equity MR 150,919 137,792
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

maMBRiAE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
R-F-—F+=A=+—H

LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liability *kRBAE
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 15 237 1,188
current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B SN HIE 24 108,669 68,984
Accruals, retention payables and EETER - BNRESR
other liabilities HEMEE 24 104,569 57,950
Lease liabilities HERE 15 6,762 1,182
Contract liabilities EH8E 20 11,539 11,370
Borrowings B 25 265,186 232,906
Current income tax payable BNEAFE A PTIS R 933 2,628
... 497658 375020
Total liabilities HWaE 497,895 376,208
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEAE 648,814 514,000
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FeEERR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
BE—FT-—GFf-HA=1—HIIFF

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERAFHB RS
Share
Share Share based Capital Non-
capital premium  reserve  reserve Retained controlling
(Note22)  (Note23)  (Note23)  (Note23) profits Sub-total interests Total
URG 5
BRE  ROEE ERNRE BXFEE REEN Nt EERER Foh
(FizE22)  (HiEE23)  (MiE23)  (Ki3E23)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THBT FET BT THL BT FHET THT THT
At 1 January 2020 RZE-EF—-F-H - - - 2,500 153,237 155,737 - 155,737
Profit and total comprehensive  EREF| R 2 ENGELE
income for the year - - - - 18,049 18,049 - 18,049
Transactions with equity DERER A G HEER
owners in their capacity BEAETRS
as equity owners
Dividends (Note 13) 8 (fFE13) - - - - (130,000  (130,000) - (130,000)
Isstance of shares pursuant BEERMCBETRA
to Capitalisation 6,000 (6,000) - - - - - -
Issuance of ordinary shares BEEHETLER
pursuant to Listing 2,000 124,000 - - - 126,000 - 126,000
Listing expenses charged RIRIDEEMRA LTS
to share premium - (31,994) - - - (31,994) - (31,994)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZF
+-A=1+-H 8,000 86,006 - 2,500 41,286 137,792 =* 137,792
Profit and total comprehensive R 7| k2 B A%
income for the year - - - - 12,597 12,597 - 12,597
Deregistration of a subsidiary ~ BUE M —RMERA = = = = = = (-)* )
Issuance of share options BITHEMRIE = = 530 = = 530 - 530
At 31 December 2021 NZE-—F
+ZA=1+—H 8,000 86,006 530 2,500 53,883 150,919 - 150,919

* The amount is less than HK$1,000.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEReRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
E o E - A= —HIFFE

2021
—E-—F

Notes HK$'000
B 5T FET

cash flows from operating activities & EHFEBRERE

Cash generated from/(used in) RS (FTAR)RS
operations 27(a) 5,847 (59,815)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBREM (5,588) (9,788)
Net cash generated from/(used in) ESEBNITE (PR IRE F58
operating activities 259 (69,603)

Cash flows from investing activities REZHRERERE

Purchase of plant and equipment B B N 31 (1,060) (1,452)
Purchase of insurance contract BERREY (3,000) -
Government subsidy on property, WE - B R B ENBTHEE

plant and machinery 146 -
Interest received BUH B - 1,130
Advance to related companies i UNGIE - (867)
Repayment from related companies [ ENGIR Yt O - 184,935
Repayment from a director RAR—BEEEENRIE

of the Company - 231
Advance to a director BN —REEHIE = (237)

Net cash (used in)/generated from wEEE (FTA)/ PSR F8

investing activities (3,914) 183,746

cash flows from financing activities B&EEHMEBREERE

Proceeds from the issue of shares FBRMDBEEFHITRDZ
by Share Offer FriSsk18 23 - 126,000
Increase in pledged time deposits B IR E BB F FUE 0 (3,484) (27)
Interest paid ERHE (10,638) (14,647)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEMEAE (6,314) (4,396)
Drawdown of borrowings REUEK 1,015,139 965,728
Repayment of borrowings EEER (981,411) (1,114,459)
Payment of listing expenses TR EmMAX = (29,191
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEBRE(FTA)REHE
_fnancingactvites 13292 70.992)
Net increase in cash and ReERBESESEYIGMFE
cash equivalents 9,637 43,151
cash and cash equivalents FNRERELSEEY
at beginning of the year 52,680 9E529)
cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEEY
at end of the year 21 62,317 52,680
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

108

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11
July 2019 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the
Company's registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
its principal place of business is Flat A&B, 3/F, Yin Da
Commercial Building, 181 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) provide fitting-out services and repair and
maintenance services to residential and commercial properties
in Hong Kong (the “Listing Business”). The immediate and
ultimate parent company of the Company is Fate Investment
Company Limited. The controlling shareholder of the company
is Ng Chi Chiu (“Mr. Ng").

The Company listed its shares on Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 17 July 2020 (the “Listing").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“"HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basic of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"”) and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for investments in key management insurance
contracts which are measured at cash surrender value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M5 H R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 EESHBEEREm

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements BIEEBTBREERNRRLRS I
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain MEBBEFEAET@EESHE
critical accounting estimates. It also requires SEEEETERASEB ST HRB
management to exercise its judgment in the process of BT EHAE - SR E N e
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas MUEMEE S NESRAVEERE
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or BERREMMEET A - PO 44%
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant 5= o
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
(@) Amended standards adopted by the Group (a) AEBEHEMZEIEETER

RS 0 4 SR 5 AR & B AR T
BRI TR -

The Group has applied the following amended
standards for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2021:

Standards
ZE A

Subject of amendment

LEES:]

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
and HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
BB G ERE IR
BB HREERNE 45
BB HREENETH
BB RELERE IR R
BB B ImEERIE 1658 BFTAR)
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
BAMBHREERNE 165 (BRI A)

FRERERE — F AR

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
B2 Covid—19 /M ER

ERBOTE - FREIETER)
$HB 1 R HRR 2 & 8B 3 W AE (T
YE - WEHTEHAMMEK
FERE R EATE -

The management assessed that amended
standards listed above did not have any impact on
the amounts recognized in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 EESHBEXRBE®)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)
(b) New and amended standards, interpretations (b) MREMBREREEIRAFER
and accounting guideline which are not yet HISTaT RCIEFTER - RBRE
effective and have not been early adopted by HECl

the Group

The following new and amended standards and AT ] RASIE T R AIA R 2 ke
interpretations and accounting guideline have been kesties| el c B AR =
issued but are not effective for the financial year T - —%— A —HREBANWYTRF
beginning on 1 January 2021 and have not been EAM NEEREBRATR
early adopted by the Group. i o

Effective for
accounting year

110 Superland Group Holdings Limited e 24 £EER AR A A

beginning

Standards Subject of amendment on or after
7=

o2 E BRI

28| S B FEEEN
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions 1 April 2021

beyond 2021

BAMBHREERE 165 (BRI A) ZET = —F &M Covid-19 HERER - —FWmA—H

Annual improvements project
(Amendments)
FREBERR (B5]A)

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and

HKAS 37 (Amendments)
BRI ERE 35

BAEGTENFE 165K

BB G ERE 75 (BFTA)
AG 5 (Revised)

EHECEIERACI D)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BERFEERE 157 (BT R)
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 (Amendments)
BEBGHENE1RR
BB BHREENEBAEE 2
CCHEN)

S

HEEE
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
—E-N\FEZE-TF
ERI R E R 60 F 2 B
Narrow-scope Amendments

NEBEER

Revised Accounting Guideline 5
Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations

LASET & 5THE 5| B 5 S L RIE R & OF
ZEatgErE

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current

BENEARBIIERD

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BEETHR

1 January 2022

—2--_F—H—H

1 January 2022

—2--_F—H—H

1 January 2022

—2--_F—H—H
1 January 2023

—E-=F—HF—H
1 January 2023

—2-=F—HA—H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M5 H R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EES:HHBEBE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)
(b) New and amended standards, interpretations (b) MREMBREREEIRAFER
and accounting guideline which are not yet KHISTaT RCIEFTER - RERE
effective and have not been early adopted by sHigS| (&)

the Group (continued)

Effective for
accounting year

beginning
Standards Subject of amendment on or after
NN ZIN=E
WZEFRN
ZE A EHE:! B EEEN
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and 1 January 2023
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
BAGFTERNE 125 (BETA) FHRRNE - SMEER —E-=%—A—H
BERRIERIE
HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BT ERIE 8 (IBFTA) Bt ER —ZE-_=%—H—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
BB HMEERNE 75 REER —ET-=%—H—H
HKFRS 17 (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 17 1 January 2023
BT MEERE 175 (BFTA) EBT B MEERE 17 RAOERT A —EZ=%—A—H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2023

— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause
BEREFRSR(ZZE_ZF) HIBmEREW —ERXAHEBRER T =F—H—H
BEERBEHER 2
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

ERVHRELERF 10X EEELFT RBREFREBEARNAERRZHE RFE
ZERIZE 2857 (IBETAN) MEEHEIFE

The Group will adopt the new and amended REBYESRFET RIS ST AR A
standards and interpretations and accounting ERERe:HIES| =M T LAER
guideline when they become effective. The Group o NEE B A E A Lt
has already commenced an assessment of the FrET R e R KRB R ES
related impact of adopting the above new and ESMHETE - TEE e
amended standards and interpretations and AREBMGEEMBHRREKEK
accounting guideline, none of which is expected to P&

have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1Consolidation

112

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Group on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwiill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

Segment reporting

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the chairman of the Group that makes
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"),
which is the Group’s functional and presentation
currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a net basis within
other (losses)/gains.

& M B R M

2 EESHBEXBE®)

2.3

24
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

114

POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii) Transactions and balances (continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.5 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs net of their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Shorter of lease
termor 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Machinery 3years
Office equipment 3-5years
Motor vehicles 5years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and depreciation rates are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.6).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as at
amortised cost only if both of the following criteria
are

()  The asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows; and

(i)~ The contractual terms give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)

116

(@)

(b)

(c)

Superland Group Holdings Limited

Classification (continued)

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. The Group
reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing the assets
changes.

If collection of the amounts is expected in one year
or less they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets. The
Group's financial assets comprise trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and pledged time deposits.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial asset carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (continued)

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and
presented in “other (losses)/gains, net” together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets at amortised cost,
including deposits and other receivables,
management considers that their credit risks have
not increased significantly since initial recognition
with reference to the counterparty historical default
rate and current financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on the 12-month
expected credit losses (Note 3.1(a)(ii)).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial assets (continued)

118

(e)

Superland Group Holdings Limited e &4 %

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial assets, if the
part being considered for derecognition meets one
of the following conditions: (i) the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset
expire; or (i) the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of the financial asset have been
transferred, and the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset; or (iii) the Group retains the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the
financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to the eventual
recipient in an agreement that meets all the
conditions of de-recognition of transfer of cash
flows (“pass through” requirements) and transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety
meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income:

o the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred; and

o the sum of the consideration received from
the transfer and any cumulative gain or 10ss
that has been recognised directly in equity.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the
extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial liabilities

(@

(b)

Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Financial liabilities at
amortised cost are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the financial liabilities using the effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less. If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such as exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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e M RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

120

POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group does not have any offsetting
arrangements at the end of each reporting period.

2.10 Investments in insurance contracts

The Group acquired management life insurance
contracts, which include both investment and insurance
elements. The investment insurance contracts are initially
recognised at the amount of the premium paid and
subsequently carried at the amount that could be
realised under the insurance contract (cash surrender
value) at the end of each reporting period, with changes
in value recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivable is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHEBEEE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities 2128 N EBERANER

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration from customers in exchange for the
provision of fitting-out services that the Group has
transferred to the customers that is not yet
unconditional. Contract assets arise when the Group has
provided the fitting-out services under the relevant
contracts but the works have yet to be certified by
architects, quantity surveyors or other representatives
appointed by the customers and/or the Group'’s right to
payment is still conditional on factors other than passage
of time. Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point
when the Group's right to payment becomes
unconditional other than passage of time.

In accordance with the terms of the contracts entered
into with customers, the Group are required to submit to
customers’ payment applications for the value of work
done under the contracts along with any variation orders
performed. Customers will settle normally in 30-90 days
after invoicing depending on the nature of services.
Customers usually retain an amount up to 10% of the
value of work done, subject to a maximum limit of 5% of
the original contract sum as retention money for the
contract. The terms and conditions in relation to the
release of retention vary from contract to contract, which
is subject to practical completion, the expiry of the defect
liability period and the discussion of final accounts.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment under the
same approach adopted for impairment assessment of
financial assets carried at amortised cost.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer the aforesaid services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

122

POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, bank deposits with financial institutions
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated statement of financial
position, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities.

2.14 Pledged time deposits

Pledged time deposits represent fixed deposits pledged
to the banks for issuance of bank facilities and bank
borrowings. Such pledged time deposits can be released
when the Group repays the bank borrowings or
withdrawn at any time if other qualified securities are
placed as alternative.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade payables, other payables and accruals

Trade payables are obligations to pay for materials or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables, other
payables and accruals are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables, other payables and accruals are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHEBEEE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Borrowings 217 &6 &

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
year in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax
payable on the current year’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

124

(@

(b)

Superland Group Holdings Limited e &4 %

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the consolidated statement
of financial position in the countries where the
Group operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the
deferred income tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

126

POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.21 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the historical financial information. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHEBEEE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition 2.22 W TR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for services rendered in the normal
course of business.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly
observable, they are estimated based on expected cost
plus a margin or adjusted market assessment approach,
depending on the availability of observable information.

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the
good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the good or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over time if
the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset. Specific criteria where revenue is
recognised are described below.
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e M RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (continued)
The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on one of the
following methods that best depict the Group's
performance in satisfying the performance obligation:

128

(@)

Superland Group Holdings Limited

direct measurements of the value transferred by
the Group to the customer; or

the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation relative to the total
expected efforts or inputs.

Fitting-out services and repair and
maintenance services

Revenue from the construction services is
recognised over time as the Group's performance
creates or enhances an asset or work in progress
that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced. The Group has applied the input
method in recognising the revenue from
construction contracts over time by reference to
the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction on a
performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation.

For fitting-out contracts with fixed price, the Group
recognises the revenue in accordance with the
contract price on the basis of the Group's efforts or
inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation. The Group considers the input method
better depicts the Group's performance in
transferring control of services to its customers.

For fitting-out contracts that contain variable
consideration such as variations in contract work,
the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount. The estimated amount of variable
consideration is included in the fitting-out contract
only to the extent that it is highly probable that
such as inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (continued)

(@

(b)

Fitting-out services and repair and
maintenance services (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end of
the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

For warranty embedded to the fitting-out contracts,
the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance
with HKAS 37, “Provision, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” as the warranty provides the
customer with assurance that the contracting work
complies with the agreed-upon specifications.
Since the Group's subcontractors are contractually
obligated to rectify the defects at their costs, the
provision for warranty is insignificant to the Group.

Existence of significant financing component
In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customers or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer or
services to the customers. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component may
exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed by the parties
of the contracts.

Notwithstanding the above, a contract does not
have a significant financing component in
circumstances where payments are in accordance
with the typical payment terms of the relevant
industry, which has a primary purpose other than
financing.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (continued)

130

()

Cost to fulfill a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its
fitting-out contracts. The Group first assesses
whether these costs qualify for recognition as an
asset in terms of other relevant standards, failing
which it recognises an asset for these costs only if
they meet all of the following criteria:

(i) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the Group can
specifically identify;

(i) the costs generate or enhance resources of
the Group that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations
in the future; and

(i) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the
goods or services to which the assets relate. The
asset is subject to impairment review.

2.23 Employee benefits

(@

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the ""MPF
Scheme'’) which is a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
both the employer and employees are required to
contribute 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries
(capped at HK$30,000). Contributions from the
employer equivalent to the contribution as
specified at the rules of the MPF Scheme are 100%
vested as soon as they are paid to the relevant MPF
Scheme but all benefits derived from the
mandatory contributions must be preserved until
the employee reaches the age of 65, subject to a
few exceptions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)
The contributions to the MPF Scheme is not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the fund prior to vesting fully
in the contributions.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contribution has been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable
to the Group's shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the date of consolidated
statement of financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

132

POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to a
employee via a employee share scheme, the executive
short-term incentive scheme and share appreciation.
Information relating to these schemes is set out in
Note 26.

Employee options
The fair value of options granted under the Group is
recognised as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted:

— including any market performance conditions (e.g.
the entity’s share price)

— excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (e.g.
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time
period), and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(e.g. the requirement for employees to save or hold
shares for a specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market
vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The employee option plan is administered by the Group,
which is consolidated in accordance with the principles
in Note 2.2. When the options are exercised, the Group
transfers the appropriate number of shares to employee.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited directly to equity.

Superland Group Holdings Limited e /=& S EEAE R AR

2 EESHBEEXBE®)

2.24 ARG RERMAK

PAR D R AR ERMN B BREE R
Beat 8- 31T A B B SRR AT 8 Mk
MIBERKETES - ZFFENEN
BRHIEE26 °

EEREKRE
AEERENBRENA T EERA
BERAF - MAESAAEE N - 8
FHER X AR SRR T2 Z iR B IR
MAFEETE

— BREATHSERARR(NER
R (ERE) |

— T EREMREMIETSRAR
B (mAEMEES - HERE
BER M:‘é:%ﬂﬁiﬁ%iﬁ%,ﬁﬂ%
(EL0EZ X

— BREMFEBEF(EER
EHERKAEREERMFT AR
D e o

X @ENGEBREANER  ZHHE

RETARE RB IR EERR IR -

REHR  BRREFTSEE LR

BRI AR %ﬁéﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%f@!’]ﬁ%ﬁﬂé%

B AT EH A fAET IETEﬁﬁﬁEuEﬂsﬁk

REME (B HEMELANTE
I H s tF AR o

EEBBREFSHAKTEEE IR
IEMIFE 2 20 RAERE ARR © TEEIBR
R AEBEeEREEROEE T
B8 - CWATESURAIRENERE
HRPRANE T AR ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M B R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESHEEEE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Interest income 2.25 FE WA

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included
in the other (losses)/gains on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it
is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

2.26 Government grant

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised within “Other income” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate. Government grants relating to
plant and equipment are offset against the costs of the
related assets.

A government grant relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment for the cost of an office equipment
is deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or l0ss
over the useful life of the assets by way of reduced
depreciation expenses. For further details, please refer to
Note 14.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

134

POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

. the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

. the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.28 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Such determination is
made on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement, regardless of whether the arrangements
take the legal form of a lease.

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessee with
respect to certain premises and motor vehicles.

Leases are initially recognised as a right-of-use asset and
corresponding liability at the date of which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index
or arate;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
iS reasonably certain to exercise that option;

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option; and

ease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities;
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received;

any initial direct costs; and

restoration costs, if any.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices and accounts
for separately.

Some of the property leases include extension options.
These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility
in terms of managing contracts. The extension options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor. The Group considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option in determining the lease
term. The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or
a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects the assessment.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company's shareholders or
directors.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

136

Superland Group Holdings Limited e &4 %

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no hedging
activities are undertaken by management.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Credit risk

0

Risk management

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged time deposits, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
contract assets, and included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

Management considers the Group has limited
credit risk with its banks which are leading
and reputable and are assessed as having
low credit risk. Majority of bank balances are
deposited with reputable banks. The Group
has not incurred significant loss from non-
performance by these parties in the past and
management does not expect so in the
future.

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. The procedures
focus on the evaluations on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer,
such as its financial position, past experience
and other factors, as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the
customer operates. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
with the result that the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

3 BXERERE)
3.1 BMEEMEZE)
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e M RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Credit risk (continued)

138

0

(ii)

Risk management (continued)

The Group is exposed to concentration of
credit risk on trade receivables from the
Group's five largest customers approximately
amounting to HK$87,083,000 (2020:
HK$61,147,000), and accounted for
approximately 95% (2020: 86%) of the total
trade receivables balance. The major
customers of the Group are reputable
organisations. Management considers that
the credit risk is limited in this regard.

The Group's other financial assets at
amortised cost are considered to be low risk.
Management has closely monitored the credit
qualities and the collectability.

Impairment of assets
The Group has four types of assets that are
subject to the expected credit loss model:

trade receivables;
o contract assets;

. other receivables at amortised cost;
and

o cash and cash equivalents and pledged
time deposits.

While cash and cash equivalents and pledged
time deposits are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets.

The Group divided trade receivables and
contract assets into two categories to
measure the expected credit losses. For
category 1, it includes those customers which
are reputable organisations and with good
repayment history. The expected credit loss
rate for these trade receivables is determined
according to a provision matrix where
balances that are less than 12 months
overdue are provided for at expected credit
loss rates of 0.01-77.78%.

For category 2, it includes customers other
than category 1 above. The expected credit
loss rate for the trade receivables is
determined according to a provision matrix
where balances that are less than 24 months
overdue are provided for at expected credit
loss rates of 0.07-0.93% and trade receivables
more than 24 months overdue are 100%
provided for.

Based on the management assessment, the
provision for impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets is HK$132,000 (2020:
HK$808,000) for the year ended 31 December
2021.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at end of
each reporting period was determined as
follows for trade receivables.

3 BXERERE)

3.1 MBEBREEE)
(@ FERRGE)

(ii)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Credit risk (continued)
(i Impairment of assets (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

140

B R SR ()

3.1 MBEBREEE)
(@ FERRGE)
(i)  EEHEE)
BHRBKERANEE

(Continued) (&)
Past due Past due Past due Past due over
At 31 December 2021 Current within 30 days 31t0 60 days 61t0 90 days 90 days
il 30AREH 5312608 BH612908 BHRA0A
Category 1: BA1:
Customers have arelatively — EEEBHELREAEES
ow credt risk and DENEP
10 default history
(Gr0ss carrying amount SHLE(TET)
(HK$'000) 47,904 40,766 1,880 40 9 90,599
Expected creditlossrates ~ BEEEEER 0.01% 0.01% 0.11% 2.50% 71.78%
Lossallowance (HKS000)  ElEAHE (FiAT) (1) (1) @ (1) ) (12)
Net carrying amount (HKS'000) BEEE (FA7) 47,903 40,765 1878 39 2 90,587
Category 2: BH2:
Customers have areletively  GEEBRITHEZHES
higher credit risk
(3ross carmying amount SHLE(TET
(HKS'000) 1,367 - - 107 9 1,573
Expected creditlossrates  BEEEBER 0.07% - - 0.93% 100%
Lossallowance (HKS000)  BiER&(TE) (1) = = (1) (99) (101)
Net carying amount (HKS000) S (A (F757c) 1,366 - - 106 - 1472
Total trade receivabes, BORNGEEEHE
net (HK$'000) (F#1) 49,269 40,765 1878 145 2 92,059
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e M RRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BXEBREE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEEKBEERE)
(@) cCredit risk (continued) (@) FEREE)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) EEREE)
Trade receivables and contract assets ESEURERENEE
(Continued) (%)
Past due Past due Past due Past due over
At 31 December 2020 Current within 30 days 311060 days 611090 days 90 days
FE AR BH31Z60A AHHZE0A BHRENA
Category 1: #h:
Customers havearelatively  EEEBELREEEES
ow credt risk and PEHEP
10 default history
(Gr0ss carrying amount SHLE(TET)
(HK$'000) 35,981 18071 - - 33 54,025
Expected creditlossrates ~ BEEEEEE 00%% 00% - - 16.38%
Lossallowance (HKS000)  Esigdda(TE7) (10) (16) - - (173) (199)
Net carrying amount (HKS'000) B (FHAT) 3571 1805 - - | 5382
Category 2 BRI
Customers have arelatively  GEEBRIHEZHES
higher credit risk
(3ross carmying amount SHLE(TET
(HK$'000) 2,040 8,379 6,49 52 9 17,060
Brpected creditlossrates  BEEEFER 0.64% 0.80% 1.20% 19.23% 100%
Lossallowance (HKS000) B (TE) (13) (67 ] (10) (%9 (267)
Net carying amount (HKS000) B3 (T#7) 2007 8312 6412 8 - 16793

Total trade receivabes, BHRNGEEEHE
net (HK$'000) (F#1) 375% 26,367 6,412 v 200 70619
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e MR RME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBRKREREw)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B¥EREE#)
(a) Credit risk (continued) () =Rk (Z)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) EEWREE)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at end of

BHRBKERANEE
(%)
RILERE GHNEENS

each reporting period was determined as REHRNEBEBEEES
follows for contract assets. AR
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETHF
Current Current
BPER BNER
Category 1: AERT -
Customers have a relatively 1= B RIFE B A 24
low credit risk and FRERA 5 P
no default history
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BREI4E(E (T87T) 397,369 281,439
Expected credit loss rates JEHEEBEX 0.01% 0.05%
Loss allowance provision (HK$'000) &8 #4& (F738T) (4) (134)
_Netcarryingamount (HK$'000) ~ SmE#E(F#2w) 397,365 281305
Category 2: $ERD :
Customers have a relatively EERBIEYES N EF
higher credit risk
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BEEI424& (T T) 19,830 28,605
Expected credit loss rates TEREEEEE 0.08% 0.73%
Loss allowance provision (HK$'000) E B8 (T8 7T) (15) (208)
_Netcarryingamount (HK$'000)  f&ED#E(Fign) 19.815 . 28,397
Total contract assets, net BHEEREFE
(HK$'000) (F&1) 417,180 309,702
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& M5 H R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMXEREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MKREMEZEE)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (@) EERMR(E)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The loss allowance provision for trade
receivables and contract assets as at 31
December 2021 reconciles to the opening
loss allowance for that provision as follows:

Trade
receivables
B 2 EWRIE

HK$'000
TET

As at 1 January 2020 N-ZT-TF

(i) EEREE)

BSRBABEREGHNEE
(&)

RZETEZ—F+ A
=t+—RH ZEZEKFE
REHNEENEBEEREHBR
BRBENBHIBERS
(N

Contract
assets
BREE
HK$'000
FET

Total
HK$'000
T

—A—A 950 - 950
(Reversal of provision)/  CR{EE &R D),
provision for DERERE L]
impairment (484) 342 (142)
As at 31 December 2020 NZZE_ZTF
+=-—A=+—H 466 342 808
Reversal of provision BB ERE
for impairment (353) (323) (676)
As at 31 December 2021 RWZZE——4%F
+=-—A=+—H 113 19 132

Other receivables at amortised cost

Other receivables at amortised cost mainly
represents other receivables and deposits in
reputable financial institutions. Management
considers that its credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition with
reference to the counterparty historical
default rate and current financial position.
The impairment provision is determined
based on the 12-month expected credit 10ss
which is immaterial.
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e M RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Market risk

144

0

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk

Most of the income and expenditures of the
Group are denominated in HK$, being the
functional currency of the Group, and hence,
the Group does not have any material foreign
exchange exposure.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
bank deposits and bank borrowings. Bank
borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by the bank deposits.
The interest rate profile of bank borrowings is
disclosed in Note 25. The bank deposits
generate interest at the prevailing market
interest rates.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates had
been 50 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$794,000 (2020:
HK$733,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of higher/lower expenses on floating rate
interest bearing assets and bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due, resulting
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets
and liabilities.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to
manage liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of
cash required and monitoring the Group’s working
capital to ensure that all liabilities due and known
funding requirements could be met.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due, resulting
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets
and liabilities.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to
manage liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of
cash required and monitoring the Group’s working
capital to ensure that all liabilities due and known
funding requirements could be met.

& M B R M
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e MR RME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBRKREREw)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B¥EREE#)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) REBELRRE)

The table below analyses the financial liabilities of
the Group into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interests payments computed
using contractual rates, or if floating, based on the
current rates at the period-end date). Where the
loan agreement contains a repayable on demand
clause which gives the lender the unconditional

TRREBEAGEMBHMNAEK BB
ERNEBANFSRBE /AL
BB ES T SEENEIH
Al - ERABBENSE/EN
AEBRBRERE(BERAEH
MRk (A RFEFIR) LR
BRRATMEFHENMNE M
F) o WEFRBHEESRERE
BIEH - A TERANEGIER
ARER 2FFEENR - RIEEE
SHRBEAERAF ZETN &

RER-HTIERAENTHA
DRt BIE R A HIRE -

right to call the loan at any time, the amounts
repayable are classified in the earliest time bracket
in which the lender could demand repayment. The
maturity analysis for remaining financial liabilities is
prepared based on the scheduled repayment

dates.
Ondemand  Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
RERER 15K BB1F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET THET THET
As at 31 December 2021 NZEZ—F
+-A=+—H
Trade payables g HEN A = 108,669 = 108,669
Accruals, retention payables — JEEtER - ERRE SR
and other liabilities HthBE 88,864 - 88,864
Bank overdrafts RITEX - - - -
Bank borrowings BITIER 265,186 = = 265,186
Lease payables and AERNZEREMRTS
interest payables - 6,912 238 7,150
265,186 204,445 238 469,869
On deman Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
REREER 1R BiE1F FCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FAT FAL FAT
As at 31 December 2020 NZE_TF
+-A=+—H
Trade payables B SRR - 68,984 - 68,984
Accruals, retention payables B ER - BRNREE R
and other liabilities HithgE - 47,416 - 47416
Bank overdrafts RITEX 1,448 - - 1,448
Bank borrowings RITHER 231,458 - - 231,458
Lease payables and TAERMNFEREMNTS
interest payables - 1,240 1,200 2440
232,906 117,640 1,200 351,746
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

()

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summarises the maturity analysis
of bank borrowing with a repayment on demand
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements. The amounts include
interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than
the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time
band in the maturity analysis contained in the
above table.

There were no changes in the Group's approach to
capital management during the year.

e M RRMEE

3 BXEBREE®

3.1 MBEBREEE)

() RBEZEMRE(E)
TREULAB R B RKEEGRRN
RITIEFIZRE R B E P 5 E
AEERZHMAMBESN - B
REEBREMBEONEFTERN
MEMK - Bt - ZFLBEARN
ERFAEBIBMA DT AN [1R2
KIEE | REBRPIIENSHE -

FAAKRENEREERTAL &

=E) e

Maturity analysis — Bank borrowings and interest payable without
taking into account of repayment on demand clause of
certain bank borrowings, based on scheduled repayments
B e BERZHNIMA DN — BITERREMFIS

(P REERERBERHNE TRTER)

within1year 1to2years 2to5years Over5 years Total
1ER 1228R 2E55R SELE w@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T FHL T T

Asat31December 2021 RZZEZ—F
+-A=+-H 259,839 1,823 3,653 393 265,708

Asat31December2020 R-T-TE
+-ZA=+—-H 220,226 12,033 89 - 232,348

Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the directors do not consider that it is probable that
the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that
such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

ERIAEEOMBNRR  EF
RRRITIAF B 178 EKEN
FHE AR - EEHEZFR
TTERSRRE R = rE A
SR A MEE -
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e MR RME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.2 Capital risk management

R RERZ)
3.2 EXEMER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares, sell assets to reduce debt or repay borrowings

AEENEAEE R RERERLFE
REMBE  UBBREREME ®RES
Hp R ESRME U FREES
REEIAR D E R o BMEF
BEARRRE  AKEAFHBIRMN TR
ROREEE REEANATRE %
T#k - HEEERRDEBH RN
I B RUGTIRN R R S RHEEER -
o AEBEEERKGFEEE

when cash received from non-trade receivables. Also, FmmiRITEER M -

the Group continues to monitor and maintain the

sufficiency of banking facilities for its operations.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group HEXNHMAT—E  AEEFEE

monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings and lease liabilities
less cash and cash equivalents and pledged time
deposits. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position, plus
net debt.

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2021 was as follows:

ERBELEREREN - W XRFE
B IABE ARG E - FERARER
FHEABRERERREEFEDR
CEBEMEARE - BERUKRE
MAARR R AFIRE [#E sk | IFETRS

.
=)
Ft

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Borrowings B 25 265,186 232,906

Add: Lease liabilities m:HEEsR 15 6,999 2,370
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : & RIRESZEY

and pledged time deposits LA B3 BRI 5K 21 (68,928) (57,255)

Net debt (R 203,257 178,021

Total equity PR 150,919 137,792

Total capital wEKR 354,176 315,813

Gearing ratio BEAMBHLE 57% 56%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The Group analyses its financial instruments’ fair value by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents, pledged
time deposits, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables, accruals, retention payables
and other liabilities, borrowings and lease liabilities
approximate their fair values, which either due to their
short-term maturities, or that they are subject to floating
rates.

& M B R M

3 BXERERE)

3.3
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e M RRME

150

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue according to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation
of the individual contract of fitting-out works. The
progress is determined by the aggregated cost for the
individual performance obligation incurred at the end of
the reporting period compared with the estimated
budgeted cost. Management's estimation of the cost
incurred to date and the budgeted cost is primarily based
on fitting-out contract budget and actual cost report
prepared by internal quantity surveyors, where
applicable. Corresponding revenue from contract work is
also estimated by management based on the progress
and estimated revenue which contains variable
consideration. Because of the nature of the activities
undertaken in the fitting-out contracts, the date at which
the contract activity is entered into and the date when
the activity is completed usually fall into different
accounting periods. The Group regularly reviews and
revises the estimation of both transaction price and
contract cost in the budget prepared for each fitting-out
contract as the contract progresses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Significant judgement is required in estimating the
progress of performance, total contract costs and value
of variation work which may have an impact on
percentage of completion of the fitting-out contracts and
the contract revenue and profit to be recognised in an
accounting period. In addition, actual outcome in terms
of total revenue or costs may be higher or lower than
estimation at the end of the reporting period, which
would affect the revenue and profit recognised in future
years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

Impairment loss of trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to determine
when trade receivables and contract assets are impaired.
Significant judgement is exercised on the assessment of
the risk of default and expected credit losses from each
customer. In making the judgement, management
considers a wide range of factors such as results of
follow-up procedures, customer payment trends
including subsequent payments, customers’ financial
positions and expected future change of credit risks,
including consideration of factors such as general
economy measure, changes in macro-economic
indicators, etc. Details of assumptions and inputs used
are discussed in Note 3.1(a)(ii).

& M B R M

4 EBERSFETTRHE 2

(a)

(b)
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e MR RME
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REVENUE

The chairman is identified as the chief operating decision
maker ("CODM") of the Group who reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources.

As substantial business operations of the Group relate to the
provision of fitting-out and repair and maintenance services,
the CODM makes decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment based on the entity-wide
consolidated financial information. Accordingly, there is only
one single operating segment for the Group qualified as
reportable segment under HKFRS 8. No separate segmental
analysis is presented in the report.

(a) Disaggregation of revenue

Wy &

ITREERER/AEBETERLEARARE (R
CERERE])  ARBRAKEANIHESE N
AHEER RN RER

HARASENER XK LERIEHEERE

EREERTGAR  WEIBLERRELE

EEE M HERHELBRERDERER

AHEZRE - Bt - RIBEBM B HRELER

E8  ARBRA—EE-—RKLENHTA

F%Tziﬁ’\*ll BEANLEZ5BIDH
DM e

(@ WAZF

Fitting-out services HBRE 795,051 675,990
Repair and maintenance services s R HEEIRTS 3,057 4,222
798,108 680,212

The Group's revenue is recognised over time for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).
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e M RRMEE

5 REVENUE (continued) 5 W&@)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
All the revenue and assets are based in the Hong Kong BHE-_ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIEF

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same). ENEWRSREEHDINE B AER

(ZF=FF : f8RD) -

REXTEEFHE
BV BRFEMBAEE R FUE10%K
NEZRBZETBREP ZWam#sn

(c) Revenue from major customers (c)
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for
10% or more of the Group's revenue for each of the

(d)

financial years is set out below: T
2021 2020
—B-—F —EEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TFETT
Customer A ZEA 113,566 82,318
Customer B ZFB 140,371 N/A N3 A *
Customer C ZEC 298,382 246,401
customer D EED N/AFREA * 106,246
Customer E EEE N/A R A 71,526
Customer F 2EF 109,308 N/AN3E A
* Represent less than 10% of revenue for the respective year. * Fe R ABRAF E AT 10% ©

Revenue recognised in relation to contract

liabilities

The following table shows the revenue recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2021 related to carried-

forward contract liabilities.

Revenue recognised that was included
in the contract liability balance
at the beginning of the period
— Fitting-out services

(d)

FFABIIE B BB

B RS

— RKERH

HENAERBENCEIWE

2021
—E_—F

HK$'000
FRET

11,370

TRITREBE=ZZ=_—F+=A
ST HLEFEAEREZESNE
EREMNRE

2020
—E-EF

HK$'000
THETT

25,717
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e MR

5 REVENUE (continuea) 5 W&@)
(e) Unsatisfied long-term fitting-out contracts (e) KXEITREEEEHN
The following table shows unsatisfied performance TRIREEASHFRESLNRERKE
obligations resulting from fitting-out contracts. HELE -

Aggregate amount of the transaction W+ _A=+—HoE=%5

price allocated to long term SEERBITRAEESY
construction contracts that are MR 5 ERBER
partially or fully unsatisfied
as at 31 December 609,677 814,882
Management expects that the transaction prices BEEE RERIBEXRETE
regarding the unsatisfied contracts at the end of year will BT FEBERELXZUNTERERER
be recognised as revenue by referencing to the schedule Al
below:
2021 2020
=F=—F _T_FF
HK$°'000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Within 1 year 15K 463,499 744,696
Over 1 year HBEI1E2F 146,178 70,186
609,677 814,882
All other contracts are for periods of one year or less. As FTEHMEXNNBRAE—FHIUT -
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price RREBVBRELENEISHAA
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. o UWABEESRETZERBITELN
KX BB -
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& M5 H R

6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/ 6 HtWAREM(ER), WHEF
GAINS, NET 5
2020
—ETF
HK$'000
T
Other income Hibg A
Employment Support Scheme (Note a) [MREtZ ] 5181 (F5Fa) - 12,897
Construction Industry Council's s [REE 2 5 EI (HFED)
Employment Support Scheme (Note b) 564 2,820
Others HAh 64 80
628 15,797
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (&18), W FHE
Exchange loss, net B N B R F AR (64) ©)
Gains on changes in surrender values of 1R A& 43I & 1R IR(BEEE)
investments in insurance contracts ry Uk e (FIE16)
(Note 16) (81) 469
Others Eih 88 -
(57) 460

Amount represents wage subsidy granted under
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-Epidemic
Fund. Subsidies are offered to employers who have
employed regular employees and paid Mandatory
Provident Fund for them.

Amount represents wage subsidy granted from the
Employment Support Scheme for the Construction
Sector. Subsidies are offered to construction sector
employers who have employed casual employees on a
long-term basis.

The Group has fulfilled all attached conditions of the
above grants as at the end of each reporting period. The
Group has recognised the grants on systematic basis and
the unearned portion was recognised as deferred
government grants as disclosed in Note 24.

THEERBHRARES TH
[RELE] FHEIE MM TEMES -
ERRHEEY SEANBES
M B X AT SRR, -

TRERERFRULE] FHEH
METEME - BERRBIAR
EREE RS RE, -

AEEREREHETE Ll
BB S IRT - AKEE A
R R AL - BT E 24 PR
B RUERER D O HERAEIE IR
FRE R ©
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

7 BMEEIIHAX

Sub-contracting fees HBEMH 383,268 303,900
Materials costs B 241,374 211,935
Consultation services A RIS 3,147 5,015
Depreciation on plant and equipment M R I EE 1,549 2,473
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FHEEETE 5,287 1,901
Employee benefit expenses (including EERNBEYL (BEEEME)

directors’ emoluments) (Note 8) (Pftzx8) - 109,865 99,302
Auditor’s remuneration T2 BB BN &

— audit services — ZEARTE 1,300 1,300

— non-audit services — ERRERA - 120
Donation 1B 23 1,057
Entertainment expenses FEBNFE 52 1,799 1,362
Legal and professional fee FEMEERT 4,295 3,937
Transportation expenses RiBREY 1,170 1,274
Office expenses NN 2,713 2,514
Insurance 1R B 6,525 6,399
Short-term lease expenses (Note 15) S AT &R (B43E15) = 613
Write off of plant and equipment (Note 14) 5t S5 44, M2 25 48 (Mi5E 14) - 1,107
Gain on disposal on a right-of-use asset A S E W Es (i EE15)

(Note 15) - (74)
Research and development s 2,069 2,011
Other expenses HEmAx 7,973 9,661
Total cost of services and BRIE A 2 R AT R i 2 4B B

administrative expenses 772,357 655,807
Representing: (A
Cost of services PR 75 A AN 695,810 587,015
Administrative expenses THRAX 76,547 68,792

772,357 655,807
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

e M RRMEE

8 EERAFEX(BEEEME)

2020

—ETF

HK$'000

F&TT

Salaries, allowances and bonus e RMEES 103,129 90,171

Pension costs — defined contribution plan  R{AS A — FE s 2 3,558 3,467
Other staff welfare and benefit; EMBEIEA :

— Depreciation on plant and equipment  — R R IR EITE 1,489 2,871

— Depreciation on right-of-use assets —(FRAEEETNE 1.117 1,606

— Share option expense — BBRER X 530 -

— Others — Hfh 42 1,187

109,865 99,302

Five highest paid individuals TEREFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include 3 directors (Mr. Ng Chi Chiu, Ms. Zhao Haiyan
Chloe, and Ms. Ho Nga Ling) for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: 2). Their emoluments were reflected in Note 9(a).
The emoluments paid to the remaining 2 highest paid
individuals who are not directors of the Company (2020: 3) are
as follow:

Salaries, allowances and bonus e RN iES

HE-_ZT-—F+-_A=+—HIEE K
EMAZESHFMATBIE=8(REBE
A EERZTRABELZL) (ZEZF
FWB)ES - BEMFMEKEN) - B
NFHTME(ZE_ZFE : =2)BaHFA
T (WIEARRES) MFT -

2020
—E-EE

—= =

HK$'000
TAT

3,203 4,098

Pension costs — defined contribution plan  :RR& A — FE ka2l 36 54

3,239 4,152
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e MR

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EEFAHZ(BREEZEME)#®
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)
(continued)
Five highest paid individuals (continued) TEREFMAL(E)
The emoluments of the remaining 2 highest paid individuals BTIMEREHAT(WIEESE) OFHN T
who are not Directors fell within the following bands: T5|&E -

Number of individuals

2020

Emolument band HMEnE
From HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 2 1,500,000 7% 7T 1 2
From HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2 2,000,000 7 7T 1 1
2 3
During the financial year, no amounts were paid by the Group AR EREE - ANE B E mF a0 FEAR A
to any of the highest paid individuals who are not a director of FESENESHE AT INRBEEAMARE
the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the B INAZ B SR EABERL@IE -

Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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e M RRMEE

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9 EEEAK#ER

(a) Directors’ emoluments and retirement (a) EEMEFREKER
benefits
The remuneration and retirement benefits of the BEEHM R EFNFHINWOT

directors is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_S-—S+-HA=+—Hi&E
E

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
EARERES (FRARAAZENELE) NRBELAUELNHE

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect of

director’s other

services in

connection

with the

management of

Employer's  the affairs of

Allowances  contributionto the Company or
Discretionary and benefits aretirement its subsidiary

honuses inkinds  benefit scheme undertaking
ESHERALT
EXY IAWELESH
BUNER WEBRBELA
e i ML ZRRENER TR FERHHS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tn TR TER Thn Thn T
Executive Directors YIES
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu [EERL(THER)
(Chief Executive Officer) - 3,018 - 2,606 18 - 5,642
Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe BEELL - 1,380 300 - 18 - 1,698
Ms. Ho Nga Ling (Note a) kAL (Hika) - 1,504 - - 18 - 1522

Non-executive Director 05 £
M. Chan Ming Yim (Note b) R () 360 - - - - - 30

Independent non-executive ~ BuFHTES

Directors
Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond (Note b) {158+ (Rth) 600 - - - - - 600
Mr. Yip Chun On (Note b) i (W) 300 - - - - - 300
Prof. Chau Kwong Wing (Note )  SBE& %1% (B3t D) 300 = = = = = 300
1,560 5902 300 2,606 54 - 10,422
Note a:  Appointed on 1 September 2020. iEa: RZZE-_ZTFALA—RBERE-
Note b:  Appointed on 16 July 2020. MizEb: RZB_TF AT BEZRfE-
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fn 8 MR

9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9 E=E=EFK#EDR @)

(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments and retirement (@) EEMERERERN (&)
benefits (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEr—T-—T&E+-HA=+—HItE

3

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
ES(F)

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivablein

respect of

irector's other

senvices in

connection

with the

management of

Employer's the affairs of

Allowances  contributiontothe Company or

Discretionary and benefits a retirement its Subsiclary
Salary bonuses inkinds  benefit scheme undertaking

e e [ .- il Bz 3

HKS1000 HK$1000 HKS 000 HKS1000 HKS 1000 HKS 000

TEL FAn T Fhn T#n A
Executive Directors ez
Mr. Ng Chi Chiu REREE(THER)

(Chief Executive Officer) - 3018 - 2606 1 - 5,602

M. Zhao Haiyan Chloe BEELL - 1,380 - 1871 1 - 3269
Ms. Ho Nga Ling (Note a) AR L (Hika) - a0 - - 6 - 106

Non-executive Director F7ES
Mr Chan MingVim(Noteb) — BRshgise £ (Fisth) 165 - - - - - 165

Independent non-executive B FHTES

Directors
Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond (Note b) &% &+ (fifzth) 275 - - - - - 275
. Yip Chun On (Note b) SR (Hith) 137 - - - - - 137
Prof. Chau kwong Wing Note b) ~ BE&51% Mzt D) 137 - - - R R 1w

T4 4798 - aam i - 10,031
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9 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments and retirement
benefits (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the
directors of the Company waived their emoluments nor
agreed to waive their emoluments for the year (2020: nil).
During the financial year, no amounts were paid by the
Group to any of the directors of the Group as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the
directors of the Company waived their emoluments nor
agreed to waive their emoluments for the year (2020: nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

Save as disclosed in Note 9(a), the directors did not
receive any other retirement benefits or termination
benefits during the year (2020: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of the
directors for making available the services of them as a
director of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, there are no loans,
guasi loans and other dealing in favour of directors,
controlling bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those in Note 28, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Group was a party and in which
directors of the Group had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: nil).

& M B R M

9 EETIRER#)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)
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e MR

10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 B AFEE
2020
—E-TF
HK$'000
T
Finance income EUR 3 ON
— Bank interest income — RITHA BHA = (32)
— Interest income from loan to a director — M—RE2BEEZHWHF EWA - (231)
— Interest income from loans to — M EERNF B UA
related parties - (867)
- (1,130)
Finance costs B 5 A AN
— Interest expenses on borrowings — ERHFERX 10,237 14,455
— Interest elements of lease liabilities —HEAENNEHLD 401 192
10,638 14,647
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FFEREX
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Current tax expense BIEAFR I &2
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEFEH 3,794 2,689
under/(over) provision in prior year BEFEREBEIR(BERE) 99 (162)
Deferred income tax (Note 17) RIS (FFEE17) (130) (177)
Income tax expense FriS®if X 3,763 2,350
In accordance with the two-tiered profits tax regime, Hong RIBEFMSHMREH  #E2—T-_—F+=A
Kong profits tax was calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 —t+—BHLEFE H2EEBTNIETER
million and 16.5% on the remaining balance of the estimated iSRRI 8.25% S E R EFEFR - MerzEl
assessable profits for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: B165%tE (ZE-FF : #HA) °
same).
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong
profits tax rate as follows:

& M5 H R

11 FIBHiEx @)

REBOBRPTEH AR M BN IB R A E S
MENRTEEeEEANERSBBEUTE
5

>=

Profit before income tax % B 15 55 AL 16,360 20,399
Tax calculated at applicable tax rates HEAHERTENIE 2,534 3,201
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes N aJIFFE % 155 1,280
Income not subject to taxation BERBUA (279) (2,720)
Tax effect of unused tax losses KBRS B IAGEN RS2

not recognised 1,264 771
Under/(over) provision in prior year BAFERBETR(BEEE) 99 (162)
Tax concession HgE=R (10) (20)
Income tax expense PRSE R X 3,763 2,350

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.19,
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of approximately HK$7,657,000 (2020:
HK$4,672,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

REBEME2I9MEMN G B - ARELE
BL#I7,657,0008 L (ZFE ZFF : 4,672,000
BTN EFREBERERRERBEE -
R N A R] B2 K SR & AR T 1) LA (HAE R
WA ADERE R N B RS A IA K SRR
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e MR

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares issued
during the respective periods. In determining the
weighted average number of ordinary shares,
600,000,000 shares of the Company, which resulted from
the issue and allotment of shares by the Company in
connection with the Reorganisation, had been treated as

if such shares were issued on 1 January 2019.

12 BRER

(@ BREXEF
BREXRBN TR REHEE ARG
ot MR DA B B 1T B @Az hntE
FHHE - EEEEBEBMEFY
BE AARAREBAEZETREREK
153 7 4 89 600,000,000 Az A8 A & J 19
ERRABOZEFROHER TN
F-A—B#T-

Profit attributable to owners of
the Company (HK$)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue

Basic and diluted earnings per share
(HK cents per share)

RARGEA AEIERHM (ETT)

BT E B INE T 8

BRERFEERN (FRBI)

12,597,000 18,049,000
800,000,000 691,803,279
1.57 2.61

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share for the year is the same as
basic earnings per share as the potential ordinary shares
in relation to the share options granted to the employees
(Note 26) are anti-dilutive and we do not assume any

conversation or exercise.

13 DIVIDENDS

(b) ERBHERF
AEENSRESRNESHRERR
MER - ASERETEENBERE
BB E B (M iE26) BB REEHE
G RBFILMRRA E BRI TE o

13 K2

BEEIRMIRMNERR
— —ZE-TF  GRO2ETT -

Dividend declared and paid
— 2020: HK$0.22 per share

130,000
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e M RRMEE

14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 BWMERE

Leasehold Office Motor
improvements Machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HEEE B BAERE AE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THT THT THL THT

Cost ﬁﬂi
At 1 January 2020 —T-TF-—f—H 16,466 2,774 368 1,220 20,828
Additions for the year iﬂq%ﬁ - 244 1,208 - 1,452
Transfer from right of use assets REESRREFAELESRL

upon the end of lease period - - - 2,049 2,049
Write off for the year FERHHE (2,358) - - - (2,358)
At 31 December 2020 “E2-TH+-AZ+-R 14,108 3018 1576 3269 21971
At 1 January 2021 —T--%-f—-H 14,108 3,018 1576 3,269 21,971
Additions for the year iﬂﬂ%ﬁ - - 1,060 - 1,060
Government Subsidy (Note) TR B () - - (146) - (146)
At 31 December 2021 R-F-—4#+-A=+-A 14,108 3018 2490 3,269 2,385
Accumulated depreciation iﬂ?é
At 1 January 2020 “T-F%—-f—-H 7,727 1,348 223 694 9,992
Transfer from right of use assets %ﬁ,ﬁz,ﬁ;ﬁﬁi AFAREESEN

upon the end of lease period - - - 1,290 1,290
Charge for the year ERHG 4,465 607 161 111 5,344
Write off for the year F A (1,251) - - - (1,251)
At 31 December 2020 R=Z-TF+-A=+-A 10941 1955 384 2,095 15,375
At 1 January 2021 RZZE-—%—A—H 10,941 1,955 384 2,095 15,375
Charge for the year EW?DB? 1,601 606 578 253 3,038
At 31 December 2021 “E--Ff-A=t-8 12,542 2,561 962 2,38 18,413
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2021 R-B--£+-A=1+-H 1,566 457 1,528 921 4,472
At 31 December 2020 —“T-FF+-fA=1+-H 3,167 1,063 1,192 1174 6,596

Note: On 12 July 2021, the Group has received a fund from the Development s RZEZ—FtA+=H AEECHBESEFT

Bureau of the Government of the Hong Kong. The amount was
HK$146,000 and the Group has complied with the terms and the condition

attached to the fund.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, depreciation of
HK$596,000 (2020: HK$593,000) and HK$2,442,000 (2020:
HK$4,751,000) were charged to “cost of services” and
“administrative expenses” in the statement of comprehensive

income, respectively.

BERAREIES - £RA146,00087C - MASLH

HEZEE DM B IRT AR

BE-2-—F T A=t BLFEHS
£ 596,000 7T (Z T —FF : 593,000/&7T)
%.2,442,00078 7T (ZF ZFF : 4,751,000
72) B RIR 2 Ekas & o 0 [ BRAS A | R 77

BRI | HRR ©
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15 LEASES 15 #HE
(@) Right-of-use assets (a) ERAEEE
Motor
vehicles Properties Total
RE LYES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHTT
Cost EJZZF
At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZFEF—H—H 2,049 14,793 16,842
Transfer back to plant and qfrﬂ SHIREEZE
equipment upon the end ek N AR
of lease period (2,049) - (2,049)
Disposal for the year FALE - (4,190) (4,190)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZFTF
+=ZA=+—8H - 10,603 10,603
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—F—F—H - 10,603 10,603
Additions for the year FRARE - 10,943 10,943
At 31 December 2021 RZEBE-—%F
+=-A=+—H - 21,546 21,546
Accumulated depreciation FRITE
At 1 January 2020 RZZZTF—-H—H 1,100 7,173 8,273
Charge for the year F R 190 3,317 3,507
Transfer back to plant and REEHREDE
equipment upon the end M N R A
of lease period (1,290) - (1,290)
Disposal for the year FRHE - (2,165) (2,165)
- 8,325 8,325
At 1 January 2021 R-ZZE=-_—F—H—H - 8,325 8,325
Charge for the year FRHIBR - 6,404 6,404
- 14,729 14,729
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2021 NZEBE=-—F
+=B=+—H - 6,817 6,817
At 31 December 2020 RIZE_TF
+=-—A=+—H - 2,278 2,278
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15 LEASES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

The right-of-use assets represent the Group'’s rights to
use underlying leased premises and motor vehicles
under lease arrangements over the lease terms from 2 to
3 years. They are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liabilities.
Portion of right-of-use assets represents material
transactions with related parties and disclosed in Note
28.

Upon the end of lease period during the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group purchased two leased motor
vehicles from the lessor and the motor vehicles were
transferred to plant and equipment.

Lease liabilities

BIEAEE
FERNERER >

Current portion
Non-current portion

& M5 H R

15 #HE#®)

(@) FEHEEE@E)
EREEERASEE2EIFHEN
RAREBEHEZHHEBEBEE SR
FORBHAER) » IR AR A REHT
ERZBEBEYE IHEER
BEREAENTEETHE - EAE
BEMN—HoRREARBTHEAR
5 W E28 I FE

REBE-_FT_ZTF+-_A=+—H1t
FEHEHRE AEEMEBEAE
EMWEETERZTAECERE
AR Ko 55 A

(b) HERME

2020
—E-TF

HK$'000
TET

6,762
237

1,182
1,188

6,999 2,370

The interest rate of each lease contracts is fixed at its
contract date, and the interest rates of all the lease
liabilities were 2.9%-4.0% (2020: 2.9%) per annum as at
31 December 2021.

The total cash outflows for leases including payments of
short-term lease, lease liabilities and payments of
interest expenses on leases for the year ended 31
December 2021 was HK$6,314,000. (2020: HK$5,201,000)

EHEGHNNENEGHAEE
mArEMEaER _—TE=-—F+=A4
—t+—BNFMERE29%40%(=F
TEE 1 29%) o

HE_Z-_—F+=A=+—HL*F
EMHAEReREAE(RERHAE
M3 HEEERAENF MM
) B63140008 (T =T F
5,201,000 7T) °
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fn 8 MR

15 LEASES (continued) 15 #HE (&)

(c) Amount recognised in the consolidated (c) AiFE2ZHKRERTPERANESEHE
statement of comprehensive income

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FATT

Interests on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 401 192

Expenses related to short-term leases  Ed4S HAFR E A BRI B L - 613

Gain on disposal of a right-of-use asset H & {3 & E k2 - (74)
Depreciation of the Group's right-of-use assets are ANEBRFHESENERIANT :

recognised as follows:

2021 2020

=E-—F —E_TF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTEx FAT

Cost of services PR 75 R A = 190
Administrative expenses TR 6,404 3,317
Depreciation charge TEZH 6,404 3,507
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16 INVESTMENTS IN INSURANCE CONTRACTS

e M RRMEE

16 REEHRE

2020

—ETF

HK$'000

FHTT

At the beginning of year REH 15,261 14,792

Addition for the year FRRE 3,000 -
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated GtA),/ ik B2 mEmliEE

statement of comprehensive income:
— Changes in surrender values, net (Note 6)  — iR{RE{E B E)F4E (M5t 6) (81) 469
At the end of year RER 18,180 15,261

Investments in insurance contracts represented key
management life insurance policies (the “Insurance
Policies”). The Group is the beneficiary of the Insurance
Policies. The Insurance Policies were pledged to the bank as
securities for certain facilities granted to the Group. Changes in
value of the investment in insurance contracts are recorded in
“other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

RBEOREEIZEEBASRE(R
Bl ARBRRENZmA - REDEM
THRITERETETAKRENREMNER
m e RBREHNRENEEZINGEEEEK
smRW [ EAM (EER),IRaF ] AR
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e MR RME

17

170

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 17 EEFEHREE

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets
against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income tax levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

The followings are the deferred income tax assets recognised
and movements thereon during the year:

BEATEANTRAGEVRAASH & ERR
HIFr S B EEREH - BRERSEHEEME
B REF RS HEERRTEBL TR
R EREABMAFREELEEEMEH
RERE - BIRRIEGHEERABER
HiH -

N TREFRANERRELEMSEHEEREE
e

Decelerated

Provision depreciation Total
BiE RRITE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
At 1 January 2020 R-E-ZEF—H—H 157 474 631
(Credited)/charged to consolidated (5t A), /% B4R &
statements of comprehensive EEMER (HE1)
income (Note 11) (24) 201 177
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZFF+-H=+—H
1 January 2021 —E-—F—H—H 133 675 808
(Credited)/charged to consolidated (5t A) Ik B4zE
statements of comprehensive 2EMER (HE11)
income (Note 11) (111) 241 130
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H 22 916 938

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
unrecognised deferred income tax assets (2020: nil).

Superland Group Holdings Limited e 24 £EER AR A A
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& M5 H R

18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 18 #ZEHRIErsWEm T E

2020
—E-TE

—= =

HK$'000
TET

Assets as per consolidated statement &M ERAR2ZIINEE
of financial position

Financial assets subsequently measured — HE{&IREE ST EN S REE
at amortised cost

— Trade receivables (Note 19) — E 5 EWEIE (M7 19) 92,059 70,619
— Other receivables and deposits — Hb WA RIS
(excluding prepayments) (T BIEEMAZIEA) 23,830 36,036
— Cash and cash equivalents and —ReMREFEMUR
pledged time deposits (Note 21) EHEATHER(HEE21) 68,928 57,255
Total @t 184,817 163,910
Liabilities as per consolidated FEUBRAREINERE
statement of financial position
Other financial liabilities subsequently HIg BN AN 28
measured at amortised cost Hitvemas
— Trade payables (Note 24) — B SR RE (M 24) 108,669 68,984
— Accruals, retention payables and —EFER  ENRBER
other liabilities excluding EaECreiEEemaE)
non-financial liabilities 88,864 47,416
— Borrowings (Note 25) — &R (F3E25) 265,186 232,906
— Lease liabilities (Note 15) —fHAEaBEEFE15) 6,999 2,370
469,718 351,676
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e MR

19

172

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(@) Trade receivables

19 EZRHEMEVRRE
B 5 EWKA

Trade receivables E 5 W FIR 92,172 71,085
Less: provision for impairment S BB G (113) (466)
Trade receivables, net E 5 W FIB TR 92,059 70,619

As at 31 December 2021, the ageing analysis of the trade

receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

R-EBE-—F+-_A=+—H EB5H
FEW BB E H MR DT T

2021 2{020]

B —ZT-FH

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

1to 30 days 1£230H 49,272 43,288
31-60 days 31E260H 40,766 27,253
61-90 days 61£290H 1,880 72
Over 90 days 0B 254 472
92,172 71,085

Trade receivables are due from 30 days to 90 days after
invoicing depending on the nature of services. The
Group's trade receivables are mainly denominated in

Hong Kong Dollars.

Superland Group Holdings Limited e 24 £EER AR A A

B 5 RYGANRMAZREIIOBED
BRZIH BFREUEEME - A%
B E P RUGRIBEE EABTTAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continved) 19 B S R HAtEUWRRIE (&)
(b) Other receivables, deposits and prepayments (b) EHE#FEWEIE - e RFANERE

Prepayments for fitting-out works g TIRBNZRE 15,770 13,275
Prepayments for insurance REE TR SRIE 640 2,170
Deposits (Note) & (M) 23,540 35,611
Advances to employees D FREE 290 425
40,240 51,481
Less: Non-current portion B JEBNEAER S (22,906) (29,480)
Current portion BIHAER 5 17,334 22,001
Note: Deposits represent surety bonds purchased from insurance BiE BeERRBATEENBORE
companies, rental and utility deposits. They are expected to be HERKERE ZERBEEHFIR
released in accordance with the term of the respective contracts. BHEBEOIETGRD o
The Group's other receivables and deposits are mainly REBREMBIRGFERZSEEN
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. None of the other BITETE - BIEHMERRERZRS
receivables and deposits was impaired. BYERE °
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables B REMBERFIBENEEREHLELR
approximate to their fair values. The maximum exposure FEEE - RNEWMSHEARMAZD
to credit risk at the end of each reporting period is EREERRALLMSEZ S REM
carrying amount of each class of trade and other JEWGRIBR BRI (E o

receivables mentioned above.
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e MR

20 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 20 EHNEEREGHNER
LIABILITIES
Included in contract assets/(liabilities) are the following: LATREtAGHEE,(BE) :

Contract assets ENEE
Unbilled revenue RABEWER 362,170 259,693
Retention receivables (Note) FEWUREE & (FF5E) 55,029 50,351
417,199 310,044
Less: provision for impairment W B (19) (342)
contract assets, net EHNEETE 417,180 309,702
Contract liabilities EHAE (11,539) (11,370)
Note: Retention receivables are settled in accordance with the terms of the Bzt - IR S TYIRBHEBA QMBI o =R
respective contracts. The terms and conditions in relation to the release BEMERRIGEHERENRSHOMBREZR 8
of retention vary from contract to contract, which is subject to practical HERRT - BEECHKBLALNTHOHBEER
completion, the expiry of the defect liability period or a pre-agreed time BITEHEN - BFBWRBEWEAMBRARANIZ
period. In the consolidated statement of financial position, retention CEBRSERRBEE -
receivables were classified as current assets based on operating cycle.
The settlement analysis of these retention receivables based BEBAENFEHE D ZERIWRE R4
on the terms of related contracts was as follows: HERDHTIT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Within one year —F R 29,408 18,517
Between one to two years —EMF 25,621 31,834
55,029 50,351
The Group expects that contract assets have the same risk REBBHAYEENRE FEIWRIBEREAE
characters as trade receivables. The impairment of contract B BB B o & 49 E RUE R M T 3.1)i)
assets is disclosed in Note 3.1(a)(ii). As at 31 December 2021, WE R-_E-——F+-_F=+—H &4
the reversal of provision for impairment of contract assets is BENRMERERED A% 323,00087T « R
approximately HK$323,000. As at 31 December 2020, the ZEEFFA=+—H BRELEER
provision for impairment of contract assets is approximately (B H BB 49 5 342,000 78 7T ©
HK$342,000.
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21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND 21

PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS

e M RRMEE

Eﬁ&i&ﬁ%ﬁ%&&ﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁ
b

Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEED 62,317 54,128
Pledged time deposits (Note) IR E A7 5k (P ) 6,611 3,127
68,928 57,255

Note: Restricted deposits are funds which are pledged as security for the
banking facilities of the Group. Interest rates of restricted deposits are
approximately 0.01% (2020: same) per annum.

The above figures reconcile to the amount of cash shown in
the consolidated statement of cash flows at the end of each
year as follows:

Mt : SREITFRIECEBERNERBITREHERR
KIFIE - ZRHIGFEROFFNEAEL001%(ZF=
TF - AR %) °

REFR LABFEEERERERAT
TR RN

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T4
Cash and cash equivalents balance iR e MRS EE LS
as above 62,317 54,128
Bank overdrafts (Note 25) R1TE S (MI5E25) - (1,448)
Balances per consolidated statement FEREMEREIINEER
of cash flows 62,317 52,680

The Group's cash and bank balances and pledged time
deposits are mainly denominated in the following currencies:

HKS$ BT
United Stated dollars ETT

AREBNRE RRITHESK KD EAERFR
TEUATINEEEHE -

2020
—TE-TE

—= —=

HK$'000
TET

68,914 57,208
14 47

68,928 578955
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22 SHARE CAPITAL

176

22 RZ&

Number of
ordinary Share
shares Capital
TEREB [} &S
HK$'000
FETT
Authorised: EIE
As at 31 December 2020 and 2021 RIE_EFN_T_—F
+-—A=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREHE :
As at 31 December 2019 R-_E—AF+-_A=+—H 10,100 -
Shares issued pursuant to RIEEHETIG (KiiEa)
the reorganisation (Note a) 599,989,900 6,000
Shares issued pursuant to BRI BEEETHRD (D)
the Share Offer (Note b) 200,000,000 2,000
As at 31 December 2020 and 2021 RIE_TEFN_T-—F
+-—A=+—H 800,000,000 8,000
* The amount is below HK$1,000. * S FBER 1,000 7T ©
Notes: Pt
(a) 0n 16 June 2020, the Group increased its authorised share capital from @) RZF_FFXA+AE Z’“‘fﬁﬁ B % 8 18 B
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of a par value of HK$0.01 each 1,962,000,000|3ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ1ﬁ 0.0178 LM i A7 #6 HOX
to HK$20,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each by JE 7 1 380,000 7 7T (53 /5 38,000,000 & & A 7
the creation of an additional 1,962,000,000 shares of a par value of {E0.0178 T 15 ) 32 A1 5 20,000,000/ 7T (4
HK$0.01 each. On the same day, the Company issued and allotted 2,000,000,000 i & B EI £ 0.01 8 L i 5 ) © A
599,989,900 shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company to its respective B AR AR EAR B R 31T & AL 3 599,989,900
shareholders and credited against share premium. BRERR0.018TT 2 AR AR + W AR 4 B R
A ©
() In connection with the Company’s listing on Main Board of The Stock b HARARZFTTFLATLAREERAR
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 17 July 2020, 200,000,000 new FHARRARER LT - BIRERO0.63BTHE
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$0.63 per 1317 200,000,000 % & 2 0.01 75759@fﬁ¥@ﬁﬁ '
share for a total consideration (before share issuance expenses) of DA B 4B Eﬁ RAME R 1 & 1TH %) )
approximately HK$126,000,000, credited to share capital of HK$2,000,000 126,000,000 T H f12,000,0007%8 T K
and share premium of HK$124,000,000, respectively. In addition, issuance 124,000,000 78 7253 Bl ABR AR R AR R it 4 (8 © bt
costs amounting to approximately HK$31,994,000 was charged against SN BEATRCANHD 31,994,000 78 7L E R AR R AR
the share premium account of the Company. BRI -
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e M RRMEE

23 RESERVES 23 f#1B

The reserves movement of the Group is as follows: REBWFHEEESWT -

Capital Share-
Share reserve based
premium (Note) reserve Total

0 (MeE) ERNREE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TAT

Balance as at 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-_ZF—A—H
R - 2,500 - 2,500

Transactions with owners  LUEBA SR EEFA
in their capacity as owners #T%5
Capitalisation issue of shares BT (5 22(a))

(Note 22(a)) (6,000) - - (6,000)
Issue of shares pursuant to the  RIERR (D 2 E 1T F 5

Share Offer, net (Note 22(b)) (BIzE22(0)) 124,000 - - 124,000
Listing expenses charged to R D EEMRH LS

share premium (Note 22(b)) (Bf3E22(0)) (31,994) - - (31,994)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 A-ZE-_FTF+_-_F=1+—HxK
and 1 January 2021 —E-F-A-HHEH 86,006 2,500 - 88,506

Issuance of share option BITHE R E - - 530 530

Balance as at 31 December 2021 AT = —4F

TZRA=1t—HI&R 86,006 2,500 530 89,036
Note: Capital reserve represents the combined paid-in capital of the group Witk . BAREBEERATNAHELEARWBARR
companies and capital contribution to subsidiaries by equity holders of BEEACEEAZREBEMHBARIMLESE -

subsidiaries upon completion of reorganisation.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 ® 20214 4R 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24 BEFREMENRE

2020

—E-TF

HK$'000

FHT

Trade payables B S ETRIA 108,669 68,984

Accruals, retention payables and BErER - ENREBER
other liabilities: HipaE

Retention payables (Note) FERHMREB 2 () 56,931 43,394
Accrued employee benefits expenses FEHEBEEAR Y 15,705 9,970
Deferred income from government grant BT 4 BE R IEU A = 564
Other accruals and payables Hfh e & A & IR 1,933 4,022
Deposits from subcontractors RKE D BEEIESE 30,000 -
L 104569 57,950
213,238 126,934

The trade and other payables are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars and the carrying amounts approximate their fair

values.

178

EEEEQFEES -
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 24

The ageing analysis of the trade payables by invoice date is as
follows:

e M RRMEE

ESREMENREE)
B 5N SRR E A MRS T -

1-30 days 1230H 72,794 37,903
31-60 days 31£60H 16,642 6,958
61-90 days 61£290H 5,429 2,360
Over 90 days 90H A+ 13,804 21,763

108,669 68,984

Note: The terms and conditions in relation to the release of retention vary from
contract to contract. In the consolidated statement of financial position,
retention payables were classified as current liabilities based on operating
cycle. The settlement date of the retention payables based on terms of
related contracts is as follows:

OB

BERRBSNERRGETEETRAOMmEMZE
£ RINTREBEVEAFBHIRRRARE LAY
DEBRBEME - RAEBEHOFHE D HENR
BemsNREmT

2021

B
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Will be paid within twelve months s+ — &8 A RSt 25,093 18,406

Will be paid more than twelve months HREREBBB T ZEAZH

after the end of the year 31,838 24,988
56,931 43,394

The trade and other payables are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars and the carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

BHRAMENFIEEZAETIHE - MEAE
HENTERE -
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25 BORROWINGS

25 f&

Current, secured BER - B
— Bank overdraft (Note b) — iRITBE T (H7ED) = 1,448
— Bank borrowings (Notes a and b) — RITER(MHsFakb) 265,186 231,458
Total borrowings (ER NG 265,186 232,906

The bank overdraft and bank borrowings bear interest at
floating rates that are market dependent.

@)

180

The table below analyses the bank borrowings of the
Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the year end to the contractual
maturity date without taking into consideration the effect
of repayment on demand clause.

FITIEX RBITER R T BH BT
PRS-

FREARERERBTHHES
4320 B #4818 1 41 B 4B 3815 1038
FTERA T - o R RIRE
EHEHOTE -

Bank borrowings repayable:

FEEEMIRITIER -

Within one year —FR 259,604 219,512
More than one year but not —FAEERFA
exceeding two years 1,692 11,876
More than two years but not MENA EBRFER
exceeding five years 3,511 70
More than five years AFUE 379 -
265,186 231,458
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group REBEE_T-_—F+-_A=+—0801
obtained new bank borrowings of approximately EE REEDNEHEERTERY

HK$1,015,139,000 (2020: HK$965,728,000) and repaid
bank borrowings of approximately HK$981,411,000 (2020:
HK$1,114,459,000).

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate
their fair values. The weighted average interest rates are
4.11% per annum as at 31 December 2021 (2020: 3.72%
per annum).

Superland Group Holdings Limited e {4 £ EiEKR AR A7)
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e M RRMEE

25 BORROWINGS (continued) 25 &R #)
(b) As at 31 December 2021, borrowings of the Group are b)) R-T-_—F+-_A=+—0 K&
secured/guaranteed by: BERC AT IS BRI HER
(i) Personal guarantee provided by Mr. Ng; () HRAEEIREOEAER:
(i)  Corporate guarantees provided by the Company; iy BARRFRHOREER
(i)  Properties held by two Directors, Mr. Ng and Ms. (i) BAMBEF(REERBELZLT)R
Zhao, and the related companies; Eali NI RNE0kY E S
(iv) Investments in insurance contracts and pledged (iv) ARITEIES TIRITRLE AYIEIF
time deposit of approximately HK$18,180,000 (2020: BE D R 418,180,000 T ( =
HK$15,261,000) and HK$6,611,000 (2020: T T F 115,261,000 T ) &
HK$3,127,000) were held at bank as security for 6,611,000 L ( — T — = £ :
certain banking facilities respectively. 3,127,000/ 70) MR & BT E
ME IR T T o
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: REBHABIETRENT ¢
2020
—ETHF
HK$'000
F&T
Floating rate TFENFIER 56,526 55,459
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are mainly ERREEAEEZUTIERRTHE -

denominated in the following currencies.

2020
—E-EE

—= =

HK$'000
TAET

HK$ BIT 265,186 230,366
United Stated dollars ETT - 2,005
Renminbi AR - 535

265,186 232,906
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26

182

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Share Option Scheme was approved by the Board of
Directors on 1 April 2021. The Scheme is valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the adoption date of the
scheme. Under the plan, a consultant is granted options which
only vest if he could complete his services over three years.
The options are exercisable no later than ten years from the
grant date.

When exercisable, each option is convertible into one ordinary
share fourteen days after the release of the half-yearly and
annual financial results of the group to the market.

The exercise price of options is based on the weighted average
price at which the company’s shares are traded on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange during the week up to and including the
date of the grant.

Set out below are summaries of options granted under the
plan:

26 LARHHERNK

BREAEN_Z_—FHA—HEESE
Bk - AT EIBRTEIRM B IR+ RE
Mo RIBEE - BERERBRE - EERK
TRBB=FNRBETSRE - BRESR
BARKH B #1716 -

EIBRER T TEE - TARREA ST
BEFREFHBEERUEBERE R
BB -

BRETEENIREEERG A —£8

(RtEY B) A2 AR 5 S5 H 8 il
FHfE -

TRINERE IR BB EM R -

2021
—E-—F

Average

exercise
price per Number of
share option options

SHERE
FIITEE EREE
(in thousands)
T4
As at 1 January wn—H—H = =
Granted during the year FREL HK$0.712 4,000
As at 31 December Rt=—A=+—~H HK$0.712 4,000

Vested and exercisable at 31 December

No options expired during the periods covered by the above
tables.
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26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(i) Fair value of options granted
The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$0.32
per option. The fair value of share options granted in
2021 is determined using the Binomial option pricing
model. The inputs used in estimating the fair value of
share options granted were as follow:

(@)

()

®

exercise price: HK$0.712
grant date: 1 April 2021

expiry date: 31 March 2031

share price at grant date: HK$0.66

expected price volatility of the company'’s shares:
46.2% (Note)

expected dividend yield: nil

risk-free interest rate: 1.4% (Note)

Note: The expected volatility is assumed to be based on historical volatility of
the comparable companies. The risk-free rate was determined with
reference to the yields of Hong Kong Sovereign Curve.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, share option expense
of HK$530,000 was charged to the “administrative expenses”
in the statement of comprehensive income.

26 U AERSR @)

0)

GER

EREBRENAFE

REBEE-_TE-_—F+-_A=+—

Bk

FEERLBRER R L BHNFE
NFERBHONEBET - R_T——
FRENBERENQRTFENER ZA
A EEEAETE - BFEREE
Pt R HEFAEABIRRRDT

(@) 17fA(E : 0.712/87T

by HFEAH: —E-—FA—H

© EmMBH: _T=Z—%F=H

=+-A

(d) RHAHRE: 066ET

) =B RDTE S E R IKE:

46.2% (MI5F)
(H FEEARR B RES « &

® EEBRFE:1.4% ()

RAXS2ZEFB T EHREBEEE -

RE FEERME TV P AT L R AR FE R 08 o S

HE-_ET-_—F+-_A=+—HItEE B
R4 B9 % & 530,00058 ¢ it AR E W
KA ITBASZ] -
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27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27 HmEBHEREBRMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash (@) BRFTER AR L1584 Y

generated from operations:

Profit before income tax R PS5 A& A 16,360 20,399
Adjustments for: AT R IERE -

Interest income (Note 10) FE U A (HF3E10) - (1,130)
Interest expenses (Note 10) FEFAZ (MEE10) 10,638 14,647
(Losses)/Gains on changes in surrender {Rfg A& £IREHRIRBEE S

values of investments in insurance BT (E518) e (B EE6)

contracts, net (Note 6) 81 (469)
Write off of plant and equipment T SE e N 224 (B EE14)

(Note 14) - 1,107
Gain on disposal of a right-of-use asset & & AREE EWZ - (74)
Depreciation of plant and equipment AR N SR AT EE (B5E14)

(Note 14) 3,038 5,344
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (I 15)

(Note 15) 6,404 3,507
Share-base payments LARR ) B ERE 5K 530 -
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary — BUHE L —FEIF & 2 Bl E R = -
Reversal of impairment losses on trade 2 5 FEWRIE K& & 494 B RlE

receivables and contract assets, EstE BT E8 (MY 7L 3.1(a)()

net (Note 3.1(a)(ii) (676) (142)

36,375 43,189
Changes in working capital LEESED
Trade receivables B Z W EIR (21,087) 60,922
Other receivables, deposits and H i EUWGRIE « e RIERIE

prepayments 11,241 (1,947)
Contract assets BHEE (107,155) (145,851)
Contract liabilities EHBE 169 (16,305)
Trade payables B SR FIE 39,685 (2,032)
Accruals, retention payables and JEEtER - ENRBER

other liabilities EmaE 46,619 2,209
Cash generated from/(used in) TR/ (FTR) R F 8

from operations 5,847 (59,815)

*  The amount is below HK$1,000.
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27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27 ZEREREXRMT @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) FEKHE
The following table provides a reconciliation for the TREYWWAR—ZE_EER T - —F
movements of net debt arising from financing activities B EEREEHEENTEREH
during financial year 2020 and 2021. HIER o

Liabilities from

financing activities
BETHELNAR
Borrowings —
Cash and Pledged excluding
cash time Bank bank Lease
equivalents deposits overdrafts overdrafts liabilities
BN 2EHA fBR— T8
BEEEY ERER RITEX RITEX HEaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAL TEL TAL TAL
As at 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZF-f-R 10,847 3,100 1318 380,189 8,365
Cash flows Beng 43,281 27 130 - (4,39)
Drawdown of borrowings REER - - - 965,728 -
Repayment of borrowings BRER - = - (1,114,459) -
Non-cash movement; HREEY
Disposal of right-of-Use assets ~ HEFRELE - - - - (2,099)

Net cash as at 31 December 2020 R=Z-ZH+-F=+-H

NRLFE 54,128 3127 1448 231,458 2370

Asat 1 January 2021 R-E-—%-HF—H 54,128 3,127 1,448 231,458 2,370

Cash flows RenE 8,189 3,484 (1,448) - (6,314)

Drawdown of borrowings REER - - - 1,015,139 -

Repayment of borrowings BT - - = (981,411) -
Non-cash movement: FBLEY

Addition of right-of-use assets ~ REERIEAE = - - - 10,943

Net cash asat 31 December 2021 R=ZE=—F+-f=+-H
NRLFE 62,317 6,611 - 265,186 6,999
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party, has joint control
over the party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operation decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control.

The following is a summary of the significant transactions
carried out between the Group and its related parties in the
ordinary course of business and balances arising from related
party transactions as at 31 December 2021.

(a) The Group had the following significant transactions with
related parties during the financial years.

28 BEHLRS

W— I BRENERAAEEF S —T7 - XF
EHl = S — TR E R B G ER R

BEMEATE - AT RSB - i
B RLRES - TR RS -

AT AAEEEERERIAEREEBEBESD
ETNEARS  UER-_FE-—F+_H
=T HEBIRPELENEHUE -

(@) AEERFRFENEFEHHHOEKR
BT e

Loan interest charged to

A1 BE R A B BRI B

related companies - 867
Loan interest charged to a director AR B —HESRE

of the Company BHA & - 231
Lease payments paid to directors MARRESZNOHEERE

of the Company 600 1,125
Lease payments paid to R AR HEERIE

a related company 600 600

Note: These transactions were conducted in the normal course of
business at prices and terms mutually agreed among the parties.

(b) Balances with related parties
In relation to the leased properties from a director (2020:
same) and a related company, the corresponding rental
deposits paid by the Group as at 31 December 2021 are
HK$200,000 (2020: HK$200,000).
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Balances with related parties (continued)

()

In relation to the leased properties from a director (2020:
same) and a related company, the corresponding lease
liabilities payable to a director (2020: same) and a related
company as at 31 December 2021 are HK$1,182,000
(2020: HK$2,330,000).

In relation to the leased properties from a director (2020:
same) and a related company, the corresponding
remaining balances of right-of-use assets acquired from
a director (2020: same) and a related company as at 31
December 2021 are HK$1,117,000 (2020: HK$2,234,000).

Banking facilities/Guarantees

The Group's banking facilities, surety bonds and office
rental agreement were secured by properties, corporate
and personal guarantees given by related parties/
companies as below:

Name of related parties/companies

MBS RREE BB

& M5 H R

28 BB AEXRF &)

(b)

(c)

ERBAT 5 AR BR ()
RRE—R(ZFFF: HRAES
E-MEBARNEENERNS  »©
—E-FHA=t-AENR—%
TR MR EER —ERB
AFMHAEHEERER1,182,0008 7T
—Z T4 2 2,330,000/87T) °

MRE—R(ZEZZF - HEES
F—EBEBARMEEENS - ©
—E-—F+ZA=t—Hm—&(Z
T-FTF AR EE KB AR
WENTRAEEEEERE AR
1,117,000 70( =& ZF4F : 2,234,000
/%7‘5)

RITHMEFBR
AEENRITRE  BORIBREQ
ERE BB T REREN N
THE - R REABRERR

Relationship with the Group
BEAKEEREF

Mr. Ng Chi Chiu Director and the ultimate controlling party
REHBEE EEREEERA

Ms. Zhao Haiyan Director and spouse of the ultimate controlling party
fizi=E e EEREEERF RS

Success Land Global Group Limited Common controlled by Mr. Ng

RABEARRAA R % A H R

Fullmax Resources Limited Common controlled by Mr. Ng

BERERAA R % A L RE

Nice Dragon International Limited
HEBBRARAR

One Studio Limited

BELLEBR AR

Sky Range Limited

Sky Range Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 ® 2021444

Common controlled by Mr. Ng
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Key management compensation
The directors consider the key management personnel to
be the members of the Board of Directors of the Group
who have responsibilities for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group. Their
compensations are disclosed in Note 9.

CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s contingent liabilities
were as follow:

28 BMAERZ (&)

(d) FEEEASRH
EERRIEEBABRAEEES
EXE - AERE  BERERAK
BEEE) o KB RIMN MO RKER

29 HAREIR

RZBZ—F+ZR=+—H XEEHK
ARABEWT

2021 2020
=B —F —ECTE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET

Surety bonds (Note) BHVIRTE (M5E)

55,250 90,039

Note: As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided corporate guarantee (2020:
Group provided corporate guarantee) of surety bonds in respect of 8
(2020: 9) fitting-out contracts of the Group in its ordinary course of
business respectively. The surety bonds are expected to be released in
accordance with the term of the respective fitting-out contracts.
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30 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30 AATMBRRRK FEESE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company INA B BB AR R R
As at 31 December
B+=—H=+—H
2021 {070]
—B-—F —TE_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset RBEE
Investment in subsidiaries (Note a) RHBARRIRE (Hita) 151,752 151,752
~ Deposits Be 1428 1428
e V93180 153,180
Current assets REBEE
Deposits B 28 -
Amount due from a subsidiary e —RM B QB RIR 83,903 74,871
Cash and cash equivalents RERFCEEY 229 18
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 84,160 74889
Total assets HWEE 237,340 228,069
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EZRAaE
Equity attributable to owners of RATEEAELER
the Company
Share capital (Note 22) REA (PF7E22) 8,000 8,000
Reserves (Note b) fth (I EED) 210,120 217,224
_Totalequity = #®s 0000000 218120 @ 225224
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities =R
Other payables H{th B 3008 1,180 1,357
Bank borrowings RITIER 18,000 1,448
Amount due to a subsidiary JE — M B R R FUE 40 40
_Total liabilites ~ #&& 19220 . 2,845
Total equity and liabilities EERAEHE 237,340 228,069
The statement of financial position of the Company was RARMBERARBEETEN S __F=
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022 and was A=+H#tE  URAEE -
signed on its behalf.
Mr. Ng Chi Chui Ms. Zhao Haiyan Chloe
REBEE fi-pi=r - edun
Director Director
EBFE EF
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30 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30 AR TEERREREESTH 2
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Notes: BEE
(@  Particulars of principal subsidiaries @  EERMEBAEHE
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Principal activities and
Company name establishment fully paid up place of operation Interest held (%)
PEEL MR/ R % ERTRBERE TEERREELY Pt AR AE (%)
2021
—E--F
Directly held by the Company
ADREEER
Team World Company Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 Investment holding, Hong Kong 100 100
HELARES 1% RERK B
Indirectly held by the Company
ARFEEES
Success Base Engineering Limited Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 Provision of fitting-out Services and 100 100

repair and maintenance services
to residential and commercial
properties, Hong Kong
AIETRERAT Bk 2,500,0007%7¢ RETREENZREEERSE
UREBRARRSE - B8
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30 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30 AR TEERREREESTH 2
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(continued)
Note: (continued) WIEE : ()
(b) Reserve movement of the Company ) ARFIREED
Capital Share-
Share reserve based Accumulated
premium (Note) reserve losses
EX R URAH
RiDRE (M) ERNEE RitER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT BIT BT
At 1 January 2020 RZZ=TF—A—H - 151,752 - (9,016) 142,736
Loss for the year FRERE - - - (11,518) (11,518)
Transaction with owners in UEBASBEERA
their capacity as owners ETRBHBE
Capitalisation issue of shares (Note 22(a)) & 7L 2447 7 (B 5E 22(a)) (6,000) - - - (6,000)
Issue of shares pursuant to the RRR M BEEETRG FE
Share Offer, net (Note 22(b)) (MH3E22(0)) 124,000 - - - 124,000
Listing expenses charged to RERDEEINRO ETRY
share premium (Note 22 (b)) (KiFE22(0) (31,994) - - - (31,994)
At 31 December 2020 and W_ZE-ZTFE+-A=+—H
1 January 2021 kZZ=—4%—-A—H 86,006 151,752 - (20,534) 217,224
Loss for the year FREE - - - (7,634 (7,634)
Transaction with owners in LB ASREEEA
their capacity as owners ETRBHEE
Issuance of share options EITRERE - - 530 - 530
86,006 151,752 530 (28,168) 210,120
Note: Capital reserve represents the combined paid-in capital of the Mzt - BAREBEEREAREHEHERNRIE
group companies and capital contribution to subsidiaries by equity NEIIER B AT EHETNE L WE AR
holders of subsidiaries upon completion of reorganisation. B ERE o
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Financial Summary

MEEaER

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity of the 1E&SERKERELE FIREEZTBHRREBE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the HREMBEEr AEBELEREE BBERER
Prospectus and the published audited consolidated financial #IZ&EFIT - ZH BB ES M ERKEEZES
Statements, is set out below. This financial summary does not form  BffsR&RA—Z 5 -

part of the audited financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=t—-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

B ZZ-TF ZZ-NF ZT-N\F ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET AT THET FHET
Revenue Wz 798,108 630,212 879,401 768,145 552,652
Gross profit S 102,298 93,197 119,726 107,672 81,878
Profit before income tax expense B FT/E R B = 71 F 16,360 20,399 41816 47,843 36,515

Profit and total comprehensive A FHB AEIGER
income for the year attributable  S&H & 2 E 2%
to owners of the Company 12,597 18,049 33,675 40,169 30,633

As at 31 December
W+=B=t+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

B ZZ-TF ZZ-NF ZT-N\F ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT FET FHEL FET FHAL
Total assets BEE 648,814 514,000 710,430 594,515 506,260
Total liabilities meE 497,895 376,208 554,693 472,453 404,367
Net assets BEFE 150,919 137,792 155,737 122,062 101,893
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